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Narrative Report 

Introduction 

Organisational overview and external environment 

Belfast City Council remains the largest of Northern Ireland's 11 local authorities, serving a population of 
343,542 residents, as well as the thousands of people who travel to the city to work, study and visit each 
day. 

With a net budgeted expenditure of £163.1m In 2019/20, Belfast City Council's 2,211 employees, led 
by 60 councillors across 10 electoral areas, carry out six principal roles: 

~ a civic leadership role to ensure a better quality of life for our citizens; 
)> provision of a number of services and facilities including planning, parks and leisure, refuse 

and recycling and community services; 
)> promoting the arts, tourism, community and economic development; 
)> regulating and licensing activities relating to environmental health, consumer protection, 

building and public safety; 
)> a representative role on a number of bodies and boards, Including education and health; 

and 
)> a consultative role In relation to functions conducted by other government bodies and 

agencies on Issues such as planning, water, roads and housing. 

With our role in leading community planning in Belfast we have published the Belfast Agenda 2017-
2035, outlining our priorities for the City which will require collaboration with key partners to ensure 
delivery of these ambitions for the City. 

The key services delivered by the Council are outlined below under our Operational Model and the 
key objectives of the Council are outlined below under Strategic Performance. The key deliverables 
for year ended 31 March 2020 reflect the priorities articulated by local people and relate to the 
council's functions as both a civic leader and service provider. 
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Operational Model 

Each year, the Council must ensure it has the resources it needs to deliver services to the standard 
expected by its ratepayers. Budget plans are submitted to the relevant committees for approval 
regarding what the Council hopes to do and how much it will cost. This helps the Council understand 
how much money is required and, taking account of other sources of Income, what 'rate' needs to be 
set for the city to raise the required money. 

Throughout the year the Council reports to the relevant committees on the financial performance 
against agreed budget for each committee. The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services In accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to 
cover expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the 
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the 
Movement In Reserves Statement. 

The majority of the variance between budget and actual expenditure is disclosed in the Expenditure 
and Funding analysis in Note 2 and is mainly due to accounting adjustments that are required for the 
purposes of preparing the financial statements, such as depreciation and impairments, fair value 
adjustments on investment properties and IAS 19 accounting adjustments. There are also variances 
due to reclassification of income and expenditure to other income and expenditure for financial 
accounting purposes such as rental and financing activities. 

Each committee Is responsible for the delivery of key services to the Council and the main services 
included in each committee Is as follows: 

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 

This committee is responsible for setting the strategic direction of the Council through the 
development of its Corporate Plan and other key corporate and cross cutting strategies and policies. 
The net expenditure of this committee includes Legal and Civic Services, Finance and Resources, 
City Organisation Structure and Major Projects and Corporate Priorities with Human Resources and 
Good Relations. The net expenditure budget for this committee for these services In 2019/20 Is 
£42.5m with actual net expenditure for the year amounting to £41 .2m. The graph below outlines the 
services delivered within this committee and performance against budget. These amounts do not 
include the accounting adjustments that are required to be Included in the net expenditure for this 
committee in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. The net expenditure of £52.2m 
for this Committee includes the accounting adjustments that are required for preparing the financial 
statements. 
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City Growth and Regeneration Committee 

This committee is responsible for the development and implementation of strategies, policies, 
programmes and projects directed to the regeneration and growth of the City in the context of 
outcomes agreed In the Community and Corporate plans and other corporate strategies. The net 
expenditure of the committee includes Economic Initiatives and City Regeneration, City Events and 
Venues including Off-Street Car Parking, Place and Economy and Parks Estates and Zoo. The total 
budget for net expenditure for this committee for these services was £16.9m and actual net 
expenditure was £17m. The graph below outlines the services delivered within this committee and 
performance against budget. These amounts do not include the accounting adjustments that are 
required to be included in the net expenditure for this committee in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account. The net expenditure of £22.4m for this Committee Includes the accounting 
adjustments that are required for preparing the financial statements . 
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This committee is responsible for the development and implementation of strategies, policies, 
programmes and projects aimed at improving life at a local level in the context of the outcomes 
agreed in the community and corporate plans and other corporate strategies. The net expenditure of 
the committee includes Cleansing, Waste Management and vehicles, Parks, Cemeteries and Leisure 
Centres, Environmental Health, Neighbourhood and Development and Community Services. The 
total budget for net expenditure for this committee for these services was £80.8m and actual net 
expenditure was £82.1 m. The graph below outlines the services delivered within this committee and 
performance against budget. These amounts do not Include the accounting adjustments that are 
required to be included in the net expenditure for each committee in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account. The net expenditure of £104. 7m for this Committee includes the accounting 
adjustments that are required for preparing the financial statements. 
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These committees are responsible for delivery of all of the Council's planning functions and policy and 
legislation in relation to licensing Issues. The net expenditure includes Planning and Building Control 
services. The total budget for net expenditure for this committee for these services was £1.5m and 
actual net expenditure was £1 m. The graph below outlines the services delivered within this 
committee and performance against budget. These amounts do not include the accounting 
adjustments that are required to be included in the net expenditure for each committee in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. The net expenditure of £1.8m for this Committee 
includes the accounting adjustments that are required for preparing the financial statements. 
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Further information regarding the variances between planned and actual expenditure Is included in 
the Individual committee reporting for 2019/20. Total net expenditure budget of £163.1 m includes the 
above services budget of £141 .6m and the capital financing budget of £21.5m. 
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COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a considerable impact on the Council and has been identified as a 
significant risk within the Annual Governance Statement. The Government's lockdown, announced 
on 20th March 2020, has meant that many businesses have been forced to close temporarily 
significantly impacting on the economy. Furthermore, the Council has had to put considerable 
resources into ensuring that critical services are delivered during this period and that the most 
vulnerable in our community are cared for. This comes with additional cost pressures. 

Financial Impact 

These additional costs have not had a dramatic impact on the financial outturn for 2019/20 as the 
pandemic only started to make a notable impact on the public's and businesses' behaviour in the last 
two weeks of March. However, the true scale of its Impact on the Council's finances will be felt during 
2020/21. The Council is expecting substantial losses across many of its largest streams of income. 
These include parking, commercial waste, licensing fees, registrars and planning fees. As with any 
recession, investment income is anticipated to reduce which will create further pressures on the 
Council's finances. lt is difficult to quantify the impact of Covid-19 at this stage with any certainty, but 
the financial pressure on the Council will be substantial- even after the Executive's emergency 
Covid-19 funding for local authorities Is taken into account. Due to the Council's reliance on fees and 
charges, rates income and consequently its exposure to the economic cycle, the Council has sought 
in recent years to build up the general fund balance to ensure the Council is financially resilient in a 
recession. The Councllls th~refore in a position to draw upon Its general fund reserve balance in 
2020/21 to balance its budget and has adequate resources to adopt the going concern basis of 
accounting in preparing the annual statements. 

Moving forward 

The Council will reset its Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) in recognition of the Impact of the 
pandemic and the Council's strategic objectives. The Covid-19 crisis has meant that the Council has 
had to review what its most critical services are and which are required to still be operational even 
during a global pandemic. The changing environment and "new normal• in which we are likely to find 
ourselves will require the Council to review the services it provides, its delivery models and the 
outcomes that are of the highest priority. This will also require the Council to review the structural 
position of its budget and how that needs to change going forward. 

The Council continues to revise and refine recovery plans~ this is challenging given the degree of 
uncertainty regarding the pandemic and the still unknown impact on service provision and resources 
over time. This requires a high degree of flexibility In managing the resources (financial and 
workforce), to be able to respond quickly to reopen I reclose services whilst dealing with additional 
challenges associated with abiding by changing COVID -19 regulations, social distancing and 
responding to new community and business needs. 
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Governance 

The work of Belfast City Council is overseen by the committee structure outlined below and detailed 
further In our Governance Statement on pages 15- 31. This Annual Governance Statement for 
2019/20 highlights the Council's governance arrangements during the year and how significant 
governance Issues are being addressed and actions Implemented. A programme management 
framework is in place to manage both revenue and capital streams of activity for the Council. 
Directors and Members have oversight In accordance with the terms of reference for the relevant 
Committee as well as finance reports covering all aspects of Council expenditure being presented to 
Committee on a quarterly basis. The Committee structure, which Is based on the full council and 
seven standing committees Is illustrated and described below. 

CQuncft 
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As outlined In the Annual Governance Statement on page 16, in response to Covid-19 the Council 
altered the normal decision-making processes to ensure that the Council followed Public Health 
Agency guidance on social distancing and essential travel was followed while maintaining continuity 
of critical services. 
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Strategic Performance 

The strategic performance of the Council is incorporated in the Belfast City Council's Corporate Plan 
2020-24, which includes the Improvement Plan. The Belfast Agenda is published on the Council's 
website and outlines the Council's ambitions for the City by 2035 as well as the immediate priorities 
for: 

)> Growing the economy 
> Living here 
l> City Development 
)> Working and learning 

The Council outlines its priorities within the Corporate Plan 2020-24 which was agreed in March 2020 
just before the Covfd-19 pandemic. These priorities cascade from the longer term outcomes identified 
In the Council's Community Plan (Belfast Agenda}. These priorities are based upon extensive 
external and internal analysis, including key socio-economic data, analysis of the plans and strategies 
impacting the city and its communities, performance information and political engagement. In 
addressing the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, a Covid-19 Recovery Plan was agreed that focuses 
on the medium to long term response and priorities of Belfast that have arisen as a result of the 
pandemic. An annual review of the corporate plan will take place In the New Year - as part of this, 
the Recovery Plan will be incorporated In to the corporate planning process. 

The Council has also Incorporated six key Improvement objectives included within the Improvement 
Plan to ensure continuous improvement in the exercise of the Council's functions and alignment with 
the work the Councflls doing to formulate the priorities of the Belfast Agenda. 

These six key objectives are; 

)> Build the city's position as a magnet for Foreign Direct Investment 

)> Make Belfast a great place to do business by supporting entrepreneurs and business starts 

)> Deliver an integrated approach to employment and skills 

)> Design and deliver programmes to address health inequalities in the city 

l> Deliver the integrated tourism strategy to increase numbers of leisure and business tourists 

)> Deliver city centre regeneration and investment projects 

An annual performance assessment of progress against these objectives is contained within the 
Corporate Performance Assessment Report to include details of the Council's performance against 
statutory performance Indicators set by the Department. 
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Financial Statements 

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2020 is as set out in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and its financial position is as set out In the 
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement. 

These financial statements have been prepared In line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2020 (the Code) and the 
Department for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 03/2020. ft is the purpose of this 
foreword to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts In relation to the Council. 

This Statement of Accounts explains Belfast City Council's finances during the financial year 2019/20 
and its financial position at the end of that year. lt follows approved accounting standards and is 
necessarily technical in parts. 

The annual accounts for 2019/20 have been prepared on the assumption that the Council will 
continue in existence for the foreseeable future. 1t Is not foreseen that the Impact of COVID -19 will 
change this position over the period covered by this report. 

Group Accounts 

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of group 
financial statements where they have material Interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
Belfast City Council have prepared group financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 
2020 to include Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Limited ( BWUH) and Belfast City Council's 
contribution to Beltel LLP in relation to the redevelopment of the Belfast Telegraph Building. The 
results of Beltel LLP are included in the group financial statements. The results of Belfast Gasworks 
Management Co Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2020 are not deemed material to Belfast City 
Council accounts and as such are not Included in the group financial statements. 

The Movement In Reserves Statement 

This Statement, as set out on page 42, shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held 
by the Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (I.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or 
reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services' line 
shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Summary (CIES). These are different from the statutory 
amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Local Tax purposes. The 'Net 
Increase/Decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves' line shows the statutory General Fund 
Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 
The group movement in reserves statement on page 118 includes the reserves of BWUH limited, 
contributing to an increase of £6. 7k on the Group General Fund. 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This statement, as set out on page 43, shows the accounting cost In the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from 
taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be 
different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. The group comprehensive income and expenditure statement on page 119 includes the 
consolidated income and expenditure of BWUH Ltd. 
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The Balance Sheet 

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 44, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the 
Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by 
the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of 
reserves are usable reserves, le. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, 
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use 
{for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay 
debt). The second category of reserves are those that the authority is not able to use to provide 
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for 
example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services 
If the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'. The 
group balance sheet on page 120 includes relevant balances for BWUH Ltd and BeltellLP. 

The Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the 
reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash 
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of 
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations 
of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services 
provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been 
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash 
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers 
of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. The group cashflow statement on page 121 includes the 
cash and cash equivalents of BWUH Ltd, Gas Pension Fund and the Council's interests In Beltel LLP. 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

The resourclng of the Council's activities is outlined In the Annual Report, demonstrating the funding 
available and what services this funding provided for 2019/20. 

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers how the 
funding available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rates, fees and charges) for the year has 
been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the 
Council in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The main services provided 
under each committee are summarised in this note and performance against budget is summarised in 
the Narrative Report. The main variances from budget will arise due to the accounting cost of 
providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, such as depreciation 
charges and IAS 19 pension adjustments which are not funded from taxation. These charges are 
summarised per committee in Note 2a and Note 2b. 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure Is allocated for decision­
making purposes between the Council's committees. Income and expenditure accounted for under 
generally accepted accounting practices Is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

Financial performance 

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Council increased its General Fund to £28.7m. The Budget 
plans form part of the Revenue Estimates and in 2019/20 the total net expenditure budget for the 
Council was set at £163.1 m. 

The Council reported £304k under spend on service delivery at the year end. Performance against 
budget for each of the Committees is continuously monitored throughout the year. This performance 
Is reported to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee on a quarterly basis. The overall 
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position for the year ended 31 March 2020 Is mainly due to ongoing structure reviews where vacant 
posts are being held prior to reviews being completed. 

The Cost of Services on Continuing Operations of£181m as reported in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, also includes the accounting cost of providing services in addition to the 
amount to be funded from taxation. The total net expenditure reported In the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is £12m. 

Borrowings 

For the 2019/20 year the Council has an authorised borrowing limit of £165m. This is based on the 
Council's forecast capital expenditure plans over the medium to long term. In conjunction with the 
Council's Capital Financing Requirement of £138m, this ensures that the Council only borrows for 
capital purposes. During the year, the Council repaid external loans of £10.2m with Department of 
Finance. The Council borrowed £15m to fund ongoing capital projects from Department of Finance 
and on a short term basis £15m was borrowed from other Councils, of which £1 Om was repaid before 
year end. At 31 March 2020, the total amount outstanding on external loans was £72.7m, of this total 
£0.3m represents the outstanding debt of the former Belfast Corporation Services which is now the 
responsibility of the Northern Ireland Housing Executive, and on whose behalf the Council is 
administering the loans. 

Capital Expenditure 

The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement includes 
allocations of £7.9m to fund capital expenditure. Expenditure on capital projects during the year 
amounted to £43.9m, the most significant expenditure was on: Andersonstown Leisure Centre 
£11.9m; Brook Activity Centre £7.3m; Lisnasharragh Leisure Centre £7.2m; Avonlel Leisure Centre 
£2.1m; and the Fleet Vehicle Replacement Programme £4.2m. 

There was one significant Impairment during the year, £559k, as detailed on page 87. Olympia 
Leisure Centre came into operation in 2017 and its value was re~measured to depreciated 
replacement cost, to reflect its current estimated service potential. The difference between the two 
methods of measurement results In an impairment. 

Strategy and Resource allocation 

When setting the district rate for 2020/21 consideration was given to the following key financial factors 
for the Council: 

)- The main uncontrollable cast risk to the Council in the short and medium term, continues to 
be the Impact of externally imposed Increases to the Council's pay bill, such as the nationally 
negotiated pay awards, the foundation wages increase and employers' pension contributions 
increase. These combined with Inflation levels exert financial pressure an the District Rate 
which are beyond the Council's control. 

> Likewise, the Council continues to face significant year on year increases in costs in several 
areas such as the increased revenue costs required for the implementation of the Waste 
Plan, financial contributions required under the delivery of the City Deal, Increased resource 
requirements to deliver priorities under the Belfast Agenda and continued investment in large 
scale capital projects combined with the revenue costs of these assets as they become 
operational. 

> The Council's income streams are under risk with the uncertain political environment which 
could have an impact on both EU and Central Government funding. Work is continuing with 
Land and Property Services (LPS) and the Institute of Revenues Ratings and Valuations 
(IRRV) to provide assurances on the rates base In this challenging economic landscape. This 
work has become increasingly important due to the uncertainty around the short and medium 
Impact on the rates base in light if the current Covid 19 pandemic. 
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)> The Council continues to develop Its Efficiency Programme through a targeted work stream of 
activities delivering savings of £3m in 19/20 and savings of £3.1 m In 20/21, and more recently 
expenditure controls to prioritise resources which should help minimise the burden on the 
ratepayers. 

Outlook 

The Council is fully aware that it is continuing to operating in a continually challenging environment 
with the ongoing COVID 19 pandemic. The Council is committed to delivering business as usual 
where possible and will continue with our ambitions for the City under the Belfast Agenda and City 
Deal. The Council strives to deliver at the highest of standards and these efforts have been 
recognised In the many awards achieved by the Council In the year ended 31 March 2020, including: 

)> The success of 20 Parks across Belfast awarded Green Flag status 

)> The Council rolling out the project to deliver full fibre network to connect 200 Council sites 
across Belfast 

)> Belfast named Best Kept City Nl2019 

)> Belfast named Best Events Destination in Conference & Incentive Travel Magazine Awards 

)> Two new Leisure Facilities open in Belfast as part of £105 million Leisure Transformation 
Programme 

)> Leisure Transformation Programme Highly Commanded in the World Health Organisation 
Belfast Healthy City Awards 

)> Belfast City Centre awarded Purple Flag 

)> Leisure Transformation Programme shortlisted in Leisure Category for Inaugural Royal 
Institution of Chartered Surveyors Social Impact Awards 2020 

The Council seeks out opportunities to pursue additional funding streams for the City, adopting 
innovative approaches to delivering services and working in partnership to ensure the City optlmises 
its resources to deliver on its six key objectives. A few of the current initiatives the Council is currently 
developing are outlined below: 

)> Smart City Framework- the Council continues to adopt a leadership role to establishing a 
City Data Platform, a Smart Belfast portal which is a critical resource for a modern Belfast to 
stage challenges, promote and share learning and attract Investment. This will be the 
foundation for the rates forecasting model and Planning Growth tool to encourage Innovative 
solutions for increasing economic growth for the City. We are working with over 50 SMEs on 
smart projects. 

)> 100RC- Belfast is the only city in Ireland, and one of only five in the UK to have been 
selected from over 1,000 applicant cities to participate in the 100 Resilient Cities Network­
pioneered by The Rockefeller Foundation (100RC). The aim of this network is to partner with 
cities to build resilience to the shocks and stresses of the 21st Century, share International 
challenges and lessons learned, and to build a global community of urban resilience experts. 
This has been particularly useful in responding to the current COVID 19 pandemic. The 
Belfast Currency project 'Belfast Coin' was a pilot project whereby Belfast City Council 
successfully applied to join the 100 Resilient Cities City Challenge. During the pilot a number 
of challenges associated with roll-out of a currency for Belfast were Identified, and it was 
decided not to proceed using the model developed. 

)> City Deal- the City deal model is the UK Government's innovative strategy for building 
stronger urban and regional growth via smarter, more localised and growth focused 
Investment decision-making. Recent confirmation of the NI Executive's match funding of new 
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investment for infrastructure, regeneration, and tourism projects will help the region's 
economy recover from the effects of Covld-19. There will be overall Investment in the Belfast 
Region City Deal of £850 million, Including £150m from the Belfast Region City Deal partners. 

The Executive has also agreed to provide up to an additional £100 million for complementary 
projects where partners can demonstrate a viable capital project which is complementary to 
the City/Growth Deal proposals. 

> The PEACE IV Programme- is a cross~border initiative designed to support peace and 
reconciliation in Northern Ireland and the border region. Funding of£14.4m was awarded 
from the European Union PEACE IV Programme managed by the Special EU Programmes 
Body (SEUPB) and also Includes funding from the Executive Office In Northern Ireland and 
the Department of Rural and Community Development in Ireland. Belfast City Council 
continues to work with our partners In delivering on a wide range of projects. Mobilisation of 
the Council's PEACE IV Local Action Plan Is continuing. To date 13 project elements from a 
possible 15 have been awarded and are actively delivering project activity on the ground. it is 
envisaged that the two outstanding project elements will be mobilised by December 2020. 

The coronavirus pandemic has had a profound impact on all aspects of life in the Belfast City Council 
area. Through 2020/21 the Council will adopt a pro-active approach to ensure that it responds to the 
emerging needs of residents and businesses. 

In line with all other councils in Northern Ireland and the wider public sector, Belfast City Council is 
facing a number of challenges. Public finances are under increasing pressure as a result of both the 
pandemic, ongoing tightening of government spending agendas, amongst other challenges. Key risks 
and planned mitigations are Included in our Governance Statement on pages 26 to 31. 
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Statement of the Counc;ll's and Chief financial Officer's Re1ponslbfl81" for the Statement of Accounb 

JIMt Cound's Responslblllles 
Under Section I of the loco! Government Anonce Act (Norlhem Ireland) 2011 a councU shall matce otron~enls for lhe proper 
odmlnlslrotlon of Its financial olfolrs. A councl shall deslgnale on officer or the counci as Its chief financial olllcer ond lhese 
ooangemenb shaM be con'led our under lh11 supervision ollts chilli financial olllcer. 

UndB( Regulation 7 of the Local Go11emmeni(Accounts a1'1d AudiiJ Regula llont (Northern lr11lond) 2015 ll'le CouncM, Of a Ct'>mmlllee,ls 
requred by resolution, to approve lhe occounls. 

lhese accounts were approved by lhe Chief Finance Olflcer on 21 August 2020. 

lhe Chief Financial Ortlcel'• Responslbl.lll~:>• 

Under Regulalion 8 of the local Govemment (Accounls and Audt) Regulations (Northem trelond) 2015. the CNef Anonclol Offtcer Is 

lhe occounb mu$! give o flue and lolr View of lhe income and expendlllxe Ofld cosh llows for lhe tlnonclol yeor and the lloonclo! 
posiHon os ot I he end of the flnunc'ol year. 

In prepollng lhls Slolomenl ol Accounh. the Chief Flnonclof officer Is required to: 

• observe the Accounb Direction Issued by the Daportmenllor Communlfieslnckldng cOfll:)lonce v.ilh the Code of Praclice 
on locol Aufho~ly Accounllng In lhe United Kingdom 

• follow r&ll!lvanl accounting and dsclosure requilemenls and apply sullable occounllng policies on a conrls1enl basis. and 

• make JudgemenTs and e5timales lhol ore reasonable ond prvd8111, 

lhe Chief flnondol Officer Is also requied lo: 

• k&ep proper occounWng records that ore up· to-dale, ond 

• take remonoble sleps for the prevenlion and dolectlon or fraud and olher I1Jegutor111es. 
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Annual Governance Statement 2019/2020 

The Council's Annual Governance Statement (AGS) follows the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the UK 2019/20 and comprises the following sections: 

• Scope of responsibility 

• The purpose of the governance framework 

• The governance framework 

• Review of effectiveness 

• Update on the significant governance Issues that were declared last year 

• Significant governance issues for the year-end 2020 

Scope of responsibility 

Belfast City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business Is conducted in accordance 

with the law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly 
accounted for, and is used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a 
duty under Part 12 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland} 2014 to make 

arrangements for continuous Improvement In the way In which Its functions are exercised, 
having regard to a combination of strategic effectiveness, service quality, service availability, 
fairness, sustainability, efficiency and innovation. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its 
functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement, which is consistent with the 

principles of the new CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government {2016 edition). This statement explains how the Council has complied with the 
code and meets the requirements of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland 2015} In relation to the publication of an annual governance 

statement. 

The purpose of the governance framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by 

which the Council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads Its communities. lt enables the Council to monitor the achievement 

of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery 
of appropriate services and value for money. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. lt cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
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Identify and prloritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the Impact should 

they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

The governance framework continues to be In place at Belfast City Council for the year 

ending 3151 March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Governance Statement 

and statement of accounts. The following section sets out the key elements of the 

governance framework. 

The governance framework 

Decision making process from the period 13th March 2020 to present 

In response to Covid-19 we the Council altered our normal decision-making processes to 
ensure that we followed Public Health Agency guidance on social distancing and essential 
travel while maintaining continuity of critical services. 

Committee and Council: The committee decision~maklng process was delegated to the Chief 
Executive under Standing Order 41 as agreed at a Special Council meeting on 13 March 
2020. A process was established where the reports were issued as normal and the views of 
each party were collated by Democratic Services to enable the Chief Executive to make a 
decision, based on the levels of democratic support. A Contentious Business Committee, the 
Party Group Leaders, allowed for discussion of any contentious matters. Committee 
decision-registers, which continued to be subject to the normal call-in process were 
published on modern.gov as normal. A 'Procedure for the transaction of business under 
delegated authority' was agreed with Party Group Leaders. This process was a temporary 
process with a phased approach being taken to reintroduce committees and Council 
meetings with a physical annual Council meeting held on Monday 1 June, the first remote 
Special Council meeting on Monday 8 June, the first remote Strategic Policy & Resources 
Committee held on Friday 19 June with another remote Council meeting to be held on 1 July. 
Council and committee meetings resumed in August (some special meetings were held In 
July) and all were held remotely. 

Planning and licensing Committee: a separate process was established for the Planning and 
licensing Committees where lt is considered inappropriate to have party positions on 
particular applications. Therefore the views of each of the Individual committee members 
was collated by Democratic Services before a decision was taken by the Chief Executive 
under delegated authority. 

Following the amendment to Standing Orders In March 2020, the Council also contacted Dfl 
to seek approval of those delegated arrangements as required by planning legislation. 
However Dfl confirmed that since the changes were to Standing Orders as opposed to the 
Scheme of Delegation there was no requirement for Departmental approval. 
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Our committee structure, which is based on the full council and seven standing committees 

Is illustrated and described below. 

r- I I -===~ I I 

Streteak Policy City Gro\'fth and People and Pl1nnln1 Llcensln& BWUHLtd 
and Resoun:es ReaeneraUan Communities Shareholder's Brexlt 

Committee Committee Committee 
Committee Committee 

Commlttea 

Through the work of committees, our Members oversee the work of the council. All 

committee decisions need to be ratified by the full council except where committees have 

been granted delegated authority to make decisions. 

The full council, which consists of all GO elected representatives, is the overarching decision­

making body. 

The Strategic Policy and Resources Committee Is responsible for setting the strategic 

direction of the Council through the development of Its corporate plan and other key 

corporate and cross cutting strategies and policies. lt will also ensure effective use of 

resources and value for money for ratepayers, and oversee the Council's relationship with a 

number of key agencies and partners. 

I 

Committee 

The City Growth and Regeneration Committee is responsible for the development and 

implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects directed to the 
regeneration and growth of the city In the context ofthe outcomes agreed in the community 

and corporate plans and other corporate strategy. 

The People and Communities Committee is responsible for the development and 

implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at improving life at a 

local level in the context ofthe outcomes agreed In the community and corporate plans and 

other corporate strategy. 

The Planning Committee is responsible for all of the Council's planning functions, except 

those matters, which are delegated to officers or reserved to full Council. 

The licensing Committee is responsible for the consideration of all matters pertaining to 

policy and legislation in relation to licensing Issues. 
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The Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Ltd Shareholders' Committee is responsible for 

making the decisions required by the Shareholders' Agreement and ensure that the 
company complies with the contract for the operation of the venues. 

The Brexlt Committee is responsible for researching, monitoring, and reviewing the financial, 
resource or operational impact upon the council and the district as a result of the UK leaving 
the European Union and for making recommendations to council on such issues (or the 

relevant standing committee where appropriate), 

In addition to the Committees listed In the diagrams above there are ten Working Groups 
established which include the Audit & Risk Panel, the Budget and Transformation Panel and 

four Area Working Groups. 

In June 2018, the Council appointed a Commissioner for Resilience, fully funded by the 
organisation '100 Resilient Cities'. The Commissioner who reports directly to the Chief 

Executive, is working with Council officers and city partners to design and implement a 
resilience strategy for Belfast, focusing on economic resilience. 

The Audit & Risk Panel provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's 
risk management framework and associated control environment. lt provides an 
Independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non·flnancial performance, which Is 

relied upon by the Council, to the extent that it exposes it to risk and weakens the control 
environment. The Panel reports to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee. The Audit 
& Risk Panel met three times during 2019/20. The Audit & Risk Panel did not meet in June 

2019, following the elections in May, as the composition of the Panel had to be agreed by 
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee on 21't June and ratified by Council on l 5t July, 
with nominations to the Panel sought from each of the 8 parties thereafter. 

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the seven core principles set out In the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework (2016 edition). How we meet these seven core principles Is 

reviewed and updated annually, and in particular for this year, ensuring that our update 
reflects Covid~19 related changes to our governance arrangements. A summary of the key 
elements of our governance framework are set out In the following table: 
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Our seven principles of good governance 
-

A: Beh;winp, with integrity 

• Shi.lrcd vt~lues communicated vit~ 

corporute plnn, community pl<~n ;mcl 

key str01tegics 

• Codes of conduct for Members & stZ~ff 

• PDP / <lppr;Jis<JI process for Members & 
st;~ff 

• Gifts <1nd hosp itulity <~nd conflicts of 

interc~t policies & registers in pluce 

• fr<1ud & whistleblowinp, policies 01nd 

invcstigCJtions 

• Good Relations Unit 

• Equality & Diversity Frarncworl< 

• Council constitution, strindinr, orders & 
~chc me of dclegt~tion 

• Expert professiona I <1dvicc 

• PMtncrs <1ncl contrflctors required to 

comply with relevt~nt policies 

• /\chievin1; Through People Fr<1mework 
;md development of organisZ~tioni11 

vi11ucs Jnd behuviours 

B: Ensurinr, openness 

• New process for decision making during 

Covid-19 pandemic 

• Counc:il I committee meetings open to the 
public and agendas I minutes on websitc 

with tl process in place for time bound 
restrictions 

• Belfast Agenda developed via extensive 
consultation and engngement with public 

"Belfast Conversation" events as well as 
statutory and other key pCJrtners. 

• Corporate plan and annual improvement 

pl~n are subject to consultntion before 

agreement 

• Statement of Community Involvement for 

production of the local Development Plan 
• Ongoing consultation und engagement 

with str:1ff & trade unions 
• Corporate communications 

• Annual fimmcidl report and annual report 

to Equal ity Commission published on BCC 

website 

• Partnership I lega l agreements with GLL, 

Active Belfast, arc21, BWUH Ltd, Visit 
Belfast, Bel Tel LLP and Belfast Gasworks 

Management Company Limited 

• "Your Say" consultation hub on BCC 

website 

• Working with Belfnst Region City Dc<ll 

partners 
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C: Defining outcomes 

• Belfast Agenda outlines long term 
economic, social and environmental 
benefits 

• Development of a Belfast Region City 
De()! Investment Plan 

• Cldtural Strtltegy 

• Cm·por<~te plan, incorporatine 
Annuttllmprovcment Pl;m, outlines 
the ;mnual contribution to the 

Belfast A~.:cndu 

• City centre regcneriltion & 

investment strJtcgy 

• Physical Investment Proeramrne 

• Leisure trilnsformation progr<1mme 

• Gri1nt fundi ne proce>sses 

• Equillity lmpnct Assessments 

E: Developing capacity & C:i1pability 

• Achieving Through People 
Framework nnd development of 
organisationill values and 
behavioms 

• Development of People Strntcgy 

• Bcnchmarldng activity 

• Efficiency programme 

• Learning and development policy 

• Health and wellbeing strategy 

• Appraisal scheme in plttce for senior 
management 

• POPs for officers anc.l Members 

• Member c.1pacity building plan 
delivered in 2019/20 

• Continuing Development 
Programme in place for the 
Planning Committee 

• Party group briefings 

• Senior Leadership Development 
Programme 

0: Optimising the achievement of 
outcomes 

• Covitl-19 Respond, Rebuild, Recover 
Plans in <levelopment 

• Corpor.-.te pI an aligned to delivery of 
Belf<1st Agenda 

• Consult<~tion ;:~nd eng<~gemcnt 

processes 

• Strategic fin<~ncial mnn~,-;cmcnt 
fr;nnework in pl;1ce, including 
quarterly challen~e process. 

• Performance monagemcnt frJmcwork 

• Regul<lr reports on progress of our 
pcrform<lnce improvement plan to 
CMT nnd SP&R 

• Risk manogement strategy & 
fr<tmework 

• Commercial P.:mel <lims to ensure that 
commercial activity places <1n 
emph<~sis on outcomes 

F: Finance, perforrnnnce and risk 
management 

• Strategic financi;JI manngement 
frameworl< in pbcc 

• Efficiency progrumrne 

• Performilnce manaeement fr;Jmeworl< 

• rint~ncial resilience review 

• Risl< mant~gemcnt str;1tegy 

• Corporate risl< monagemcnt system 
(MKinsight) and processes I 
procedures in plilce 

• Regular reporting of finance, risk & 

performance 

• Audit and Risl< P.:mel 

• Internal audit fu net ion I annu<JI 
internal nudit strntcgy & pbn in place 

• Recommendations Monitoring process 

• Data protection policy and procedures 

• Corpor<tte Fraud Risl< Assessment 

• Covid-19 corpornte risk assessment 
ilnd ch<1ngcs to working practices 

• Governance over Covic.l-19 rel<~ted 
changes to financiJI processes 
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G: Transpnrency, reporting & effective 
accountability . 
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The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources is the Council's 

designated Chief Financial Officer under the Local Government Finance Act (Northern 

Ireland) 2011, responsible for the proper administration of the Council's financial affairs. 

The Council's financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements 

of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government 

(2016). 

Having considered all the principles of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption (2014), subject to the implementation of the Fraud Action Plan, the 

Council has adopted a response that is appropriate for its fraud and corruption risks and 

commits to maintain Its vigilance to tackle fraud. 

The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2019) outlines the five 

principles that set out the organisation's responsibilities to ensure the Head of Internal Audit 

(HIA) is able to operate effectively and perform their core duties. The Statement also sets 

out the core responsibilities of the HIA along with the personal skills and professional 

standards expected of the HIA. The Head of Audit, Governance and Risk Services (AGRS), 

and the supporting operational arrangements In place, conform to the five principles set out 

in the CIPFA Statement. This is demonstrated through a self-assessment exercise 

undertaken by the Head of AGRS. While the principles state that the HIA should not be 

responsible for preparing the annual governance report, the arrangements within the 

Council, involve AGRS eo-coordinating the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement 

which is then reviewed and agreed by the Corporate Management Team, Assurance Board 

and Audit and Risk Panel, before being reviewed by Strategic Policy and Resources 

committee and signed by the Chair of Strategic Policy & Resources, the Chief Executive and 

the Deputy Chief EKecutive and Director of Finance and Resources. 

The Council reported one personal data breach to the Information Commissioners Office 
(I CO} during the specified period. In addition, the ICO contacted the Council regarding a 

complaint it had received from a data subject (a member of the public) in relation to a data 

breach by the Council. In both cases the reo took no further regulatory action. 

Corporate Management Team (CMT) endorsed the guidance set out in Public Procurement 

Note (PPN) 02/20 on 8th April 2020. In total, three supplier relief applications were received. 

One application was approved by CMT on 8th May 2020. The other two applications 

received were rejected as they failed to comply with the requirements of the PPN. 

Review of Effectiveness 

The following diagram illustrates the Assurance Framework In place that provides 

Information on compliance with the various elements of the Council's Governance 

Framework, including performance reports, health and safety reports, finance reports, 

internal audit reports and risk management reports. 
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The various In year and year·end reports arising from the Assurance Framework are reviewed and 

approved by the Audit and Risk Panel and Strategic Policy and Resources Committee annually. 

In addition, the review of the effectiveness of the Governance Framework is also Informed by: 

• the annual review and update of the Code of Governance; 

• comments or recommendations made by the external auditors during their annual audit; and 

• the Head of Audit Governance and Risk Services (AGRS) annual assurance statement for the 

period ending 2019/20, which gives an opinion on the Council's risk and control environment. 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

An extract from the Head of AGRS Annual Assurance Statement for the period ending 2019/20 is 

given below: 

As Head of AGRS, on the basis of work carried out, I can provide a reasonable assurance regarding 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's framework of governance, risk management and 
control. My opinion is based on both the work done up to mid-March 2020 and also the work that 
we have undertaken since then to provide advice and assurance over changes to the councils 
framework of governance, risk management and control in direct response to the impact of Covld-19. 
Specifically my opinion Is based on the following: 

• evidence from areas subject to detailed Internal audit during 2019/2020, in that AGRS has 
been able to provide positive statements of assurance with the majority of audits falling into 
the 'some Improvement needed' category- the 2nd tier of assurance In the 4 tier model -

• 'Real-time' assurance and advisory work including the facifitation of readiness workshops for 
major programmes and projects and project advice and assurance on the implementation of 
new IT systems. 

• AGRS review of the financial procedures that were amended by management since 181h 

March 2020 In order to take account of new working practices, policies and risks due to the 
Impact of Cov/d-19. 

• Management assurances on the application of the amended financial procedures and the 
dynamic management of risks associated with the councils response to Covid-19 

• application of usual risk management and management assurance processes up to and 
including quarter ending December 2019, and our review of the management of key 
corporate risks 

• the evidence set out in the review of the Council's Code of Governance and Annual 
Governance Statement regarding the range of key assurance and governance arrangements 
that the Coun ell has in place to direct I oversee Its activities. 

However, some weaknesses and areas for improvement have been identified through audit work. 
These have been reported in detail to the Council's Assurance Board and Audit and Risk Panel during 
2019/20 through quarterly progress reports. In addition, I have highlighted, where appropriate, 
where further action is required to Implement agreed audit actions. The key Issues I would highlight 
In this statement are as follows 
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• During 2020, as management time and resources will continue be focussed on supporting 
plans to respond, recover and rebuild, AGRS will ensure that our audit work Is focussed on the 
areas where assurance Is most valuable and Is timed and conducted in a way that minimises 
interruption. At the same time AGRS highlights the Increased need for Independent assurance 
over the councils "new normal11 risk, control and governance frameworks during o period of 
significant change, and stresses the importance of management cooperation on these audits 
and related work to allow sufficient work to be completed on which to provide the annual 
assurance statement for 20/21. 

• While AGRS was able to provide positive statements of assurance in the majority of audits 
completed In 2019/20, four areas resulted In 'major improvement' assurance levels: 

follow-up review of domestic waste collection 
management. of the corporate risk on safeguarding 
IT asset management and; 
performance management arrangements at Belfast Waterfront Ulster Hall Ltd. 

lt is important that the action plans that are in place to address these are reviewed In the 
context of Covid-19 and implemented In as timely a manner as possible. 

• The pandemic poses significant challenges to the councit city and community and plans are 
being developed to respond, recover and rebuild. lt is important that we identify and assess 
the main risks to delivery of these plans to help us prioritise mitigating actions and allocation 
of resources. To this end AGRS has facilitated a fundamental review of the corporate risk 
register, which will be followed by review of departmental I service level risks at the 
appropriate time. lt is important that the outcome of this review is agreed, ownership 
assigned and mitigation plans developed and implemented in a timely manner. 

• The Corporate and Departmental Fraud Risk Assessments will need to be reviewed In the light of 
Covid-19. AGRS will support management in this process. 

Finally, looking ahead, the Council will be developing and supporting the implementation of 
plans in 2020/21 to respond, recover and rebuild the organisation, the city and communities 
from the Impact of Covld-19. These plans will be delivered alongside the delivery and potential 
reshaping of a number of other transformational programmes including the Belfast Region City 
Deal, Customer Focus Programme and Continuous Improvement Programme. These present 
significant risks and opportunities to the Council. AGRS will provide assurance and consultancy 
services in relation to these programmes. 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
I can confirm that the AGRS Service has conformed to Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
during 2019/20. A quality assurance and Improvement programme Is in place Including Internal 
review of work, annual assessment against professional standards, quarterly progress and 
performance reporting to the Assurance Board and Audit & Risk Panel. An external review of 
AGRS took place in 2017/18 and this confirmed the Service's compliance with professional 
standards 
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Continued effort has been put into developing and Implementing the key elements of an assurance 
framework within the Council with the key elements being: 

• a process whereby senior managers are required to sign annual assurance statements; 

• a process whereby Directors are required to sign quarterly assurance statements; 
• embedding risk management and developing the arrangements for oversight of the 

management of these risks; 

• business planning and related performance reporting arrangements; 

• an Audit and Risk Panel; 
• a professional internal audit function, which has been reviewed for effectiveness against the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards; and 

• a Health & Safety Assurance Board. 

Update on the Significant Governance Issues that were declared last year 

Five issues were declared last year and two of these, digital Information security and the relationship 
between elected members and officers, continue to be declared as stand alone issues in this year's 

statement. Three other issues that were declared fast year regarding waste management, Belfast 

Region City Deal and city centre recovery and revitalisation, are consolidated within issues In this 
year's statement under the headings 'Organisational Recovery' and 'City and Community Recovery'. 

Significant Governance Issues for the year-end 2020 

The significant governance issues for the year-end 2020 were identified through a fundamental 

review of the risks In the Corporate Risk Register and review of the Directors' Annual Assurance 
Statements. 

The most significant Issues for the Council are in relation to: 
1. Financial position 
2. Organisational Recovery 

3. City and Community Recovery 
4. Digital information security 
5. The relationship between Elected Members and officers 

More information on these significant governance issues is provided on the following pages. 

1. Financial position 

The Council set a rate for 2020/21 based on an expenditure budget of £205. 7m. The expenditure is 
budgeted to be financed through £167.3m of rates income and £38.4m of Council generated income 

Including £21.5m of fees & charges, £11.1m from other services and £5.8m of external grants. 

The Covld-19 pandemic will have a major Impact on the 2020/21 budget. The key financial risks are: 
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a) Loss of Income- the total loss of Income which the Council will have to face will depend on 

how long the Council will need to keep facilities closed, cease to deliver services and the 

demand for services from customers In a social distancing environment. The Council gave all 

its tenants, Industrial and otherwise, a rental holiday on estates from Aprll2020 to June 

2020 for a 3 month period. This rental holiday relates to the 20/21 financial year and has 

not been Included In 2019/20 accounts. 

b) Cash Flow- if the Council Is unable to meet Its cash flow demands there will be a need to 

borrow cash and I or exercise the already agreed overdraft facility lt has with Its bank. 

c) Rates Income- the four month (April-July 2020) non-domestic rates relief guarantees the 

Council its full non-domestic rate. Whilst the rates scheme has been extended, lt Is not on 

the same basis as for the first four months. There Is a significant risk that the rates collected 

will be less than estimated because of an increase In non-domestic vacancies and higher 

levels of rates debt. In order to mitigate this risk local government Is requesting the Finance 

Minister to guarantee councils its rate Income based on the Estimated Penny Product (EPP) 

used to set the district rate. Officers are carrying out an analysis to quantify this risk for 

both 2.020/21 and in future years. 

d) Debt- officers are anticipating higher levels of debt and have increased the bad debt 

provision by £542k. This will be kept under review during the year. 

e) Job Retention Scheme- this scheme is currently being used by both GLL (the social 

enterprise responsible for the operation of 14 leisure centres In Belfast in partnership 

with the council), and Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall (BWUH) Ltd. This means there has 

been no liability for the Council other than the payment of the budgeted management fee 

for both. However, with the amount of relief reducing, there could be significant financial 

consequences for the Council. For the BWUH Ltd the loss is forecast to be in the region of 

£1.5m. Gll have Indicated that the cost of the removal of the scheme would be around 

£450k per month. 

f) Covld-19 Support -If Members agree to provide further financial support to Covld-19 

community work this will not have been budgeted for and will require the finance to be 

found from existing budgets or reserves. 

We are currently quantifying the risks and exploring funding opportunities. This work Includes: 

• Maximising external support through: 

Requesting support from government through Department for Communities 

Seeking support from Department for Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs for 

Zoo costs. 

Scheme of Emergency Financial Assistance 

• Use of Job Retention Scheme 

• Reviewing income forecasts for 100 cost centres across 23 Income types. 

• Reviewing expenditure budgets to identify potential cost savings and spend increases. 

• Reviewing BWUH ltd and GLL financial position. 
• Reviewing capital expenditure and the capital financing budget. 

• Assessing the in-year and future years rates income. 

• Reviewing potential re-alignment of specified reserves, If required. 

• Developing a suite of temporary expenditure controls. 
• Developing options to balance the budget for 2020/21. 
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2. Organisational Recovery 

On 23 March 2020, In line with recent government advice regarding social distancing, the Chief 

Executive took the decision to send •non critical• staff home to work from home and priorltized the 

continued delivery of critical services throughout the Covid-19 pandemic. During May I June 2020, 

arrangements were put in place to plan the move from emergency response period into the 

recovery period. An Organisational Recovery Group has been established, supported by three sub­

groups on Assets, Physical Recovery and Home working. Six principles of Internal recovery have been 

agreed as follows: 
• Protecting the health of all staff and the public 

• Ensuring social distancing measures are designed Into facilities, and business processes as 

appropriate 
• Adhere to the most up to date government and public health advice and regulation 

• Optimise the use of technology and new business processes to deliver remote working and 

access to services where possible 

• Phased and coordinated service recovery across the organisation 

• Ensure all the principles are considered in the context of robust financial controls and 

equality 

The Organisational Recovery Group is responsible for ensuring that the challenges associated with 

organisation recovery are managed In a consistent and coordinated way. Challenges Include; 
adherence to the six principles of internal recovery; compliance with health, safety and wellbeing 

requirements; management of the additional information security risks arising from large scafe 

remote working; management of the financial Impact of recovery and realignment of corporate 
priorities and programmes. lt is important to ensure that there is a clearly agreed corporate focus 

and direction going forward, that takes into account the financial challenges facing the council. 

3. City and Community Recovery 

City Recovery 

In the midst of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Council focused on protecting health and minimising the 

human cost, providing relief to their communities and delivering essential day-to-day 

services. Council officers have been working closely with partner organisations in the public, private 

and statutory sectors to understand the scale of the challenge and develop collaborative solutions 

to mitigate the Impact of Covld-19 on the local economy and community, supporting businesses to 

reopen in a safe way, providing employment opportunities and vibrancy to local communities and 

city centre. 

lt is evident that there will be lasting structural changes to the city's economy, Its Infrastructure, its 

environment and to its communities, and will likely result In financial and economic uncertainty for 

some time. Initial estimates are that the NI economy is likely to contract by around 12.7%, with 

249,000 private sector workforce estimated to be furloughed/laid off and a significant Increase In 
Universal Credit applications. The sectors most impacted Include tourism, hospitality, retail 

manufacturing and real estate. 
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The crisis has shone a spotlight on vulnerabllitles within key systems and the structures of our 

economy and society, however, some benefits will be felt by the city from the behavioural 

change brought about In response to the crisis (such as less car usage, flexible working 

arrangements, more community Interaction, support for front line workers). lt is important that we 

understand what these are, and how feasible it is to sustain these behaviours over time. 

Given the scale, complexity and uncertainty which exists, an internal Recovery Leadership Group has 

been established, with resources aligned to support and principles in place to guide the 

development and implementation of a phased and integrated recovery programme 'Respond, 

Rebuild, Recovery, that adheres to the NI Executive's 5 Step Pathway to Recovery. The emerging 

recovery plan is focused on four interrelated pillars- economic, social and community, 

environmental and digital innovation. There Is also a significant programme of work underway to 

ensure organisational and operational readiness in terms of staff, services, assets, facilities and 

processes. 

Significant engagement is taking place with relevant government departments involved in the 

regional response to the pandemic, particularly Department for Communities, Department for 

Infrastructure, Department of Finance, Department of Health and Department for the 

Economy. Council officers are also working with our community and city partners to help shape our 

approach to recovery and help rebuild a new economy In a very different economic climate, 

maintaining a focus on sustainable and inclusive growth. 

Community Recovery 

The need for Council and other partners to work together with local communities to jointly plan and 

maximise the Impact of interventions, services and investments, and to ensure these approaches are 

tailored to meet local priorities and needs, has never been greater. 

The current Covid-19 crisis Is creating significant economic and social challenges for Belfast, and 

these Impacts will weigh heavily on the city's communities at neighbourhood levels in the coming 

years. 

During the response to Covid-19 the strength of Belfast's vibrant communities and supporting 

sectors has been at the forefront, with many examples of partnership working to address urgent 

community needs, in localities and across the city. There has been significant learning as a result of 
the emergency response both internally within Council and based on feedback from community 

partners, which will inform our plans for recovery which will include: 

Ability to be responsive to need and empowering communities; 

Meaningful and highly effective relationships between Council, statutory and community 
partners to aid agile service delivery; 

Creating opportunities for engaging/supporting more volunteering in communitiesj 
Opportunity to embed area-working concept both internally/externally with partners. 
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Looking ahead it will be important that we work collaboratively to harness the energy of our 

communities and city partners, ensuring greater co~ordinatlon and Innovation In addressing the 
specific Issues that communities face across the city. As we move forward, there Is a need to work 

with communities to further develop community confidence, capacity and resilience across 

neighbourhoods through a range of programmes of support. 

4. Digital Information Securitv 

IT Asset Management (IT AM) is the practice of managing IT assets covering software, hardware. 
systems or services throughout their life to maximise value and minimise associated risks, including 

data leakage, security and increased costs. An internal audit of IT Asset Management found that: 

• The processes for the management of IT assets are outlined In an IT Asset Management 

Strategy and related policies and procedures; 
• There are some processes in place to manage the IT asset lifecycle and ensure accurate 

records are maintained. 
• There is a disaster recovery plan in place identifying critical assets and a testing policy to 

ensure this Is effective. 

But that there is a need to implement key actions to: 
• Establish a management and governance framework over the use of cloud computing 

services; 
• Develop a plan to upgrade or protect servers that are running on unsupported operating 

systems; 
• Extend vulnerability scanning; 
• Introduce penetration testing In order to better manage risks in relation to security and data 

protection. 

With large numbers of staff working from home in response to Covid~19, accurately identifying and 
reconciling where IT equipment and software assets are deployed will need greater co~operatlon 

from line of business managers and staff. Digital Services will maintain Inventories outside normal 
processes for IT equipment provided on a temporary basis under extremely short tlmescales. 
lt should also be noted that now that the majority of Council officers are remote users and are 

relying on their home Internet services for remote working, lt wlll be more difficult to manage. the 
risks relating to Cloud applications Identified in the IT Asset Management Audit. For this reason 
Digital Services are currently working with external security specialists to carry out an Information 

security assessment to highlight the greatest areas of Information Security risk. This work is on~ 

going, Information gathering workshops have taken place and a final report is due before the end of 
December to include: 

• An assessment of key risks; 
• A review of existing security controls; 
• An assessment of controls against and alignment with relevant industry best practice; 
• Recommendations for enhancements to the existing security control environment to 

support our ICT Strategy and to improve the cyber resilience of the Council. 
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5. The relationship between Elected Members and officers 

Belfast City Council Is a political organisation and as such, this can often present a challenging 
working environment for officers, one that is particularly unique In public sector in the UK and 
Ireland. lt is important for Elected Members to be cognisant of the organisation's duty of care to all 
employees while they fulfil their obligations as Elected Members. The legal rights of staff and 
individual officers must also be recognised. Governance is in place in order for Members and officers 
to follow due process. Operating outside that agreed governance could have a detrimental impact 
on relationships; therefore impacting on the effective delivery of the organisation's overall strategy 
and priorities, and damaging the image and reputation of the organisation. This could also 
undermine the confidence and morale of staff who, at all times, are required to carry out their 
duties In an Impartial and balanced way, acting In the best interests of the organisation, and offering 
their expert advice and opinion without any political Influence or bias. Staff need to have confidence 
that any Interaction between officers and Elected Members, particularly on sensitive issues, takes 
place within that agreed governance, and that Members should consider this when making any 
comments on public forums or In the media. 

A new policy incorporating a standards regime and monitoring is being developed to introduce new 
safeguards and strengthen those that currently exist for the member I officer interface. Senior 
officers and Party Group Leaders will continue to meet periodically to ensure alignment of objectives 
and to promote a shared understanding of the working environment. 

~~ ®~.k 
Signed: ................ u••••••••·•,.•·u•••••••n•••· ... ••••••• .. •••••••••• ... ••••••t•••••••n•• .. •••••• 

Chair Strategic Policy and RCJurces·committee 

~~i:;~~~;:·;;;;;~;;~···~""! ................ . 
• , •• ec~, ................. : ......... 1 .. , ... !./.rc.r-........................................ . 
Chief Financial Officer 
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES' 

REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

INTRODUCTION 

lhe local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulafiom (Norlhem Ireland) 2015 require larger local govemmenl bodies to prepare a 
remuneration report as pari of lhe slalemenl of accounts. 

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENfS 

COUNCILLORS 

Allowances are payable by coundls to coundllors and comrnlllee members under Port 3 of the Local Government Finance Act 
(Northern Ireland) 201 I and The Local Govemmenl (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northem lrelond)2012. which come Into 
operation on I Aprt 2012. 

Guidance and determtnalions on CouncJIIOJt' Allowances applicable lrom I Apr112019 were Issued by the Deportment for Communities 
on 6 March 2019 (Circular LG 07/2019). Details of I he allowances paid to Individual coundllors are published on council websltes. 

following local elections on 2 May 2019, 462 councillors were elecled to the 11 new Cound s for a four year term. Belfast City Covncij 
has 60 elected Members representing 10 District Electoral Areas. 

SfNIOR EMPLOYEES 

lhe remuneration of senior employees employed by lhe Council h dele~ mined by the Cound In Nne with that determined by !he 
National Jolnt Council {NJCl for Local Government Service$. Senior $loll ore those ~loll who ore members of the Corporate 
Management Team. namely the Chief Executive ond Directors. 

Councn oppolntmenls of employees ore made In accordance with the Local Government Slotr Commissions' Code of Procedures on 
Recruitment and Selection. which requlres appointment lo be on merit ond on the basis of fair and open competition. 

Unless otherwise slated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open-ended. 



AllOWANCES PAID TO COUNCillORS 

lhe total amount paid to Councilors by way of allowances, uoder Parl3 of lhe Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 
ond the local Government (Payments to CouncllonJ Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012 was: 

Table 1: Total Allowances paid to councillors (audited Information) 

Allowance 2019/20 2018/19 

Toto! Allowonces Number of Coun~Wtor• Total. Numbtr ol Councillors 
Basle AUowance 890,245 6(J 851.196 

ISoeclol Resoomlbltv 103.281 49 106.69 
lord Mayor Allowance 34.332 I 34.800 

Deoulv Lord Mavor Allowance 6.250 I 6.25() 
PCSP AJowon<:e 10.800 29 12.36() 

~ghSheMrs~once 6.250 1 6.25() 
Sub31stence 2.098 10 -4.223 
Mleaae Altowall(:e 7.2-49 34 1-4'248 
Courses/ Confecences Vlslls 8,5-40 12 5.997 
(registration & joining fees) 

Teleohone rental 265 5 4.-410 
Miscellaneous costs 

Qlherlravel allowance -4705 10 9.270 
fOTAL AllOWANCES 1,082.035 1,055.695 

Details or the allowances paid lo incivldvol councillors In 2019/20 ore pubished on lhe council webslle at 
www.bellastclly.gov .uk/councM/your-council/councillors·aNowOil(:eS 

The above loble provides fur1herlnformallon and deloik on the alowances pQd to councllors lo thot published on the counCil 
webstle. 
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Due to I he elecRons on 6 May 2019. there were mony newly elected Counclols and deto~s of the current Councillors coo be found on 
lhe council websile. 



REMUNERATION Of SENIOR EMPLOYEES 

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Corpora le Management Team. The folowlng table provides details of the 
remuneration paid lo senior employees: 

Table 2 ·Table 2: Remunerallon Including JalafY)[oudlled lnlormollon) 
Officers 201f/20 2018/1'1 

Salary (Full Bonus Denefltsln Tolal Salary(Full lion us Beneftlt In Total 
year Payments lclnd year Payments kind 

equivalent In equivalent In 
brackets brackets 
where where 

applicable) applicable) 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Chief Execulive- 140-145 0 0 140-145 140-145 0 0 140-l.o!S 
Sl1Zanne Wylie 

Dlreclor of Finance & 110-115 0 0 110-115 110-115 0 0 110-115 
Resources - Ronan Cregon 

Director of Physlcol 25-30 0 0 25-30 105-110 0 0 105·110 
Programmes - GefTY MIIIOI"' (105-110) {105-110) 

Dileclor of Physical eo-as 0 0 80-85 n/a n/a n/o n/a 
Programmes- Sine ad Grtmes•• 

Director of City 8. 105-110 0 0 105-110 100-105 0 0 100-105 
Neighbourhood Services - Nigei 
Grtrruhow 

City Soncilor • John Walsh 105-110 0 0 105-110 100-105 0 0 10(}.105 

Director of City & 105-110 c 0 105-110 100-105 0 0 100-105 
Organballonal Strategy - John 
Tully 
strategic Director of Place & 10()..105 0 0 100-105 85-'10 0 085-90 
Economy - Alistalr Reld (95-100 fYE) (95-100 FYEt 

Commissioner for Reslllence - 85-90 0 0 85-90 65-70 0 0 65-70 
Grain!a Long !80-85 fYEI 180-BSF-YE) 

•Director of Physical Programmes GefTY Millor left the post on 30 June 2019 
.. Director of Physical Programmes- Slneod Grimes was appolnled on 6 May 2019 

Councils are required to disclose the relollanshlp belween the remunerollon of the highest paid member of the Corporate 
Management Team and the mecf10n remunerollon of the Councils warkforce. 

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate Management Team In the financial year 20 I 9120 was£ I~().. 
1451c. This was 6 times the median remuneration of the wolkforce, which was £23,836. 

Table 3: Relollonshlp between the remunarallon of the highest paid member of the Corporate Management Team and the median 
remvnerallon of I ha Councils workforee (audllad Information) 

2019/20 2018/19 
Salorv Bond of Hiallest Paid member of the ExecuHve 1-40·145 140-145 
Mc;~Q.ion Total Remunerollon 23.8 23.1 
Rollo 6 6.1 

In 2019/20. no employees received remuneration In e)(cess of lhe highest paid member ollhe Corporate Manag~:~menl Team. 



Tolol remunerolion Includes salary. bonus povmenls and beneflls in kind. 

Solcry 
•salary" Includes gross salary and any ex gratia payments. 

Benefits In Kind 
The monetary valve of benefils In klnd covets any benefils p1ovided by lhe employer and lteoted by HM Revenue and Cusloms os a 
taxable emolumenl. 

Exit Packages for stalf 
lhe number of exit packages p~ovlded lo all slolf by the Council, together wilh total cos I per band and total cost of the voluntary 
redundancies os agreed under the Cound's volunlofY redundancy scheme are set oul ln I he table below: 

Table 4: Ed Packages In 201 9!20 (audited lnformallon) 

2019/20 2018/19 
Numberol Numbero! Total TotaiC~ol Numb., a! Numberol Tollll Tot111 Cost ol 

Severance Package Cost Bond Compulsory Other Number of ~llckages1n CompubofY or~., Nurnbarot ~ackllifesln 
ltedundoncle• dep11rtures Exit eochCotl Rldundancles depar111fes Eldt each Cost 

agreed Packages In 8and agr"d P<Jckoges land 
each Cast l'OOO tneach l'OOO 

lllnrl l"ftlfii<IM 

s.o. t20.000 
c l 1 e 0 2 2~ 

t20.00 I • UO,OOO c ~ 9 259 0 !i 5 126 
.t•o.OOI • £60.000 5 3 25<1 0 ~ ~ 206 
160,001 • !80.000 J 2 2 13<4 0 7 7 497 
.E80.001. £100.000 I 1 85 0 1 1 9~ 

.£100.001 . £150,000 
0 2 2 1:.17 0 6 6 691 

£150.001 • £200.000 0 0 ~ 0 0 2 2 365 

Total 
0 20 20 977 0 27 27 2.003 

Pension Benefits 

The local Government Pension Scheme (Non hem Ireland) (lhe Scheme! which Is o funded defined beneflt pension scheme. which 
provides retirement benellls for council employees on a •career overage revalued eort"~rtgs· basis from I Apr11 2015. Pflor to !hot dole 
benefits were bull! up on o •rrnal salary" basis. 

from 1 Aptl120l5, a member bulkb up rellrement pension at the rate ot 1 /49th pensionable pay for eo eh yea. Pension bene!lts In 
relation to me~ between 1 Ap~l2009 ond 31 Morch 2015 were bUll up at the rate of 1/oOth pensionable poy tor each year of 
membership. There Is no oulomallc lump sum provided in respect of membership ofler 31 March 2009. Pension benefits In relation to 
any membership befo1e 1 April2009 were built up at the role of l/801h (pension) and 3/801hs (tax-tree lump sum) of pensionable pay 
for eoch year of membership up to 31 March 2009. AI relirement. members may give up some pension for additional klmp sum, subjecl 
to HM Revenue~ and Customs [HMRCJ limits. lhe convenion role IJ £12 addllionollump sum for every £I of pension given up. 

Councillors hove been able lo join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme oppicalion Is modfled to reHecl the foci lhot counctUors 
hold on elected otflce. Councllor members hove o!woys accrued pension on a coreer overage basis. P~or to 1 APifl201 s pension was 
occlll6d at a rote ot 1/60lh and thereatter at a rate of l/~9th . 
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lhe Scheme 15 fvnded by contributions mode by both ampk>yeas/cOUflCIIors and emplOyers. Prior to I April2009, o member's 
conl~bullon roles were fiXed ol6% of lhei' pensionable remuneration (except for those who were enlllled to conll1bule to lhe Scheme 
at 5'K. before 1 February 2003 and have remained In conlinuous employment). Tiered member conllibullon rates, determined by the 
whole-lime equivalent rote of pay, were Introduced from l Ap!U 2009. From l Ap~l2015. the member cont~bullon roles ore determined 
on the actual r~e of pay. 

lhe ranges for lhe bonds for tiered conl~bullon rates ore reviled by the Deportment for Commun11ies In April each yeor In accordance 
with the Increase applied to a pension in payment. The bonds. effective from I April2019, were os follows: 

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rate' 

Bond Range fmployee ConlrlbuHon Rote 

I £0 - £1.4.800 5.5% 

2 £14.801 -£22.600 5.8% 
3 £22.601 -£37 700 6.5, 

" £37701-£45700 6.~ 
s £45 701 - £90.400 M~ 
6 More them £90.400 10.51; 

Employers' conlrtbullon rotes ore de I ermined by I he fund's actuary every ttvee years oil he lfienniol voluollon. Contnbulion rotes for 
the 2019/20 y&O/' were set from the lrlennlol oclvarlol valuation of the fund os ol31 March 2016. A formallrleMiot actucxial valuation of 
the Fund os ol31 March 2019 was conled out In 2019/20and set the employer contribution roles for the 3 ye<Xs commencing I Aptli 
2020 os follows: 

fable 6· Emolover~!mlrlbvJI.on Roles 
Year Employer Contribution Role 

I Apnl2019- 31 March 2020 20% + 2% dellcll contribution 
1 Ap/12020- 31 March 2021 19.5% 
2Apll202l-31 March2022 19.5%0 

I Aprl2022- 31 March 2023 19.5,. 

•Jhe employer conltlbvlion rates for 2021/22 and 2022/23 remain under review due to the possible impact of the Covld-19 crisis. 

The Local Govemment Pension Schema Regulations (Northern lie land) 20 I .c were mode on 27 June 2014 aod lhs local Government 
Pension Scheme (Amendment and Tronsllionol Provlslonsf Regula lions (Nor them Ireland) 20 I 4 ware mode on 30 June 2014. 8olh seh of 
regulations ora effective from l Aprll2015. 

Covndllors hove been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore hove not accrved significant benefits th\Js far. However. 
the in-year pension conlrlbulions mode by the Counc~ lor otl councilou during 2019/20 was £184,788 (18/ 19 £160,3061. 



lhe value of perulon benefits ollhe most senor management of the Council accrued dutfng the y&Ot wos os lolows: 

Tobla 7: Pension Benefits of senior slalf In 2019/20 (audlled lnlormallon) 
OH! can Accrued Pellllon and Rear Increase In pension CEIV at CETVot Reo! Increase In CETV 

lump Sum (lS) at pension ond related lump sum ol 31/03/20 31/03/19 £'000 
age os at 31/03/20 penslonaoe £'000 1'000 

£'000 £'000 

Suzanne Wylie 50-.55 ~2.5 1.039 976 39 
105·110 !LS} 0-2.5(LS1_ 

Ronan Cregon 50-55 ().2.5 996 923 ..CS 
85-90 (LSI 0-2.5 ItS] 

Slnead Gl!mes 21)-25 5-7.5 302 213 78 
20·25 (LSJ 5-7.5 ll.SI 

Nigel Grimshow 5·10 0-2.5 115 83 19 
0 ILSJ 0 flSI 

JohnWalsh -40-45 2.5-5 773 703 -47 
60·6SILSJ ~2.S ilSI 

John Tuny 0-5 ~2.5 59 29 19 
OllSI 0 ILSI 

Alislolt Reld 0-5 Q-2.5 55 24 20 
OII.SI OILSI 

Gralnla long 
().5 0-2.5 30 13 10 

0 fLSI 0 flSI 

GenyMillar 50-SS 0-2.5 1.110 1.084 21 
11~115 {lSI 0-2.5 {lS} 

The Cash Equivalent transfer Value (C£TV) 
lhls Is I he octuarially assessed capltatlsed value of lhe pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a patlcutor point In lime. the 
benelils valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. Ills a payment 
mode by a pension scheme or arrangement to secvre pension benefits In another pension scheme or arrangement when the member 
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they have accrued in theft former scheme. The pension figures shown 
relate to the benefits that the Individual has accrued os a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, nollusl their 
service In a senior copodly to which disclosU(e applies. CEfVs are calculated In accordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes 
(Transfer Voi\Jes) (Amendment) Regulations and do nottolce account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resvl~ from 
Ulelime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits are talcen. 

The reoltncreaseln the vakle ollhe CElV 
!his reflects the increase In CEfV effectively funded by the employer. lltokes account of the Increase In accrued pension due to 
lnftallon. contributions paid by the employee Oncludlng the value of any beneflls transferred from another pension scheme Of 
arrangement) and uses common mal1<:et valuation factors for lhe start and end of the period. However. the real increase colculatlon 

ornmen.cJctuar1ol factors at the start and end of the peOOd so that If disregards the effect or any changes In factors and focuses 
a5e that is funded by the employer. 



Certlllcole of the Chief Jlnanclal Omcer 

I certify lhol: 

(a) The Statement or Accounts for the year ended on poges 42 to 133 has been prepared In the foon d!recled by the 
Deportment for Communllies and under lhe occounllng policies set out on pages -46 to 69 and poge 122. 

(b) In my opinion 1he Statement of Accounts gives a hve and fair view of the Income and expend! lure and cash flows for the 
financial year and lhe lloonclol poslllon os of the end of lhe f1000ciol ye or ending 31st March 2020. 

Chief flnonelot Officer 

15 December 2020 

these occovnls were approved by resolution of the Strategic Policy & Resource Commiltee on 18 December 2020 

Cholrperson 

18th December 2020 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 

Opinion on financial statements 

I have audited the financial statements of Belfast City Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 
under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements comprise the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance 
Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, together with the Group Accounts and the related notes including 
significant accounting policies. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting 
policies set out within them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is 
described in that report as having been audited. 

In my opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements 
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019-20, 
of the financial position of Belfast City Council and its group as at 31 March 2020 and its 
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and 
Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities' 

directions issued thereunder. 

Basis of opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs). My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and I are independent of Belfast 
City Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Financial Reporting Council's Revised 
Ethical Standard 2016, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs(UK) require 
me to report to you where: 

• the Belfast City Council's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of 
the financial statements is not appropriate; or 

• Belfast City Council have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Belfast City Council's ability to 
continue to adopt the going concern basis. 

Other Information 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information included in the Statement of 
Accounts. The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts 
other than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in the report as 
having been audited, and my audit certificate and report. My opinion on the financial statements 
does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 
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misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in 
this regard. 

Opinion on other matters 

In my opinion: 

• the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Department for Communities' directions made under the Local 
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and 

• the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 
2020 is consistent with the financial statements. 

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities, the 
Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the 
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government 
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice. 

My objectives are to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc .org.uk/auditorsresponsibil ities. This description forms 
part of my certificate. 

This report is made solely to the Members of Belfast City Council in accordance with the Local 
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in the Statement of 
Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local Government Bodies. 

Matters on which I report by exception 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you if: 

• in my opinion: 

o the Annual Governance Statement: 

• does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019-20; 

• does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for 
Communities; 

• is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my 
audit; or 
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o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

o the statement of accounts and the part of the remuneration Report to be audited are 
not in agreement with the accounting records; or 

o I have not received all of the information and explanations I require for my audit, or 

• I issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern 
Ireland) Order 2005; or 

• I designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any 
recommendation made to the Council; or 

• I exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local 
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. 

Certificate 

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts of Belfast City Council in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code 
of Audit Practice. 

Pamela McCreedy 
Local Government Auditor 
Northern Ireland Audit Office 
106 University Street 

Belfast 
BT71EU 

22 December 2020 
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lellost City Council 
Movement In tteserveJ Statement for !ha year ended 31 March 2020 

The Movement In Reserves Statement shows the movement f10m the start of the year to the end on the dlffenmt reserves held by the 
oulhor11y, analysed Into 'usable reserves' (le those I ha! con be oppWed to fund expendllure or redaeo locolloxollon) and other 
'unusable reserves'. The statement shows how the movements In year of the Counclts reserves ore broken down between gains and 
losses Incurred In accordance wtlh generally accepted accounflng pracflces and the statutory adjustment required to rerum to the 
amounts chargeable to cauncft tO)( for the year. lhe Netlnaeose/Decrease Rne shows the stolulory General Fund Balance movemenls 
In the year foUowfng those adjUJimenls. 
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Movemenlln •••orvo• dullng 
llleyeat 

Slxplul/ (Oellclt) on the (18.000,936) 118.000,936) ( 18.000.9361 provision ol services 

Other Comprehensive 24.971,•171 24.971.471 
Income and Elopendllum 

Total Comprehon•lv•lncome (11.000,936) c~a.ooo,mt 14,971,471 6,970,$3$ 
and Expenditure 

A~ustmonls between 
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under regulations 

Netlncreare belorelronsteta 
to Stolutory and Oilier 312.7t2 (lf.tll) 400.000 6,3&7,827 7,010,691 
loreiVol 

Troruren lo /lrorn Statutory 3f9.548 (349,548) 
ond Ott>er ResOlVes 

Other movements 726.052 !Will 61.CXX> 771.994 (3()4,7().4) -47-4.290 

tncroasot Decrease In year 1,315,392 (447,534) 461,000 1,401,858 6,083,123 7,484.981 

-

!-<il}<lri'O'~I",'"'t-")('1) ,.~U?,,. J11'~\fll ),(14.!1 ll!.'fl27 .',J,U·I~!· '1:..38(1~1 

Movement In resef\lol during 
the yoor 

Swplus/ (Oolldl) on lho (12.481.616) (12.487.676) 112.487.676) 
PfOYlslon of sorvlc:os 

Other ComproheNIYe 6,663.426 6,663,428 
Income and Elcpondllure 

fotal Compreh•n•tvelncomo (12,487,676) (12.417.'76) 4,663,421 (5,824,245) 
and Expendtlute 

Ad~stmenls between 
acoounllng basis & funding l o4..ss&,904 342.300 4.572.001 19.47~ (22.498,8711 (3.025.6661 
under reguronoru 

Hot lncreCI$e before 1101111 .. • 
to staMory ond Oth., 2.071,221 342,300 U72.001 U8U29 {15,835,443) (1.149,914) 
••••rv•• 

Tronsrers to //rom Slolutory (856.388) 856.388 ond Other Reserves 

Ott>er movements 1.680.845 (9-4,388) 1.586.457 (1S6.9021 1.429.555 

lncrease1n year 2,195,68f 1,104,300 U72.001 8.571,986 (1 $, 992.345) (7,420,359) 



Beltast City council 
Comprehen11Ve Income and Ellptndlture Stotement for the year ended 3! March 2020 

The Comprehensive Income and Elcpendllure Statement shows tile accovntlng co51 In the year or providing services In accordance 
with generally accepted accounflng pracllce5,rolher lhan the amovnf to be funded from taxation. Councils rolse taxation to cover 
e)CJ)endture In accordance wlth statulory requirements: this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation posllfon Is shown In 
both the Elcpendihxe <r~d funding Analysis and the Movement In Reserves Statement. 
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Bellost CIIY Councl 
Balance Sheet os at 31 March 2020 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Bolonce Sheet dote of the assets and llabnllles recognised by the Councl The net assets 
of the Councl (assets less abi!llles) ore matched by the reserves hold by the Council. Reserves ate reported In lwo categories. lhe filst 
category of reserves are usable reserves. le those reserves that the COUncil may use to provide services. subJect to the need to maintain 
a prodent lever of reserves and any stalvtory Umitollons on their use. The second category of reserves Is those that the Council Is not 
able to use to provide services. This category of reserves lndUdes reserves that hold unreollsed gains and losses (101' example the 
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become ovdloble lo provide services tt the assets ore sold; and reserves that hold 
flmlng differences shown In the Movement In Reserves Statement l ne • A~slments between accounting basis and rundlng bo~s under 
regulollons·. 

long lenn Investments 

Investment In Assoclales and Joint Vont<Kes 

long Term Debtors 
Controc:l Assets 
Contcocl Costs 

Sl1ort Term tnv~ltnents 
tnventOttes 
Shot! Term Debtors 
Cosn ond Cosh EqW<llenls 
Assets Held tor Sole 
Contract Asseh 

Bank Overdroll 
Short Term IIOOO't'Mg 
Short 101m Ctedllors 
Provbtons 
Controct Uoblltku 

long Term Creditors 
ProvWons 
long Term Booowtng 
Other long Term Uoblllkn 
Ooooled Assets Account 
Copilot Grants Receipts In Advance 
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216,290 
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266.607 
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USABlE RESERVeS 
Copilot Receipts Reserve 25 9.7n.o458 5.200.457 
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Capitol fund 25 19,369,748 ~.288.151 
leisure Moblllollon fund 25 887,800 1.441.702 
Ne~hbouthood Rogenerollon Fund 25 &000.000 
Other llatonces and Resecves 25 298.224 1.()63.919 
Generot FUnd 25 28,692,673 25,796,988 

UHUSADlE RESERVES 
Capitol A4Jstment Account 26 -167,891.058 470.959,253 
Rovoluotloll Reso111o 26 187,57 5,231 164.611.507 
Pensions Reserve 26 (182.307,9~21 (1 ... 6.360,9421 
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Ballast City Council 
Cash flow Statement at3l March 2020 

The Cosh Flow Statement shows the changes In cosh and cash equlvolenls ollhe Council during the reporting period. The statement 
shows how the Council generales and uses cash and cash equlvatenls by ctauifylng cosh flows os operallng, lnvesllng and flnonclng 
activities. The amount of net cosh flows arising from operoUng oc11vllies Is a key Indicator of I he extent to which the operattom of the 
Council ore funded by way of toxoHon and grant Income or from the recipients ol services provided by the Cound l. Investing octJvl11es 
represent the extent to which cosh oulllows hove been made for resources which Of'e Intended to conlllbule to the Council's fufiJ(e 
service deUvery. Cash flows OJtslng from financing activities are useful In predicting claims on future cash nows by providers of copilot 
fie borrowing) to the Council. 

Net Dellcll on the provision of services 

Adju$tment for noo·cosh movemenls 

Adjust lorllerm Included Ill the net mp!us Of dellclt on the prolllslon o/ 
sorvtces I hat ae Investing and rtnanctlg actMI!os 

Cosh nows llom Investing Ac!MIIes 

Net c ash flows /ram Financing AeiMnes 

24 
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(12.487.6761 (18,000.9361 

41.007,732 46.5311.139 

(10.200.47.4) (3.393,01 71 

(38.1 13.9-40) 

9.817.681 26.125.958 

-
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

Accounting Policies 

a General Principles 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions for the 2019/20 financial 
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2020. The Council is required to prepare an 
annual Statement of Accounts tn a form directed by the Department for Communities In 
accordance with regulations 3 (7} and (B) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices. 

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on local Authority Accounting In 
the United Kingdom 2018/19, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts Is principally historical 
cost. modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
Instruments. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

i) Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

- Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of 
goods. is recognised when {or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service 
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations In the contract. 

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed -where there Is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as 
Inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

- Expenses In relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made. 

- Interest receivable on Investments and payable on borrowings Is accounted for 
respectively as Income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the 
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received 
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount Is recorded In the Balance Sheet. 
Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled. the balance of debtors is written down and a 
charge made to revenue for the Income that might not be collected. 
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ill Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash Is represented by cash In hand and deposits with financial Institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid 
Investments that mature In six months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

In the Cash Flow Statement cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts 
that are repayable on demand and form an Integral part of the Council's cash 
manaQement. 

ni) Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also 
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either lt Is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised In the Balance Sheet but dlsdosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
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lv) Employee Benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year­
end. They include such benefits as wages and salarles, paid annual leave and paid sick 
leave, bonuses and non-monet01y benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, and are 
recognised as an expense In the year In which employees render service to the Council. An 
accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements !or any farm of leave, eg time off in lieu) 
earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry 
forward Into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the applicable wage and salary 
rate. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. but then 
reversed out through the Movement In Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements are 
charged to revenue In the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 

T ermlnatlon benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to 
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision 
to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an 
accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate 
service segment at the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring. 

Where termination benefits Involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require 
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the 
pension fund or pensioner In the year. not the amount calculated according to the relevant 
accounting standards. In the Movement In Reserves Statement, appropriations are required 
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 

Post Employment Benefits 

The majority of employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland local 
Government Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government 
Ofticers' Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members 
(retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council. 
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The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension fund 

The Northern Ireland local Government Officers' Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined 
benefits scheme. 

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund atlributable to 
the Council are included In the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
method- i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to 
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality 
rates, employee turnover rates , etc, and projections of projected earnings for current 
employees. 

liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 
Aon Hewift GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Employer's lfabt1ities. 

The assets of the Northern Ireland local Government Officers' pension fund attributable to 
the Council are Included In the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

quoted securities- current bid price 
unquoted securities - professional estimate 
property - market value 
unltised securities- current bid price 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed Into the following seven components: 

Within the Cost of Services 

Current Service Cost- the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
(liabilities) resulting from employee service in the current period. 

Past Service Cost- (where applicable) the change in the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation for employee service In prior periods, resulting from a plan amendment 
(the Introduction or withdrawal of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a curtailment {a 
significant reduction in the number of employees covered by the plan) . 

Any Gains or losses on Settlement - {where applicable) arising where a council enters into a 
transaction that eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations for pcr1 or all of the 
hAnP.flts nrovidAci undP.r o dP.finP.rl hAnAflt nlnn. 

Within Financing and investment Income and Expenditure 

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit liability {Asset) - the change in the net defined 
benefit liability (asset} that arises from the passage of time. 
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Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurementsj 
The Return on Plan Assets- excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net 
Defined Benefit Liability (Asset}. This Includes Interest, dividends and other Income derived 
from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, 
less any costs of managing plan assets. and any tax payable by the plan Itself other than tax 
included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation. 

Actuarial Gains and Losses - changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
resulting from: a) experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous 
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and b) the effects of changes In 
actuarial assumptions. 

Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations 
Contributions by Scheme Participants- the increase In scheme liabilities and assets due to 
payments Into the scheme by employees (where Increased contribution Increases pension 
due to the employee In the future). 

Contributions by the Employer- the Increase in scheme assets due to payments into the 
scheme by the employer. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to 
pensioners In the year. not the amount calculated accord1ng to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement. this means that there are transfers to and 
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits 
and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any 
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the 
Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial Impact to the General Fund of being 
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits 
are earned by employees. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in 
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any 
member of staff ore accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted 
for using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland local Government 
Officers' pension fund. 

As a result of Local Government Reform on I April20l5, staff that transferred from Central 
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICSl 
Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums 
and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities 
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifical y to the Council. The scheme Is 
therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future 
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. 
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v) Events After the Balance Sheet Date 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts Is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period -
the Statement of Accounts Is adjusted to reflect such events 

-those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement 
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would 
have a matedal effect. disclosure Is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their 
estimated financial effect. 

The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are 
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and Is usually 
the date the Local Government Auditor issues the certificate and opinion. Where material 
adjustments are made In this period they will be disclosed. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for Issue are not reflected in the Statement 
of Accounts. 

vl) Exceptional Items 

When items of Income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or 
in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the Items are to an 
understanding of the Council's financial performance. 

vil) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes In Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change In accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, 
I.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of 
transactions, other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial 
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) 
by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new 
policy had always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

During 2019/20 the Council revised its Heritage Asset policy and this is Included in section xxl 
of Note 1. Any necessary restatements have been reflected in the relevant notes and 
statements in the Accounts. 
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During 2019/20 the Council reviewed its methodology for the estimation of depreciation on 
vehicles. An Improved methodology has been applied during 2019/20 and Is reflected In the 
relevant notes and statements In the accounts, and will be applied for future years to more 
accurately reflect the pattern of use and consumption of vehicle assets. This change does 
not alter the council's current accounting policy for vehicles nor their measurement bases. 
as set out In section xix of Note l. 

vtlll Financial Instruments 

financial liabflrties are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a parly 
to the contractual provisions of a financial Instrument and are Initially measured at fair value 
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
Interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability. multiplied by the effective 
rote of interest for the Instrument. The effective lnteresl rote is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised. 

For most of the borrowings that the Council has. this means that the amount presented In the 
Balance Sheet Is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest): and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable 
for the year according to the loan agreement 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be 
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the 
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount 
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the 
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial instruments 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that 
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. 
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at: 
- amortised cost 

The Council's business model is to hold Investments to collect contractual cash flows. 
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost. except for those whose 
contractual paymenls are not solely payment of principal and interest (ie where the cash 
flows do not take the form of a basic debt Instrument). 
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Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cast 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost ore recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial Instrument and are 
Initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. 
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line In the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable ore based on the 
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the Instrument. For 
most of the financial assets held by the Council. this means that the amount presented In the 
Balance Sheet Is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued Interest) and interest 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the 
vear in the loon as:~reement. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition ot an asset are credited or debits to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expendffure Statement. 

Expected Credit Loss Model 

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised 
cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to 
lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade 
receivables (debtors) held by the Council. 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might 
not tok.e place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Cred!f risk ploys a 
crucial part In assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an Instrument was 
Initially recognised, losses ore assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased 
signiflcianfly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses 
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Financial Assets Measured al Fair Value through Profit or loss 

Financial assets that ore measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as 
they arrive In the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. 

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 
- Instruments with quoted market prices - the market price 
- other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis. 

The Inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised In accordance with the following 
three levels: 

• Level 1 Inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets that the 
authority can access at the measurement date. 
• Level2 Inputs -inputs other than quoted prices Included within levell that ore observable 
for the asset, either directly or Indirectly. 
• Level31nputs - unobservable inputs for the asset. 

Any gains and losses that arise on fhe derecognition of the asset ore credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 
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ix) Foreign Currenc:y Translation 

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the 
transaction Is converted Into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the 
transaction was effective. Where amounts In foreign currency are outstanding at the year­
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or fosses 
are recognised In the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line In the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

X) Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account. by instalments or in arrears. government grants and third parly 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
asslKance that: 

-the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments. and 
- the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied In the asset In the form of the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential 
must be returned to the transferer. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied 
are carried In the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or 
contribution Is credited to the relevant service line (altributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants 
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where capitol grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to 
the Cap/tal Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied. ltls posted to the Capitol 
Adjustment Account Amounts In the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to 
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
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xi} Inventories & Long Term Contracts 

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
The cost of Inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formula. 

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations 
satisfied based on the goods or services transferred to the service recipient during the 
financial year. 

xil) Overheads and Support Services 

The majority of overheads and support services are included in the expenditure of the 
Strategic Policy & Resources Committee in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement . 

.xffi) Landflll Allowance Scheme 

The Land fill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme (Northern 
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the 
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there 
are no tradable allowances. lt is not a 'cap and trade' scheme since landfill allowances are 
not tradable. For this reason. landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance 
Sheet. 

xlv) Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled 
by the Council as a result of past events {e.g. software licences) ls capitalised when it is 
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the Intangible 
asset to the Council. 

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is 
technically feasible and is Intended to be completed (with adequate resources being 
available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver 
service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it 
con be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during 
the development phase (research expenditure Is not capitalised). 

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or 
primarily intended fa promote or advertise the Council's goods or services. 

Intangible assets are measured Initia lly at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active 
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are 
therefore carried of amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is 
amortised over its useful life to the relevant servic e line(s) In the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the asset might be impaired- any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service 
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on 
the disposal or abandonment of an Intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in fhe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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Where expenditure on Intangible assets quallfies as capitol expenditure for statutory 
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to 
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance In the Movement In Reserves Statement and posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sate proceeds greater than £5,000) the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. 

xv) Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met If the property is used In any way to facilitate the 
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are measured Initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the 
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measureable date. As a non-financial asset. Investment properties are 
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued 
annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation 
are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line In the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement. The same treatment Is applied to gains 
and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received In relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result 
In a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses 
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an Impact on the General Fund 
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the 
Capital Receipts Reserve. 

xvi) leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee. All other leases ore classified as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are 
considered separately for classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
In return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the 
arrangement Is dependent on the use of specific assets 
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The Council as Lessee - Finance lease 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance 
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at Its fair value measured at the lease's inception 
(or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower}. The asset recognised Is 
matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council 
are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are 
applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents o re charged as expenses In the 
periods in which they ore Incurred. 

Lease payments are apportioned between: 
a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property,plant or equipment - applied to 
write down the lease liability, and 
b . a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the 
lease term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset 
does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period) . 

The Council is not required to raise district rotes to cover depreciation or revaluation and 
Impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution Is mode 
from revenue towards the deemed capital Investment in accordance with statutory 
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and Impairment losses are therefore substituted 
by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction 
with the Capital Adjustment Account In the Movement In Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two. 

Operallng teases: 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased 
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on o straight-line basis over the life of the 
lease, even If this does not match the pattern of payments re.g.there Is a rent-free period at 
the commencement of the lease). 
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The Council as Lessor • Finance lease 

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the relevant asset Is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of 
the lease, the carrying amount of the asset In the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant 
and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) Is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. A gain, representing the Council's net Investment in the lease, is credited to the 
same line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal !I.e. nelted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal), matched by a lease asset (long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet. 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
a. a charge for the acquisition of the Interest in the property- applied to write down the 
lease debtor together with any premiums received, and 
b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is 
not permitted by statute to Increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated 
as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General 
Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve In the Movement In Reserves Statement. 
Where the amount due In relation to the lease asset Is to be settled by the payment of rentals 
ln future financial years, this Is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deterred 
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement In Reserves Statement. When the future rentals 
are paid, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset ls used to write 
down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve. 

The written-off value of dlsposals Is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of non­
current assets Is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital AdJustment Account from the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement In Reserves Statement. 

The Council as lessor - Operating lease 

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a properly or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset Is retained In the Balance Sheet. Rental income Is credited to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the llfe of the lease, even if this does not match 
the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). 
Initial direct costs incurred In negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying 
amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same 
basis as rental income. 
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xvli) Surplus Assets 

Surplus assets are non-operational assets that do not meet the conditions to be classified as 
assets held for sale. They are measured at fair value, reflecting the actual market state and 
conditions at the balance sheet dote (which Is the valuation date) with best evidence of fair 
value in an active market for similar properties in the some location. The council classifies 
assets to surplus assets on the advice of Its estates management officers and In consultation 
with Its external property valuers. 
The surplus assets held by the council comprise a number of properties including land. 
buildings or sites of land and buildings combined. which have not reached the stage where 
the council can market these for sale advantageously, or where the properties have 
restriction~ thot orAvent them ~urrentlv belno brouaht to morket 

xvlll) Olsposals and Non~Current Assets Held for Sale 

When If becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as 
an Asset Held for Sale. The asset Is revalued immediately before reclassification and then 
cartied at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there Is o 
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair 
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses In the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for 
Sole. 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower o f Its carrying amount before 
they were classified as held for sale: adjusted for depreciation. amortisation or revaluations 
that would have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sole, and their 
recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 

Assets that ore to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale. 

When an asset Is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for salej is written off to 
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any} are 
credited to the same line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as 
part of the gain or foss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at 
the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Amounts greater than £5k received for a disposal ore categorised as capitol receipts and 
credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement In Reserves Statement. 

The Wlitten~ff value of disposafs is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of non~ 
current assets Is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund 
Balance In the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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xlx) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, for rental to others. or for administrative purposes and that are expected 
to be used during more than one financial year are classified os Properly, Plant and 
Eouinment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of 
the Item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not odd to an 
asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential!l.e .• repairs and 
maintenance) is charged os on expense when it Is incurred. The Council applies a de­
minimis level of £25k to Plant & Machinery, Information Technology equipment. Fixtures & 
Fittings and Office equipment, meaning only assets over £25k ore capitalised. Subsequent 
capital expenditure Is only capitalised where it provided an enhancement to the economic 
benefits of the asset in excess of those previously addressed. 

Measurement 

Assets ore initially measured at cost, comprising: 
a. the purchase price 
b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 
c. the Initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site 
on which it is located 

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. 
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The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase Is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (ie it will not lead to a variation in the cash 
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost 
of the acquisltlon Is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 

Donated assets ore measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and 
any consideration paid Is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain Is held in the Donated Assets Account. 
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. they 
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account In the 
Movement In Reserves Statement. 

Assets are then carried In the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction -depreciated historical 
cost 
-short life assets. Including rood vehicles, plant and equipment, fixtures and fittings, office 
equipment, and IT and IT equipment- depreciated historic cost as a proxy for current value 
- surplus assets- fair value (at highest and best use) 
- investment properties- measured Initially at cost and subsequently at fair value as outlined 
in accounting policy note xiv 
-all other assets- service potential (current value) 

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of 
an asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value. 

Valuation 

The Council operates a rolling programme for the revaluation of Land and Buildings with 
approximately 25% of these being revalued by physicaiinspection each year and the 
remainder being revalued by a desktop exercise. Increases in valuatlons are matched by 
credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might 
be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise 
from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 
Into the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be Impaired. Where Indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be 
material. the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this Is less than the 
carrying amount of the asset. an Impairment loss Is recognised for the shortfall. 
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Where impairment losses are Identified, they are accounted for by: 

a. where there Is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset In the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance {up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains), 
b. where there Is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line[s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where an impairment loss Is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service lfne(s)ln the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount 
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had 
not been recognised. 

The same accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a general fall in 
asset prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of economic benefit specific to 
an asset as is In the case of Impairment losses. 



Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreclable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for 
assets w ithout a determinable finite useful life (I.e. freehold land and certain Community 
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on the following classes of tangible asset: 

- buildings, installation and fittings are depreciated on their fair value over the estimated 
remaining Jives of those assets as advised by the Independent Chartered Surveyors. 
Depending on the type of building. lnstaUatlon or fitting the maximum useful life will be a 
range up to 60 years. 
- infrastructure assets, short-fife assets, Including road vehicles, plant and equipment, fixtures 
and fittings. office equipment, and IT and IS equipment are depreciated over their estimated 
useful fives. 

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
- straight-line allocation of the estimated useful lives 
- depreciation is charged in the month of capitalisation but not in the month of disposal 

Componentfsatlon 

Where an Item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant In relation to the total cost of the Item. the components are depreciated 
separately. 

Componentlsatlon Is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment assets. 
The Council applies the following de-minimis levels In relation to componentisation: 
- a component should be valued separately if it is greater than or equal to 3% of the total 
value of the asset and 
- the individual component has a valuation of greater than or equal to £3001c 

Revaluatlons 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated. with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
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xx) Community Assets 

From 1 Aprll2017, community assets are recognised, measured and accounted for at their 
depreciated historic cost. The historical cost of a community asset Is deemed to be the 
carrying amount of an asset as at 1 April 2007 or at the date of acquisition, whichever date Is 
the later, and adjusted for subsequent depreciation or impairment lif applicable). 

Community assets that consist of land or that have an Indeterminable useful life will not be 
depreciated but will be subject to annual review for Impairment. Community assets that are 
depreclable, or that have depreclable components, and hove a determinable useful life w ill 
be depreciated systematically at a constant (straighHne) rate over their useful lives, os well 
as being subject to Impairment review if there is evidence of excessive deterioration or that 
their value to the Council Is below their then carrying amount. 

Depreciation on community assets will be charged on an annual basis to the appropr1ate 
service of the Councn in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services In 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

lO<i) Heritage Assets 

Her1tage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribullon to 
knowledge and culture. 

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved In trust for future 
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations. They would be 
held by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of 
heritage. 

The Council's collection of Heritage Assets (Works of Art and Civic Items) Is reported In the 
balance sheet at insurance valuation, which is based on market values, or If it is not possible 
to obtain a valuation, they are maintained at historical cost less any depreciation, 
amortisation or Impairment losses. These insurance vafuations based on market values are 
updated on a periodic basis. Where no cost con be measured reliably, heritage assets are 
not held at a monetary value and are not reported In the balance sheet. Such assets will 
continue to be retained by the Council and will form part of its heritage assets collection, 
and will be reported in summary by way of a note to the financial statements. 
Summary Information on Heritage Assets has been provided for transactions in 2018/19 and 
20 I 9120 financial years. Detailed Information relating to transactions has not been included 
for prior years as it would not be practical to do so and there Is little value added for the 
users of the accounts. 
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xxii) Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits 
or service potential. and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
For Instance, the Council may be Involved in a court case that could eventuaUy result in the 
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line In the Comprehensive 
income and Expenditure Statement In the year that the Council becomes aware of the 
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure 
required to settle the obligation, taking Into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried In the 
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year­
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and 
credited back to the relevant service. 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered 
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this Is only recognised as Income for the 
relevant service If it Is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received If the Council 
settles the obligation. 

xxlil) Reserves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, lt Is charged to the 
appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services In 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve Is then transferred 
back: into 1he General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rates for 
the expenditure, 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, 
financial instruments, retirement benefits and employee benefits and do not represent 
usable resources for the Council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the 
accounts. 
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xxiv) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

Services, support services and trading accounts ore debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

a . depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 
b . revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off 
c. amortisation of Intangible fixed assets aHributoble to the service. 

The Councn Is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation and 
Impairment losses or amortisations. However, lt Is required to make an annual contribution 
from revenue to contribute towards the reduction In its overall borrowing requirement [equal 
to either on amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in 
accordance with statutory guidance]. Depreciation, revaluation and Impairment losses and 
amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance 
{minimum revenue provision (MRP)], by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account In the Movement In Reserves Statement for the difference between the . 

xxv) Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure Incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure 
to the relevant service In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement In the year. 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing. a transfer In the Movement in Reserves Statement from the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged, so that there is no impact on the level of District Rates. 

xxvi) Value Added Tax 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable Is excluded from income. 

xxviil The Carbon Reducllon Commitment Scheme (CRC) 

The Council Is required to participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy 
Efficiency Scheme. The scheme is currently in the last year of its Introductory phase, which 
ends on 31st March 2014. The Council is required to purchase and surrender allowances, 
currently retrospectively. on the basis of emissions, i.e . carbon dioxide produced as energy is 
used. As carbon dloxlde Is produced (I.e . os energy is used), a liability and an expense are 
recognised. The liability will be discharged by surrendering a llowances. The liability is 
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation, norrnolly 
at the current market price of the number of allowances required to meet the liability at the 
reporting date. The cost to the Council is recognised and reported In the costs of the 
Councils services and Is apportioned to services on the basis of energy consumption. There 
were no costs to be disclosed In 2019/20. 
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xxviil) Landflll Exploration and Evaluation 

The Council considers the facts and circumstances to determine whether an exploration and 
evaluation asset should be recognised In respect of the landflll site including assessment of 
the amount. tlmlng and certainty of future cash flows under I FRS 6. The Council's landfnl site 
produces gas to generate electricity and the income from this electricity generation is 
reducing year on year due to environmental and other uncontrollable variables. In 2019-20 
the costs of production of gas were outweighed by the income and resulted net gain of 
£77k, The Council does not recognise any asset In respect of this gas production as any 
forecasting or estimating of future Income Is uncertain. The Council cannot reliably measure 
or value such an asset under !AS 38. 

xxix) Fair Value Measurement 

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and Investment 
properties and some of Its financial Instruments such as equity shareholdings [other financial 
Instruments as applicable] at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value Is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Jiabi6ty takes place either; 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b) in the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. 

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or llabllily using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a 
market participant's abDity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use. 

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data Is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value Is 
measured or disclosed in the Council' s financial statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy. as follows: 
• Level 1 -quoted prices (unadJusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the authority can access at the measurement date 
• Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability. either directly or Indirectly 
• Level3- unobservable Inputs for the asset or liability. 

xxxl Capital Receipts Unapplied 
This represents capital receipts that are held on the balance sheet to financ e future capital 
expenditure. Income from disposal of fixed assets is posted Into the capltal receipts 
unapplied account until such time as If Is aUocated to finance other capital expenditure. 

The amount of £ 112k in capital receipts unapplied relafes to the remaining proceeds from a 
disposal to the NIHE which is being used to finance a playground. 
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b Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted 

At the balance sheet date, the following new standards and amendments to existing 
standards have been published, but not yet adopted by the Code of Practice for Local 
Authority Accounting: 

a) Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long~term Interests in 
Associates and Joint Ventures 

b) Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle 

c) Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment. CurtaUment or Settlement 

d) On implementation of I FRS 16 for local government there will be a requirement for 
Councils that are lessees to recognise most leases on their balance sheet as a right of use 
assets with corresponding lease llabnities (with exemptions for low value and short term 
leases) 

c Critical Judgements In Applying Accounting Policies 

In applying accounting policies set out from 1 a above the Council has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those Involving uncertainty about future events. 
The critical judgements made In the Statement of Accounts are: 
Landtill Provision 
The calculation of the necessary financial provision for the capping and aftercare costs for 
the landfill sUe depends on a judgement around the appropriate discount rate to be used 
and the number of years over which these costs need to be provided. The land fill provision 
figures are sensitive to the assumptions used. The impact of amending the Interest rates 
used to discount this provision has been mitigated through the creation of a Provision 
Discount Rate Reserve to accommodate fluctuations in the current value of the annual 
calculation of long term provisions for landfill costs. 

d Assumptions Mode About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

Pension Liability 

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to Increase, 
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A 
firm of consulting actuaries AON Hewitt is engaged to provide the Council wifh expert advice 
about the assumptions to be applied. The pension figures disclosed In these financial 
statements are sensitive to the assumptions used. 

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded 
defined benefit obllgalion as at 31 March 2020 and the projected service cost for the year 
ending 31 March 2021 is set out in Note 20. 
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Belfast City Council 
Nohu to lho financial Slolemenh 
fOR THE YEAR fNDEO 31 MARCH 2020 

2 
Q 

The &pendilure and Funding Analysis shows how annual e~pendllure Is used and funded from resources (government grants. rents. and 
rotes) by local aulhontles In comparison wilh those resources consumed or eamed by aulhorllies In accordance with generally accepted 
accounting p~acllces. 11 also shows how this expenditure Is allocated for decision making purposes between the counclrs commlllees. 
Income and t!xpendilure accounted tor under generolly accepted occoun ling pracllces Is presented more fully in I he Comprehensivo 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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lelfa1l Clly Council 
Not•• to ltlo flnonclal Statemenb 
fORTHEYEARENDEO 31 MARCH 2()20 

2 

b 

lhls note provides a reconcUioUon of the main adjustments to Net Fxpendllure Chargeable to the General fund to arrive at the amounts In the 
Comprehensive Income and &pendllure Slate man!. The relevant transfers between reserves ore explcined In the Movement In Rese/Ves Statement 

Ad]wlmenlt between funding and AccounH11g la•ts 

--- - -

AdJ...Il"' cwh I·N·r~ C~:t r.o' i'r..: r 1 I!) " " I"C' u l th,- · ''d~"• • ' t'l(.lt'I I Ji c· Ne·' ('l· ot,lj,_... I >'! (\hctll.11uiO•i CL till r,'o)r. ~ IO'l•l 
l;ontp n lll nt'•' " l rcNt~t' (il'l:J ! ~pt! t>11 ... tlt C ~•r • 'v 11, :• i'~·r : lt'"l ,'\cl, •t'I"J ' \'~ ' ' \!t• • . .o'o•v '·' Jo..+~1n·~ · • ' • 
, , , fM, t.' l ' f A I~·'J ,,, P-. tJ C.ICI .ndjl'l'l •hJ I 5 ,W, l: . •h lt• l 1\ 

~~-.o~~~ 
-

Slral~ PoJIJ:ll & ResOU"ces 13.213..671 14.918.~1 48.169 I 110179 . {6,973,773} 

City Growth & R.aenerallon 14~72A66l 1920."6t 11.8511 1253.791i (5,748,7261 

Peep~!~! CommuniUes (17.()117 160) {5,&65,716) HO.Z~ 122.963 6311 

Planning & Uceru'n2 1909.674] 13,45.5 . 1!196.0191 

INel\. I 124.813.095 12.614,660 4t.z11J 85UH IJ6.681,149J 

Other lncoma and Elcpendlltxelrom !ha 2~.816.973 (1,937,3401 . (1.680.84~1 21.198J88 
£lcpendlt~Na and fundtlg Anolysls 

o~rerenc:e between Grmeral fUnd surplus or dDIIc:lt (56,1221 (14.557.0001 of9.2l8 1824,4571 (15.383.3611 
and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement SUrplus or Delldt ont/ie Pto..Won or 
Services 

AdJullmDntl belw••n funding and Accounftnglaslt 

--- 201f/lt 
ll, 'JII ~I"' l •'·~ l \ full ' (,, f h 1t If ~ .rt 1n ,_ , 1~t~ r)f h *' flr'J• ,, , .... ,.hI ' ••ct rt-...,"")jCO t:rr L'~ , ~lq ' • ( (rt11,( I I • I I ' I 
: - 11 1 ' 'I ' "' . r~ '1, l t l • q 11 I 'l llt',ri'Cr -tt {I ' t ,J l'"l(t ' ' ' tr\\ >11 ,"o l I 1 ' I 11 l l I·' IY •I 1 1,, I ,, 
\ I, ...... , . ,. ,, ., • "h ,,_ ... .. ....... , .lt 1\ u ........ 

tt ~· ·• .. I 

SlraleQic POiev & RorourcM f3,284,21J0t 117.218,473.1 112.1161 526,:101 I:IO.o-48..1681 

qty_GmW!h & Rec;eneraUon I4.0.S.S.1971 1575.7291 rJ9.438l _l875.~oi9J {5.536 113j 

~ & Communltlos Ill A175,Sil0l 13.6S2..1911 )0,070 115.317.7011 

Pion '*'cl & UcenllniJ . 1529.803i 10.185 . (519-'161 . 
Net Cost a! Servlc•• (IU25057) (21 976"'"} . {71.2t9J (349.&44) (41,422.100) 

Other lncomo Qnd El<pendli~Ne lrom lha 
IEiopenclturn and FIJI'IdM Ana~ 25.191.5~8 ('2.512.8041 . (64S,972J 22.032.712 

Ollterence b111lwoen G111neral fund surplus ordDiidl 
and Compreherulvo Income and £lcpendlture 
Slolemonl SUrplus 01 Doficl on I he ProVIsion ot 
Services 6.166.491 (2.4.489,0001 111.2991 1'95.5201 119.389.328, 

fach commllloe Is respoosible lorlhe delvery ot key service• to lho Councll and IIIo main servk:eslncludod In each commlllee b as follows: 

Sllaleglc Policy 11nd Re1ources Commlll•• 
The oel expendltwe ollhls committee Includes legol and CMc Services, finance and ReSOUlces, Oty Orgonlsallon Sllucture and M<JJor Pro{ecls and Corporate 
Prlollllos wllh Human Rosourcos and Good Rek:rllons. 

Clly Growth and legenoralon CommiHee 
'The net expencllure ollhe oommlllee lnclldes Ecoi'IOiric ~lives and Oty RegeNII'OIIOo. Oly Events and Venueslnctud'.ng OII.Sireel Car Policing, f'l<lce and 
Economy and Ports &tohnanciZoo. 
l'eopl• and Commuii!Hes CommUte• 
Th8 nol expendii~Ne of lhecommiUea Includes Cleanmg, Waste Management and vehlclos, Porb, Cemetories and lelstKe Centres, env~nlol Haallh, 
Nelghbo~Nhood csncl orwelopment <~nd communnv Se!vk:Dt. 
Planning and Ucen1lng 
ll1e ne1 expendiiUIB ~eludes Plonn~ ond Build!~ Control servk:<n. 
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Ballast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE VEAR END£D 31 MARCH 2020 

Employee Benetils Expenses 
Other Services Expendilure 
Supporl Service Recharges 
Depreciation, Amortlsollon, Impairment 
lnt«esl Payments 
[Gdn) on the Disposal of /Isseis 
Other Expenditure 
Total Expenditure 

Fees, Charges and other service Income 
Interest and tnvestmenttncome 
Distllct role Income 
Government grants and Contributions 
Support Service Income 
Other Income 
Total Income 

Deficit an the Provision ol S.rvlcal 

b Revcnu" from conlrocll wilh sorv!cc rcclplcnls 

I ' 

~ 

11 
9 
8 

' £ 

9 
10 
ID 

' t ' 

I 
69.672.827 88,602,500 

123,015,131 126.408.328 

21,084,470 19.025,057 
2.038,666 l.61t.731 
(237,798) {80,080) 
3,272.000 3,462,942 

238,84~.248 239,250.478 

(46.329.0t 7) (44,276,478) 
(t0.744.838) (t3.984.884) 

(155,996,334) {154,776,084) 
(11,287,383} (8,212.096) 

1226!357,672! (221,249!542! 

12,487,474 18,000,936 

On tronslllon to I FRS 1 S. there Is no Impact on the Belfast Cily CO\Jncll revenue recognition for c ontracls wllh cuslomers. 

Amounts Included In the Compreheruive Income and Expenditure Statement for contracts with service recipients: 

Strategic Policy & Resources 
Clly Growth & Regeneration 
People & Communilies 

Total Included In Comprehensive Income and 
Expeodllure Statement 7,960,268 

9\1,423 
3.146.839 

7,981,917 

Revenue from conlracls with service recipients Includes services such as I ha provision o f IT support. I ha provision of off street cor porlcing facilities, 
and the sole of recyclate. Income Is recognised os I he contract obfigallon Is satisfied and received In ooeo11 alter each event. 

lhe Council has oppfied the accounting standard to determine revenue recognlllon under !FRS 15. 

Amounls Included In !ha Balance Shaet for contracts with service reclplents: 

Receivables. which ore Included In debfoll 
Contract Assets 
Contract Uoblr.lles 
Other 
Toto! tneluded In Net Assets 

• ·~!'.o--· • ___ _ 

378,981 
(277.3871 

101.594 

3 
1,947.969 

1,947,969 

n 



a 

Atl)usln•~nh hci11Pcn un Accounlin!J Ba>i> ond Funding flfdsunclcr RcqulaiiOI\$ • ' · • 7 • 
flmoll"'ls included in !hp CtHllJ)IPiu~n::.ivl· tn~on1(~ ond ~ •pPnc111urt:> Stolcnwnl hvt rcqurrf!rl IJy :; tu lute tO be e.o.d utJcd when dde11ninnlH U1 t · 
t·.,,o\ cmcnl on I ha C.r1H•rt.JI Fund Balunc~ for On: 'r'(~'UI: • ; ', 

4 

AiiOuntfiM!Jtlid Jnlli · com ehe'iistvo lrieoini and 
determining the Movement on the General fund Bolonce forlhe ye or: 

lmpoltm&nb Posses & reversals) of non-current 
anels 
Derecognitlon (other than disposal) of non·currenl 
assets 11 

Revaluation lncreotes/decreases taken to 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision ol Services 11 1,605,228 (6,312,957) 

Depreciation charged In I he year on norrcVtrenl 
assets 11 19,364.089 20,969,317 18.313.01<4 12,000.057 

Net Revenue e~pellditure funded from copilot 
under slalvle 12 

Canylng amount ot non current onets sold 11 <4,704,852 350.000 
Proceeds from the sole of PP&E, Investment 
properly and intangible assets 8. 2~ (-4,9-42,6501 (237.798) (430,080) (80,060) 

Difference between finance cosls calculated on 
on accounting basis and Pnonce costs calculated 
In accordance with sloluiOIY requirements 

Net charges mode for rellrement benefits In 
accordance with IAS 19 20 30.234.000 38.826.000 

Direct revenue financing of Copilot Expenditure 12.25 (7,870.253) {9,239,567) 

Capitol Grants and Donated Assets Receivable 
and Applied In year 10 (5.252,737) (2.919,677) 

Capital Grants Receivable and Unapplied In year 10 (5,087) (133,188) 

Roles Claw-Back Reterve 

Adjustments In relation lo Short-term compensated 
absences 26 5,800 13,595 

Adjustments In relation to lessor Arrangemenls 

land fill Regulollons Reserve Adjustment 

Provisions Discount Role Reserve Adlustmenl 26 (55,()98/ 57.704 
Amoun!J nol Included In the Comprehensive 
Income and !xpendtture Statement but required by 
statute to be Included when delermlnlng the 
Movement on the General Fund Balance for I he 

staluiOIY Provision for the financing of Copilot 
Investment 26 (7,5~7.320/ (5,874,1 16) 

l:mployers contributions payable fo the NILGOSC 
and retrrement benefits payable dlrecllo 
pensioners 20 (t5,662,000) (t4,337.000J 

t ,. • · • · .. t· ..... t. .. ,. .,fi1~S5B,904 ~-.:- ~ .. · :e 3·},/28 



b 

25c (2,061.597) (2.081 ,597) 247.604 247,604 
fund 

25d 553,902 553,902 262.632 262.632 

25 

(3.300) (10,688) 

25f 674,607 671~7 IISO,OOOJ {160,688) 

Cost of Sorv!ce< on Contin11ln~ Opcrutlons • . ~ ·, . - . • - - -

Under Section 79 of I he local Govemmenl Acl (Norlhern lrelood) 2014, the Council has the power lo do anylting thal individuals generally may 
do. Councils hove the power lo do I his wllh or wilhoul charge. The power of compelence Is no I Wmlled to beneijlflng the area or Its residenls 
nor Is 11 Umlled by exlsling powers. 

There was expenditure of £20k under I he power of compehmce during 2019/20. 

External Avdll Faas · · · _ 

The Councll hos incurred ihe loll owing cosls relating lo I he annual audit ol I he Slolemenl of Accounts, certiRcoflon of grant claims and olher 
services provided by the Councils external auditors. 

The were no olher fees payable In respecl of any olher services provided by the appointed oud'rtor over and above those described above. 

The reduction In the Performance lmprovemenl audil fee for 2019/20 will be accounted for in the 2020/21 accounl$. 
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6 

ll'le Cound teases out a number or land assets by long term l11ases wllh lease terms Ieo m 250 to 999 years. lhe leases for 250 yeo6 
01e on a perpelunl basis and it Is anumed the leoms wiR be renewed so the economic substance is simclar to disposal. U1e rent~ 
Income Is ellher r¥1 or Sp per annum. lien I is no I nOlmally received on lhese p!operlies and flJiure mirimum lease Income is 
amomed lobe nil. 

The prescnl valUe of tease poymenls rec eivable under tho finance lease nrrangemenb Is recognised os a roceivabte and 
Included in both short and long lerm debto11. the diff6fence between I he gross amount recelvabte and the present vo:uo ol thlt 
omounls rocoivuble Is recogniled os Unearnoc.t finance lr\comc. 

No contingent rents were recognised os recniiioble by lhe Council. 

lhe Council. in a!"cordonce with its stotulory and dscretionory resporuibi~fles. leases our properly and equipment under operating leases for the 
lollowing putposes; 
• for the prov'.slon of COlornuoily services, such os sporls laclilies. lourfsm services and communily centres 
·for economic developmenl purposes to provide suiloble affordable accommodalion for smoll local busloesse~ 
• any other pvrposes 

; 

Rental Income re<:ogmed In tile Comprehensive Income ond Elcpendilure Statement in the current year amounts to .£6,71 5.859 (18 ·19 £6A40,849). 
No conlingenl renls wcm recogME!d. 

The lease conlrach ore all non-e cmcellable and do not int.lude on e~temion option. ' he lease lerms ore bolwoen 1 and 125 yeurs. future 
minimum lease income is se I oul below: 

- 1 

IMiiilmum ease ranta s recelvab e: 
No lot er than 1 yea I 
Loler than I venr and no JQJer_lhon S years . I 
Laler thall S"lleOis I 

LG!IanMres.I!J 
Bul_ldir\gs· and Equipment 

£ £ 

6.121 D46 r 
21.353,343 I I 

4l9 • .o!ll.l&S 

4~~ E-87.754 

- - I 

6,330,814 
2LI56,1s-4 ) 

422,374,653 I 

449,ae 1 til 

lho am~ls lemed by the Council la third porlles arn lnclwded in the following cotegodes of Property, Plant ond Equipment wllh conyrng values of: 

93,650.000 • 96,080.000 -

Council as Lessee 
c floance Leases {Counc:II:QJ lessee) 

lhe Cowncll has o number of ossels of rand held by long term leases from 980 to 10.000 yeurs. Renlol incontc is between 1 p le £31. par annum. if 
demanded. Rent Is no I normony demanded on lhese properties ond therefore future minimum lease poyrnenls ore assumed lo be nU. 

the assets acquired under these leases oro c orrtod as properly. ptont and aqulprncnl in lhe 8(1Jonce Sheet at lho lollowlllg net amounts: 

2019/20 2018/19 



The Council Is leasing o ~nbof o f ollice buildings with lease teems up lo 15 years and velllclel/office equipment with lease terms up to 5 years. 

The expenditure charged to services In lhe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement dunng the year in relalion to these teases was: 

No sub~eose paymenls or contingent rent payments were mode or recelved. No sublease Income is expected os all assets held under 
operating lease agreements ae used exclusively by the Council. 

The future minimum lease poymenh due under non-concslloble operating leas os In fulure years ore set out below: 



7 Employoo Co1l~ ond Mombor Altowoncos 
a Slo!l Co•ls 2019/20 2018/IY 

ISolorles and Wages 
!Employers NIC I 
ftmployers Superonnvollon I 

I 
69.303.3521 
6.617.31ll 

13.752.164 

68,192,147 
6,331.569 

14,078,784 

To!al slofl co~ls 69,612,827 88,&02,500 

The above si all costs Include tho costs of voluntary redundancies in ?.OIY/20. These costs tolal £977,075116/19 £2,003,028) and oro disClosed 
scporolely in Table 4 of the Remuneration Report. In oddillon, ogancy costs during the year omounled lo £5.626,073 (2018/19 £4.81 8.572). 

The Councirs current conlrlbulion role lo NILGOSC scheme Is 20'.1ro plus a 2% Dcijcit Rec:oYery Confrlbulion. 

Average Number of Employus • whare FTE repr'esenlt lunUme equtvatenf employees 

- -

b Average Number ol Employeos 2019/20 2018/19 
; -.':. - ·:. -· - ··" ~- - . - FTE . 

I: 
Strategic Policy & Resources 620 62/l, 
c~y Growlh & Rogcnerotion 146 JS31 
People & Communlllos 1.162 1.225 I 
Planning & Ucemlng uo 14Sl 

I .. .. 

2019/20 

Tolol Number 2,211 2,305 

c Senior fmp!oyco~· Remun~rollon 2019/20 2018/19 
. - ~ .,. 

!£50.uo ro £6o-:ooo 62 52 
:£60,001 lo £70.000 22 15 
,£70.001 10 £801 000 6 6 

000 £t!Q,txr 1o £'10.~ 6 4 
1.000 £90.001 lo £100 5 6 

£10(; 1,00110£1 0,000 4 4 
1,001 10 £ ~ !O.OOC 1 1 

I£1?.C I,OOllo £!30.000 . -
£13C 1,00 t to£ 140,000 . -
£140,001 lQ~O,QOO I 1 

lolol Nvmbcr 107 89 
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d l.tlcmb..,r5' A!lowunccs - - - - - - -

a 

- - -- - -- - - --

2019/20 ~Olll/19 
- - -~ - -- -- ..:3::! - £ -=-"' ~ ... 
~ . 
Bosi<: Allowance 898,245 851,196 
Mayor & Deputy MoyOI's Allowance 40,582 41.050 
Spedal ResponslbUIIy Allowance 103,281 106,691 
High She~ Ifs Allowance 6.250 6,2.50 
Mileage 7.249 14.2~8 

Conference & Coooes 8.5~0 5,997 
Travel & Subslslence 6,003 13,493 
MisceRoneous Cosls . 
PCSP AllOwance 10.800 12.360 
Telephone Rental 285 4.~10 

lolnl 1,082,035 I ,055,69~ 

Nollhcrn lrckmd Cl~ll Service t'cmlon Arwngc,l'CI11' 

As a result of local Governmenf Reform on 1st Apill 201 S. staff lronsferred from Central Govemmentto the Council but remain membets of the 
Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Scheme. 

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangements ore unfunded mull~ employer deflned benefit schemes bull he Department for 
Communllles is unable to identify ils shore of !he underlying one Is and liobl1illos. The Government Acluory'l Deportment {GAOl is responsible for 
carrying out scheme voluatlons, lhe Acluary reviews employer contributions every lour years tollowlng lhe scheme voluaHon. The 2016 scheme 
voluolion has been finalised. The outcome of this valuolion lnfooned conlrlbullon roles from Apnl2019 for both employers ond employees. 

For 2019-20, employers' contrlbl.lilons of £327.779 (201 S-19 £20t .3631 were payable lo lhe NICS pension orrongemenls of one ol lhree roles In I he 
range 28.7" to 34.2,.; of pensionable poy, based on salary bands. 

Employets' conlrlbullon rotes ore determined by lhe fund's actuary every llvee years althe triennial varuolion. Contrlbulion rates for lhe 2019/20 
year were set from I he triennial octuarlol voluallon ot the fund as al31 March 2016. A formallrirmniol ocl1.10rlal voluolion of lhe Fund as ot 31 
March 2019 was carried out ln 2019/20, lhe conlribulion roles ore sella meet the cost of the benefits accruing during 2019-20 lobe pold when 
the member re lites. ond not the benems pold during this period to exlsllng pensioners. 

SUi piiiS/D"Iicrt on Non-Cu11enl A»el> ( e xcllnveslrncnl ProfJcil ies) 

2019/20 

""' - ·:.!" :" v~~ ~-< _. 
JeJiftj'!! 

Proceeds from sole r 1.192.6501 J30.080J 
Callying amount of non-<:urrent 
assets sold [excllnvestmenl 
Properties! 954.852 

(237.798) 130.0801 

There are addillonal disposal cosls lolaling £3.8m Included in People & Communllles expenditure. 

2019/20 2018/19 

£: 

Olhor Opowilng Expoutlllure 1019/20 2018/19 

(237.1911) [30,080) 



' flnonclng or.d lnvoslmonl lncon·e orcJ E,pcnd'turo 

0 Inter<> si Payable and Slmlfor Charge< -

b 

c 

d 

e 

20! 9120 2011!/19 
£ 

Leos&/hlre P\Kd\Ose interest . . 
Bonk interesl . 
Government Loon Interest 1,97-4.258 1,733,342 
Commercial Loon Interest . 
Other Interest 64,410 78.389 

2.038.668 1.811.731 

lnlort'~t on::f i~YC!i.frnC'nt lnc.omt:> -

2019/20 2018/19 
I !:. ' 
Bonk Interest 142.013 62,444 
Employoo corloonlnterost 2.153 U77 
NIHE LOOt\ Interest receiVable 16,410 21.226 
lnves menr InCome on Fund 8a/onces 
Copllolfvnd . 
Repo!IS a. Re'newors fund . . 
Election Fund 3.300 10.688 
Other Investment Income . . 

119,035 

Punslonslntorosl costs or.d e• noclcd return o" pension> o\scls -

Net Interest on the net defined 
benefilliobllty [os.seiJ 

Surplus/ I Delle If) on lrudlnq op<>rollons 

(SurplusJIOeflclt for the yeor 

2019/ZO - 2JI6/19 

2019/20 2018/19 
£ £• 

Income, E<pendrlurc and chon9<.'<ln f(llr Valuo of tnvo~tmcnl Ptopett!N 

2019/20 t.ll:tjl·· 

n'l!• me JOp~ tJ! £ 1. 
(lncomo ~lcludh\g renlol lncome 16.715~91 16.-440,8491 
EJcpendllure 596,813 589,022 
Ne/Income rrom invellment 
ptoperl/e~ (6,119 .046) (5,851.827) 
SurpiiiJ/delfc:ll on sole ot 
Investment Properties 
Prococds from sale (3.750.0001 (400.0001 
Couylng amo\Kll of Investment 
f'(oper~os sold 3,7SO.OOO 350.000 
(Surplvs} /del1cif on sole of 
Investment Properlles: . (50,0001 

Changes In Fair Value ot 
Investment Properties lll:i.1031 (7 ,025.0001 

(6.234.1-19! Jl2.926.627! 



9.657.4n1 {10.744 8J8) (l.OB/.357) 6,014,753 (13.964.664) (7,910.131) 

-

10 lo~o11on oMJ Non Sp~cillc G10nt lncorn~ 

a Revenue Grunh 

2019/20 2018/19 
.£ .. 

(5.159.2~1)1 

(6.029.559) (5,159,231! 

b Rcvcoovc Gronl~ · Unapplied 

201900 2018/19 

- - . --
Govomment & Olher Grants • 
Conditions met and applied In 
lveCJ' 
!Other 

-

c Capllol Gtonls and Dono!ed A~scts · Applied 

2019/20 ~016/19 

- -
Government & Olher Gronls • f-4,523.587) (2.867 .2•5) 
Conditions met ond applied In 
vecv 
<.>ovemment & u~ner vroms • 
fransfer from receipts In advance 1729,1501 142.~321 
oonoteel A\se s- ~onomons me . . 

1 oonotea ASSeiS • Jransler uom 
donated assets creditor (10.0001 

(5,252.7371 12.9\9,677) 
- - - -

d CoJ>ilal ~ton!' lrono cop;tal rccc•pls unoppll~d 

2019/20 201AJI 9 

- £ - .._ ' tuovemmem & u1ner ~.rarliS -

Conditions met and not applied In 
ye or . -
Copilot grants from c:opilo1 

{5.087} (133.188) lrecelols 

(5,087) 1133.188) 



Dlshic! Rate' - - - - - -

I ·~II I : 

- "- '· .... ~· -,£ ~ «:£ 

Current year [157.79&.3341 11154,726,0041 
flnotisoHon - pr~vtous vear 1.800.000 150,0001 
Transllionol Reief 
finoUsollon - ofher yeall (S,B.SOJ 191.683) 

jl56,002,184) jJ54,067,767) 

-

Toxol!on and Non Sp<:clltc Granttncomo 201 ?/20 2018/19 
I -: :. , ._., . '£ ' . .£~ 
Dl5trtct Role Income /156,002,184) 1154,867,7&71 
Revenue Granls 16.029.5591 IS. I 59 ,23ll 
COflllol Grants from capilol receiols unoooied 15.087) 1133.1881 

Capitol Granls and Conlllbullons 15,252,737) 12.919,6771 

- - -

(167,289,567} ( 163,0~9.863) 
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Valucllons 
The land and buildings assets held by the Couno1 were Yolued originally as at 1 April1997 by 1he Valuatlons and Lands Agency, fn accordance with fhe statements of asset valva lion practice and guidance notes of the Royal 
lns1ffute of Charlered SUiveyon. lhe Covncil operates a rof(ng progrtlf1'ICM for the valuation of its land and bvildng properties with approXimately~ of 1hese being teV<llued discretely by physical inspec1ion each year. and 
the r.maindef b4Mng revolved by a daslctop exercise. 

tn the 2019/20 year, land and buadlngs including inYeS!ment properties were valued as at 31 March 20:20. The voluafions Well! carri@d out by land and Property SetviC<l$ (l.P$1. a pc::rt of the Department of Finance. The 
volvaffons were reported by lPS during the inillol period of the COVID-19 pandemic. and are made on the bosis ot•moteriol Yaluation uncedoinf'( as per VPS 3 and VfGA 10 of the RICS Globol Standards. Consequently. less 
certointy. and a l"igher degree or caution. should be attached to these vCikJotfons than would namally be the case. 

The outbAJol: of the Novel Caronovirus (COVI0-191, declared by the Wood Health Orgonisalion os a "Global Ponderric" on llih MarCh 2020, has Impact @Cl global flnoncia l mortels and !he Urc: economy widely. Mcnel activity 
Is being impacted in rn<riY secton. As at the voluoiioo dote. 1he Council 's property votvers consider 1hot they can ottoch less weigh! to previous mcxtel eYidence for comparison pulpOSeS. to infOITTI opinions at valu@. indeed, 
the a.rent response to COVI0-19 means fhal we are faced with an unprecedented set of circumstances on whiCh to base a jxlgernent. '!he valuotions for the Covndl's property as at 31 March 2020 ore lherefore reported on 
the bosis of 'material valuation uncertainty' as per VfS 3 and VPGI\ 10 ol the RICS Global S1andCIIds. Consequen!Jy.less certainly-and a higher degree of cavtion - should be attached to them than would normally be the 
case. For the avoidance ol doubt. the inc!U$10n of the 'mat~ a! valuation uncertainty' decrarolion above does not meon that the valuation cannot be reUed upon. Rather. the declaration has been included to ensure 
tronsparency of the fact lhot. ln the eutrent exlrootdinOIY circumstanc:es, less certainty can be attached to the property voluoliom than would othefW!se be tile case. The material uncertainly clause is lo ser.re os a precaution 
and does no: invaidate the valuation. Given 1he unknown Mure impact !hot COVlD-19 might hove on both the global and Joca1 real estate rno!ltets,lt\e Counol, through oorvoluels. wll keep these valuations under frequent 
review. 

CopHal Commitments 
A total at 6 capitol controcts were entered into dvring the period: 

f'loj.efName DG!e Copltol 
Comrrilment 

Leisu(e f'n)gromme- wbmer.lible i rts 08/0S/2019 115.000 
leisure -sparls haD/pool intlotoble ~ 18107/2019 108,000 
leisure PrO!lKimme- oool eouipment 1010812019 133.000 

Cathedral Gardens 20/09/201~ 150.000 
New Crematorium at Roselown 01/10/2019 1.200.000 
Oty Cemeterv VISitor Centre 01/0312020 1.000.000 

TQfGI 2.706.000 

Effects cl Changes In Estimates 

In finonciot year 201&-19, the covncu reviewed ib accounting po&cy for com!YMlity assets. and adopted the historic cost option. Where app6cable, for the recognition and meosurement ot community assets as set ov! in the 
Code. this was to present more deolly to usef"S of the Council's financial statements I he omount of resources invested by the Coundl in its community ossels. During 201?·20. an community osselt WeAl reviewed by function 
and use, and where necenory redassified to other appropriate classes of assets. Community assets with deprecioble components have o depreciation chOTge appfied, but community asset land onty is not depreciated. 

In financiol year 2019-20. the counctl reviewed m accoun1ing po&c:y for heritage assels. lt recognised 1hot Its accovnling practice to hold o heritage asset at a norrinol £I when Its vave could not be measur@d rdobly was not 
in accordance wi1h the "Code of f'ractlce en loc:ol Authority Accounting In the Unlled KingdOm- (1he CodeJ. The Code requir~ that such assets ore disclosed in a separate not• to the financial stalemem, which the council 
hOs conlinued to do since the ciOSJiffcotion of heritage assets was introduced by lhe Code. bul should not be reported in the bolanc::e sheet. Accordingly. lM such osser, previously recorded ot £1 were derecognJsed !mm the 
balonce sheet. but continue to be held by the CouncJ in Its colleclion of heritage assets. This c:hor~ge Is deto.1ed futltler in 11-oe Heritage Assets nole. 

In financial year 2019·.20. the council ,.v;ewed its accounting estimation technique for depreciotfon of vehicles. This was made possi)le by improvemenl5 In stotislk:ol ana1Y$ls of the vehicle fleet using the llnooce system. As cs 
result. more approptlote useful iv~ were assigned to 1he different types of vehicles held by the CounCil. lhis resulted in changes to the estimation of depredation c:l'lorge tor vel'lic:les In 2019-20 and In Mure years; but because 
this is o ctlonge in estimation technique, there is no requirement to restate depreciation in previous year.;. The impact or this change is rel1ected In this ossel category. 

There were no material changes in accounting estimates tor olher ci0$Ses of property. plant and equipment during the period. 

as 



Surplus Assets 

Svrp!u; 05sels ore non-<:urrent osseu that are nat being used to dallver seiVices buf which do not meet the critetfa to ~classified~ e;ther investment properties or non-<:urrent ossets held for sole. Assets held ror sole ore ossets 
which are not being used to deGver se!Vic:es and whose economic value wit be realised by dlspo$ol. ore oclively being morl::eted, and ordinarily ore expected to be disposed of within 12 montns of the txllon<:e sheet date. 

~·left! 
There were materiollmpaitments to property and 1nves1ment property dv!lng the period. lmpaitmenls r:Ner £500.000 are detailed In the table below: 

Assel Amount of impoirment Asset class Reason 
£ 

Olympia Leisure Centre (558,583) Operotionol building Voluotion at 31.0:3.2020 

Sum or material impolmenn over 
l£500.000 

(558.5831 
.. . 

lhe Olympia tebure cenlre wos brought into operation in Januay 2017. Its valve was remeosured at 31 March 2020 using depreciated replaCement cost basis. the VQivofion method for Ills 1ype of spedolised property, to 
reftec1lts curent esllmated serviCe potential. 

17 



Belfast City Counch 
Notes to the f1nanclol Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

11 d Ptoperty; plant and equipment 

Oepreclotlon 
The useful lives and depreclatlon rates apptied to catculate the depreciation ore ourtned In Note I. 

d:lntanglble Assets 

Intangible osJeiHelate to tandtill ctosiKe costs with a net book va ue of £nil (2018/t9: £nil) and a gross cost be1ore amor11saHon of 
£16.700k (2018/19: £16.700k); and p urchased ncensed software and related Implementation costs with a net book vo•ue of £618k 
(2018/19: £333kj, and o gross costs before amortisation at £2.7961: (2018/19: £2,4091:). 

IMfR,Mi'Mi 
I ... . ,.. . : 
Bolonce at storl of year: 
G ross corryJng amounts 
Accumulated amortisation 
Net carrying amount at start of year 
Addii:Ons 
Amor11satlon tor the period 
Reclosslflcaflon ond transfer from WIP 

Comprising: 
Gross carrying amounts 
Accumulated amortisation 

201~;~0 ;Q16/ 19 

19.108,746 
(18.776,040) 

332.706 

{170.9t2) 
456.257 

19,505,003 
118,946,952) 

19,108,746 
(18.647.091} 

461,655 

(128,9491 

19,l08,746 
(18.776.040) 

The following Items of Income and expense have been accounted for ln the F.nonclng and Investment Income ond Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 

lnn•,tmenl Propc;t!o~ 31/03/2020 31 /03/2019 
~ ;<p;. ~ cc - ::' : .... ~,-. "- .... ~,-..~.:~~-~ -- ~ '-" .. £ .... ,..,. 

l _, ··- .. J: 
Rental Income from Investment AcllviHes I 6,715,859 1 6.440,849 
orrect Operating eXPenses arising from Investment properties I (596,813) I (589.022) 
Net galn/(loss) I 6,119,046 I 5,851 ,8:27 

The following table summarises lhe movement in the fair value of investment properties over lhe year: 

Balance at slorl of I he year 
Additions 
Olsposals 
Net gains/losses from lair value odjvslments 
Transfers to/ f rom Inventories 
Transfe rs to/from ptoperty, plant and equipment 
O ther chan~es 

ltm!I!IMll+p)UGIIiWI 

(3,750.000) 
115,103 
254.897 
150.000 

(350.000) 
7.025.0CXJ 

1,300.000 
f.if@i•l•ltl 

Investment Properties ore comprised of the following properlies. oU held of valuation: 

Industrial Estates 
Commercial Uolfs 

.. - -.. e· 
72,500,o00 
21 ,150,000 

Bcii(I~C<· t1l end o! l!lt: ','l'UI 93,650,C00 96 .BBO,COO 

Summol)' of the net book values of non-current assets os reported In lhe balance sheet 

lnvc-;;lnH,'Ill -

Non-currcnl asset I lclnl PP!.t Hedlauc Asseh Propell ~' lnlongll>IC' A"eh 101/lt 

...... ~ .. .!.~~w.oi 
Het Book Vo1ue os al31 March 2019 

Net <:hange In co.d or volvullon 

Oepreclalfon and Impairment In the year 

Net movamenllor the year 

~--~~ ... . 
640,630,545 

45,3.57.580 
1350,0431 

45,007,537 

~~lit-m.'$ - ~~~-~~~· 
9,025.087 96,880,000 332,706 746,868,338 

33.8'16 
106.480 

140,376 

(3.230.000) 

(3,230,000) 

456,257 
(1 70.9121 

285,345 

42,617.733 
(~1 4 ,475) 

42,203,258 

Ncl Oook V a uc us ol 31 March 2020 665.630 002 9.: 65A~3 ~J .6SO.OOO 618 c; 1 7!19,071.596 



fair Value Hierarchy 

Oetans of the Covncll's Investment Properties and information abovt the fair value hierarchy os al31 Morch 2020 and 2019 are as 
follows 

-

2019/20 Recuuu•u fair QuolccJ Prices in ncf'vc n'<HI\(:1\ 101 Oilier S!gn.flcant Fnlr voiue os o f 31st 
VCJhtC 11\(•(JI)UfClllP'\t~ idc~Jicu l UIIC'h (lt'VP.Il) ~iynl.cunl 11noh":rvuble flwth :IO I Y 
Ul lll~j ulHt'l\fulJ!c mpuls 

Inputs (lcn'l7) (Level3) 

£ t: £ £ 

Industrial elates and 
Commercial Unlls . 93.650.000 -
Total - 93.650,000 - -
20lfl/19 Recurrinu luu CluotccJ r·r eo i'"l "'live ntorkels fer Ollter S·gnt!.cunt r ult voluc us at 31 si 
vn !IH: nu:a~urenlf~nh lc!enltc(ll OIICIS (level I) si!Jnillcunl unobscrvablc MUlCh ~() I(} 

using oblt'IVU!Jfl, lnpuls 
lnnuls (l<~vr·l 'll (level :11 

j ). l l 

lndusttlal Estates and 
Commercial Units . 96.880.000 . . 
Total . 96.880.000 . . 
Tran1fers between levels ol the lair value hierarchy 

There were no frond en between levels I and 2 durinQ the veor. 

Investment Properties ore considered to have enough uniqueness so they no longer can be compared lo similar items that ore 
used for referenc e in an ocnve market. and ore valued using Inputs other ihan quo led prices that are observable. A$ such. they 
are valued us1ng Level 21nputs. 

Valuation techniques used to determine Level2 and 3 Fall' Values tor Investment Properties 

Significant Observable Inputs • Level 2 

In 2019/20, all Investment Properties were measured usilg the same methodology as In 2018/l9 and adcillona.ly for Industrial 
Estates included wllhln Investment Properties, an assessment Is mode of lhelr incomes and expenditure over the preceding rolling 
5-year period. The Inputs used to value these properties have been clcmifled os level 2. other significant observable Inputs. 

Highest and besl use of Investment Propel11es 

In estlmallng the fair value oflhe Coundl's lnveslmenl Properfes. the highest and best use of the properties Is their current use. 
reflecting best estimotes of fait value given by current prices on a market for slmQar property In similar locations. 

Voluatlon Techniques 

There has been no change In the valuation techniques used during the year for Investment rropertles. 
Gains or losses arising from changes In the talr value of lhe Investment properties ore recognised In Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services - Anondng and Investment Income and EXpendllure Nne. 

Voluollon process for Investment Properties 

The fair value of the Council's Investment properlies is measured at market value as at 31 March 2020. !-11 valualions are carrted 
out by land and Properly Services, In accordance with their methodologies and bases for estimation os set out In the professional 
standards of the RoyallnsHtutlon of Chartered SuNeyors. The CouncM's valuation experts work closely with Council finance officers 
reporting directly to the Chief Financial Oltlcer ono regular basis regarding a• valuation matters. 

Hcrl!u!Jo Assets --

The CouncU's collection ot heritage assets consists of woru of art. cMc items. denoted woru of ort. and cerlaln historic buildings 
and monuments with hlstortcal. artistic, sdentlllc, lechnologlcol, geophysical or environmental quatilies that ore held ond 
maintained prlndpolly for their conlrfbutlon to l:nowledge and culture. These assets are reported In the balance sheet at 
valualton; or at Insurance valuation os a proxy for market value; or, If 1t Is not possible lo obtain a valuation, they are meosured al 
historic cost less depreciation. amortisation or fmpolrment tosses. Insurance valva lions are updated on a periodic basis. 

Where no cost can be measured accurately for a hedtage assel.llls not held on the balance sheet at a monetary value. The 
Item wit still be retained In the Counctrs possession and will form part of Its heritage asset co ec llon. There ore currenlly 168 of 
these Items recorded by Belfast City Council. 
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.. . ••• . 'tXfl'llliJI .ll'fl'tlll~ 

Nail Showcross 'Writers of Belfast'' cottecllon . 430,000 
Portrait of councillor Nuola McAIIister . 10.850 
Trooicol Ravine 130,992 90.127 
9 Adelaide Art Collecllon 20.000 
Shapes of Home Poinllno 1.000 
Botanic Gardens • Palm House llondl 1 
Botanic Gordens ·Tropical Ravine fiend) 1 

- - -

Totol 151.994 530,977 

There were a number ot reclossiflcolions from property. plant and equipment and transfers from asseh under construcllon, to 
heritage assets during the year, Additions were made to the Tropical Ravine building, the Council's art collecllon and the Baby 
Haven memorial at Clly Cemetery. '1he tcnotled Gun" artwork was donated to the Council. Following o review of the Councirs 
communlly assets. a number of land properties and monuments were reclassified to heritage assets at either valuation or at no 
valuation for the purposes of stewardship, In occordonce with the Councl's heritage asset accounting poRcy. 

From 1 AJ)I!t2019, 164 heritage assets that do not have a value that can be measured reliably but which were previously corr1ed 
There were no dlsposols of heritage as.sets during 2019/20. 

g Assets Held for Sale 

Two non-current assets were reclassllleel to cut~ent assets held for sole during 2019/20. The gain on os sets classified to held for sole 
and sold during the year was£ 1301: . 

. . • . 
~- "., " ~ "''~ 

,. ,-':- ., ., ';l :..·""" -- .if -- "' . _'I _.- ..... ..,.. ~. - _j· 

Cost or Voluotton 
j8atance os at I AP1112018 . . . 
Ad uslmen s between cosl/volue & deorec at onlim airmen! . . 
Trons erred rom Non·Currenl Assets dunno year 266.607 . 266.607 
Assets Held for Sale Donalions . . . 
As.sets Held tor Sale Revaluation increases/decreases to Revolve ion . . . 
~evaluation Increases/decreases token to SurPlus or De Hell on the . - . 
Assets Held for Sole Impairment @ Cost to Prov1sion of Services . . . 
Oerecogrlllion - Dlsposols - . . 
Oereco~niHon • O ther . . . 
Rectl;lssllied frorn cwrent Assets Held tor Sale to non current Assets Held . . . 
iTramferred In PrnnArtv. Plnnt 1.. Fnulnmenl dutino vAar . . . 
Balance os ol 31 Morth 201? 2&6.607 . 266.607 
Impairment 
Balance os at 1 Aont 2018 . . . 
AdJustments between cost/value &. depreclotion/imPOirment . . -
trmpa~rmenrtosses/reverwrs Joken ro :>urptus or Deflcll on the Provision of . . 
Selvlces 
Derecognition • Olsposats . . . 
Derecoanition - Other - . . 
Reclosslfled lrom Current Astols Held lor Sale to non cu11ent Assets Held . . . 
Transferred to Property, Plant & Eautomenl d\lllna vear - . . 
Balance as at 31 March 201? 

. . . 
Three non-current assets were reclassified to current assets held far sole during 2018/19. No non current assets held for sole were 
disposed of during 2018119. 

I 



h Fair Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assets 

Surplus assets are non-operational assets that do not meet the conditions to be classlrl&d as assets held for sole. They ore 
measured ol lair value, retlecl!ng the actual morl<et state and conditions at the balance sheet dole (which Is the valuation date) 
With best evidence of fair value In on act111e morl<et for similar properHes In the same location. The council classifies assels to 
surplus assets on the adlllce of lis estates management officers and In consultation with Its external property 11a1uers. 

The surplus assets held by the council comp!lse a number of properties InclUding land. buildings or sUes of land and buildings 
combined. which have not reached the stage where !he council con market these for sale advantageously, or where the 
properties have rest!lcNons that prevent them currently being brought to marl<et. 

Details of the Councfs surplus ossels and Information about the fair value hierarchy as at31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 

201 'l/20 f(t!Uifllll!J lair V<JIUt' Quoted I'I)C(!s inodlvv market\ l01 Otht>r si>Jmllconl .\ign1llcnnl F<llf vllillf' m nl 
lfll'OIUI<?lllC!rtls usl11g idr•nllcol cmP.II (I P.V<~Il) ObiL'IVOUIC unollservnl>lc 3111 M01ch 20 I Y 

input~ (lCV(Ci/) lllf.lVIs 
(ll'Vei 3) 

= - -· ·" . . .. - . .. ... ......:..;..:;: ..., __ ·- ~- --- ~-

Land . 1,924,001 . 1 924001 
Buildtnas . 620,000 . 620,000 
land and 8ulldlnas combined . 2.995,000 . 2,995,000 
Tolol . 5 539.001 . 5539001 

2018/19 Recuulngfolrvalue Quotod Prices In acllve markcls I or Other slgnlflconl Slgnlllconl Fair voluc os ot 
rncosurcmon!s using: Jtlcnllcal osscls (level 1) observable uiiobsorvoblc 31st March 2018 

Jnpuls (lcvel2) Inputs 
(lovcl3) 

~-; -- " 
_.....,.,. ..... - ~ --~ :£ -~- £ ....... - -

Land - 1,624,001 - 1 824,001 
Bulldlnas - 380.000 - 380,000 
land and Bu~dinascomblned 3.465.000 . 3 485000 
Total . 5689001 - 5 689 001 

Surplus Assets are considered to hove enough uniqueness thol they no longer can be compared to similar Items that ore used lor 
reference In on active market and are volved using Inputs other than quoted prices !hot ore obsSIVable. As such. they are 
valued using Level 21npuls. 

Transfers between levels ol the fair value hierarchy 

There were no llansfers between levels I and 2 during the year. 

In 2019/20, all Surplus Assets were measured uslng the some methodology as In 201 B/19. The Inputs used to value these properties 
have been classified os Level 2. other slgnUicont observable Inputs, due to the uniqueness of these properties. 

Highest and besl us a of surplus O$Sels 

In estimating the fair value of the Council's surplus assets, the highest and besl use or the assets is their current use. reflecting best 
esllmotes of fair 11a1ue gl11en by current prices on a market for similar property In stmllor locations. 

Valuation Techniques 

There has been no change In the valuation techniques used dunng the year for surplus ouels. 

The la(( value of I he Council's Surp~s Assets Is measured at morket valuation as at 31 March 2020. All valuallons ore corned out 
externally by Land and Property Servlcet In accordance with the methodologies and bases for eslimal!on set out In the 
professional standards of the RoyallnsllluHon of Chartered Surveyo~. The 11aluallons were reported by LPS during the lnlllol period 
of the COVID-19 pandemic. and are made on the basis of ·material valuation uncertainty" as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the R'CS 
Global Standards. Consequently, less certainty, and a higher degree or caution, should be attached to these voluallons than 
would normally be the case. lhe Council's voluollon experts work closely Wllh finance olllcers reporting directly to the chief 
financial officer on a regular basis regarding all valuation matters. 
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Coollol Expcndllurc or.c:J Capl!o\ Flnollc ln~ -

The total amount of copilot expenditure Incurred In the year Is shown In the table below (including the value of assets acquired 
under llnance leases ond Pfl contracts). together with the resources thol hove been used to finance 11. Where copUol 
expenditure Is to be financed In future years by charges to revenue os assets ore used by the Covnc~. the expenditure results In on 
Increase In the Capitol Flnondng Requirement (CFRJ. a measure of the capitol expenditure Incurred hist011colly by the Council 
I halls to be financed. lhe CFR Is analysed In the second of this note. 

Lxplonolion ol Movcrncnls In Year 201'1/20 701 B/19 
£ £ 

lnetaose In uoderl o need to b<lrrmv 23180572 ' 20682233 
Anels ocaulred under lfnonce reoses I . J . 
Assets aCQuired under PFI/PPP contracts I . I . 

I I I _l _l _l 
• ., I • 

future Capitol Comnri!mer>h 

Total net expenditure of £17,605,115 has been Incurred ogofnsllhese projects In the year ended 31 March 2020. 

Inventories 2019/20 2018/19 
[ £ 

Central stores 370.474 276.290 

Total 370,47~ 276,290 

lhe cost of Inventories written down, recognised os on expense and Included In 'services' amounted to £591.234 (18/19 £643.6881. 



--

lS llebtors 2019/20 2018/19 
Q long lerm Debtors 

£ £ 
Government Departments . . 
Other Councils . . 
PubRc corporollons and trading funds . . 
8odles extemollo Qenerol government . . 
Employee cor loons -49,664 59,591 
Revenue Grants . . 
Capitol Grants . . 
Interest Receivable . . 
Capital Debtors . . 
Loans and advances . . 
Anonce lease debtors . . 
Trade debtors 218.298 285,208 
NIHELoans 171.580 258,860 
Other . . 
Impairment of loons and receivables . . 
Contract Receivables . . 
lotol Long-T<'un Debtors 439.542 603.6 59 

to!ol Short Term Debtors 21.230.Bll 16.084,307 

lolaiDcblo;s - - 21 .670.'113 17;187,966 

Trade debtors. inclusive of VAT. con be ana'ysed by age as follows: 

16 Borrowings -

0 Sliorl Tr,lln OOIIOWillcJ 2019/20 201!1/19 
£ £ 

Loons re payable wllhrn one or 9.739.488 <4,000,000 
Rnance Lease Prtncl I 

lolul Shorllelfl\ Uu11ow!ng 9,739,488 4 000.000 

• l ony Te11n 80IIOVI!1!J 2019/20 ?OJR/19 
~ £ 

Between I an 2 ears 4000000 . . . 7136 376 
Between 2 and 5 years I I 4,469,3271 5.061,000 

!Between 5 and 10 veers I I 3.500.000 I 9,197.934 
In more then 10 years I I 50.997,846 I 37.493.671 

Govenrnwnt l oons f11m.l 62,967. 173 SB,BOS, 981 

Toto! llorrowlng - /2.106,661 62.888,981 
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17 CrctH!ors 

a Shorl Tt.:rm CreLiilors 2019/20 ?016/19 
t: £ 

Government Departments 1,585.600 1,818,188 I 

Other Councils 4.0.(0 13.010 
Public corporations and trading_ funds . . 
Bodies external to general government . . 
Rotes clowback 1,800.000 100,000 
VAT . . 
Remuneronon due to employees 403.046 583,873 
Accumulated Absences 1.363.705 1.357.825 
Loon Interest Payable 346,162 331,903 
Capitol Creditors 2.096.936 1,450,637 
Recetpts tn advance 6,374,183 4.473,249 

1 naae crecmors 4,801 ,202 2,499,735 
Creditor Accruals 13.740.133 17.468.846 
Contract Payobles 277.387 . 
Totul SlJollktt11 Creditors 32.792,3Y4 3o.on n6 

"long Term Credll01s 201 Y/20 2011!/19 

c 

Ulilo- r 'rocdr!oorl f<~ihrlD tluc olt<:r 1110re flr(llr 011(: yr)lJI £ £ 

Government DE!portmenls . 
Other Councils . 
Publlc cOfporotlons and trading funds . -
Bodies external to general government . -
Rotes clowback . -
RemuneroHon due to employees - . 
Accumulated Absences . -
Receipts rn advance - -
Trade creditors - . 
Other 50,386 50.386 
Contract Pay_ables . . 

-

h>I<Jtlc,r,q ku" Creelilo" :.il.:JH(, !Jl),:~~(, 

Total Crl.'dJioos - - 32.842,700 30,147.652 

l'oyrne>rrt of Invoices - -

The council has a target, where no other terms are agreed. of poytng supplier Invoices 'NI thin 30 days. During the year 19/20 the 
Council paid 67,810 (18/19 61.520) Invoices totalling £162,900,458 {18/19 £163,474,395). 

The council paid: 
63.385lnvolces within 30 calendar days target (201 8/19: 56.029); 
S0.885lnvolces within 10 working days target (2018/19: 39,940): and 
4,425 Invoices outside of the 30 day target 12018/19: 5,491). 

The average number of days token to pay sup piers during the year was 10 days (201 8/19: 15 days). 

The Council paid 93% of lnvO:ces within the target of 30 days, against the target objective ol90%. 
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rotor 4,684,166 418,263 (126;199) · (21,7l 9) 4,954.211 

418.263 155.0981 3,131.517 
33,379 1,822,694 

TofCJI 4,694,166 418,263 {11h,499) • (21,719) 4,954,211 

Total <1.656,:.! 12 16,635 (08,461) • 97.7AO •1,684.166 

18.6 57,70 2.894,861 
40,076 1,789,315 

Total <\,656,212 18,635 (60,461) • - 97,7BO 4,684,166 

Landllll Closure 

The llnanc:lal provision for the copping and annual monltoling costs required to meet the Council's environmental obligations 
under the NIEA licence has been agreed ono local Authority Deed. lhe discount rates applied on the provblon ore based on 
PWLB borrowing rates adjusted for lnflallon which has resulled In o valuation of £3,449,001. 

Claims Management 

A provision of£ 1,505.210 has been mode in respect of public lioblllly, employer's Robillly and other doims/legal cases no tilled but 
not processed. Adequate insurance arrangemenls ore In place covering the Council's activities os recommended by the 
Councirs Insurance Brokers. The related lnsuronce premiums paid ore accounted I or In the financial stolements. AI 31 March 
2020. lhe totollablllty for legal cases noliHed bul not processed amounted loan esllmoted ma>4mum Dobillly or £2.638,755. 

financial lns!lomcnts 

financial Assets os at31 March 2020 
lhe Counc'l has lhe following non-current Investments and debtors: 

lhe Councl's conlribulion to BelletllP Is Included In 'Investments In Assodates and Joint Ven ures' and Is disclosed at the original 
value of the contlfbufton. 
lhe majority olthe long term debtor re la le lo trade debtors as well os balances wllh NIHE and cor loon balances with employees. 
The relevant credit losses hove been calculaled and Included In the lmpai'ment loss balance. 

Current flnondol assets. namely trade debtors. employee cor loons and cosh balances have been assessed ond relevant credit 
losses ca·culated. These amounts ore ii'1Ciuded in the Impairment loss balance of £005.868 for 2019/20. 

fhe employee car loon rate I! cVITenlly 2.2%. In comparison to the HMRC ollldal role of 2.5%. 

Flnondal Liabilities as ot31 March 2020 

lhe Council Is In receipt of loans from the Department ol Finance ot concessionary Interest roles lhat differ lrom the prevolUng 
market roles. The fair value of these loons is £76.353.871 (2018-19 £69,174.552). 



Roolrornont Bono lis - -

• Par11clpo!Jon In the Nor1hcro Ireland loco! Gov.::n.ncnl Ofllccrs' l'er:s'ou Fund. -

As port of the terms and conditions of employment of Its officers ond other employees. the Council oilers retirement benetlls. 
Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees reftre. the Council has a commilment to make the payments 
that need to be disclosed at the lime that employees earn their future entitlement. 

The Council parllclpates In lhe Northern Ireland local Government Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Norihern Ireland 
local Government omcers' Superannuation Commlllee. lhls Is a funded scheme. meaning that the CouncU and employees pay 
contributions Into o fund. calculated at a level intended to balance the pension's lablliHes wllh Investment asseb. 

-

b Trm11octions rcl<tling to rellremuut bcnt'frls • Corncret\cmlvc lncomc ond E)( cndllurc S!otcmcnl 

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefils In the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when they are earned by 
employees. rather than when the benefits Ofe eventually paid os pensions. 

However. the charge the Council Is required to make against district rotes Is based on the cosh payable In the year, and the real 
cost of retirement beneHis Is reversed out In the adjustments between accounting basis & funding bosls under regulations Nne. In 
the Movement on Reserves Statement. 

lhe following transacllons hove been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the acfJUStmenls 
belween accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line.ln the Movement on Reserves Statement during the year: 

No la 2019/20 - 2010/IV 

£ £ 

Net cost of services: 

Current service cost 26.101,000 20.655.000 
Post service cosl/lgoln) • 861.000 14.847,000 
Gains and losses on settlement~ or curtailments - -
Net operating eKpendlture: 

Net Interest on net defined benefit llabifily (ossel) 3.272.000 3.324.000 

fotal Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 30.234.000 38,826,000 

'Movement In Reserves :iitatement: 
Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits In accordance with 
IAS 19 and the COde (30,234.000) (38,826.000) 
Actual amount charged agolnst the general fund balance for pensions In 
lheyeoc 

Employers' contrlbullons payable to scheme 15,682.000 lo4.337.000 

• . . I fl . ·:· ... 
The service cost figures include an allOwance for odminislrotion expenses of £325k (18/19 £250t). 

The Impact of the McCioud judgement has been allowed for In ll'lese flgures with the change in onowonce over the periOd being 
treated os an eKperlence llem through Other Comprehensive Income. 



-

Rcnu:uwremcnls recognised In OlhP.r Co.njJ'.:I:crllivc 
lotomc oml Expcndllusc Note 2019/20 20lB/19 

[ f 

Uoblllly golns/{losses) due to chang_e In assumptions 15,1~9.000 ( -40.332.000) 

Uablfity golns/{losses) due to demographic changes 25.~68.000 29,809,000 
liability exPerience ga!ns/(lossesl Ollslng In the year 3.9~8.000 {196.000) 

Actucr1al galns/{losses) on plan assets 165.748,000} 26.042.000 
Other - . 

fo!algolm/(losscs) lf!CO~IIilc<J 1·1 Olht>r Comprehens;vc lnr.omc ond hpondlluto (?.!' 1 03,000) 15,3?.1.000 

Belfast City Council employs a buUdlng blocl: approach In determining the rote of retum on Fund assets. Hlstolfcol mot1<ets ore 
stud'red and assets with higher volatlfily are assumed to generate higher returns consistent with widely accepted capitol mol1<et 
p~nclples. The assumed rate of return on each asset class Is calculated and the overall expected rate of return on assets so 
derlved by aggregating the expected return for each asset class over the actual asset ollocotlon for the Fond oiJI March 2020. 

The ocluotreturn on scheme assets In the yeorwas a km of £Sl,208k (2018/19 gain of £40,6951c). 

554,526,058 605,603,056 



The Council's shore of the Net Pension llabiiiiV (Included In the Balance Sheel•: 

d Scheme lllslory - -
Anu:;·~l5 ol sclrerr,c assets onnl,oblil!rcs 20 t Y/20 :.>01 8/19 

£ £ 

Folr Value of Assets In pension scheme 

Present Value of oenned Benefit Obtl otion 

Surplus/ (detlclt)ln the Scheme - ( 1/9,849,942) ( 144,114, 942) 

moun recogn1Sed rn O lhcr ComprP• H~Ils ve Income ami 
-

Expcntlrfurc. ?01 Y;:.>O 2CJ18/19 
t £ 

·~~ ~ecled Return on Plan Assets . . 
lnaease/(decreose) In itrecoveroble surplus from membership fall and 
olher factors - . 
Remeorurements recognised In Other Compcehenslve Income ond I 

f'xpendllvre (21.183,000} 15.323.000 

Cumulahve oc tuorlol gains and loS$eS (58.346,000) (37,163.0001 

)Historv or experience golns and losset: 

~e~~nce gQI_ns oQQ_flosses) on a ssets (65.748.0001_ 26.042,000 
Expe~ence gains and jloues_l_ on 1!abllltiEU 3.948.000 (196,000) 

The llobllilies show the underlying commitmenls that lhe ovlhoMiy has In the long run to pay retiremenl benefits. The tololllobillty 
of £179,849,942 has a svbston'lol Impact on the net wot1h of the CouncW os recorded In the Solonce Sheet 

However. stotulory arrangements for funding the dellcit mean fhot the finonclal position of the Cound remains heollhy. The 
deficit on the Northern Ireland Local Government Otncers' Pension Fund will be made gOOd by Increased conlribulions over the 
remaining worl(ing file of employees. assessed by the scheme actuary. 

-

Anolysls o! Jl'D)f>d ed <HllOII'll to tw cho·octllo the Compr P.hcn\ove Income und hpendilur.) Slotcn'l!nl forlhc ycnr to 31 March 
2021 

28, YH,OSO 1 00.01., 

The total contributions expected to be mode to the Northern Ireland Local Government Otncers' Pension Fund by the council In 
the yeor to 31 March 2020 Is £13.869k. 

t .i\l ory o f c\pcrrcnce golns and tosses -

The actuarial gains/losses Identified os movements on the Pensions Reserve 2019/20 can be analysed Into !he following 
categories. measured as a percentage of assets or llob!UIIes at 31 March 2020. 



- - - -- -

e Bmls for esllrnu!ln9 us sets and liobillllcs 
Uobl ties have been assessed on an actuarla basis using the projected un!t method, an estimate of the pensions that will be 
payable in the future yeors dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels. etc. The Council's Fund UabiBIIes have 
been assessed by Aon Hewltt Limited, an Independent trm of actuaries, estimates for the Council Fund being bosed on data 
pertaining to the latest full valuation of the scheme os at 31 March 2020. 

Pension Assumptions Scnslilvlly Anolysls 

The pension flgures disclosed In these financial statements are sensHive to the assumptions used. 

lhe approximate Impact of changing key assumpHons on the present value of lhe funded defined beneot obligation as al31 
March 2020 b set out below. 

In each case, only the assumption noted below Is altered; all other assumptions remain the same and ore summarised in the 
disclosure above. 

Funded Pension Scheme Benellls 

~seounJ Rat_e ASSumplton 

Adjustment to discount role +0.1%p,g. ·0.1%p.o. 
Present value of the total obngatron 724.435,000 752.630.000. 
%change In the present value of the total obllgoflon -}.90% 1.90% 
PraJecled service cost 24,157,000 25,844,000 
ApproXImate % change In projected service cost -3,3<m 3.40% 

Rare or Generarlncrea1e 111 Satt~rles 

Adjustment to salary Increase rote +0.17op.a. -0.1%p.a, 
Present value of the total obligation 742,556,000 734.28 r .000 
~change In tne present value of the total obligation 0.4Q'Jr. -().40% 
Projected servlce cost 24.988,000 24.988.000 
Approximole% change rn project ea serviCe cost 0.~ O.OO'Xo 

Rate of Increase to Pensions In Payment t~nd Oererred Pension Assumpllon 

Adjustment to pension Increase rote +0.17op.a. ·0.1%p.a. 
Present value otthe total obTigalion 748.428.000 728,510,000 
~_change In the present value of the total obligalion l.70" -1.7~ 
Projected service cost 25,844.000 24,157.000 
Approximate % change In prOjected service cost 3.40% ·3.30% 

Post Retirement MortaUty Assumption 

Adjustment to mortolilv age rallng assumption• -1 Year + 1 Year 
Present value of the total obllqotron 7 6l. 933.000 715,068,000 
% change In the present value o the Total obUgotlon 3.20% -3.20% 
ProJected service cost 25,945,000 24.040.000 
Ap12foldmate% change In projected service cost 3.80% -3.80% 

• A rating of+ 1 year meam that members ore assumed to follow the morta&ly pattern of I he base table above for on Individual 
that is r year older then that. 
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f~\l]or cotcgotlcs of pion as sots os pcrccntogc ollotol plan assets 

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension fund's assets consist of the following categories. by proportion of the 
total assets held: 

N01fhern Ireland Civil Service Pension Allungcmcnts 

The Northern Ireland Civil Se/Vice Pension arrangements ore unfunded mull -employer defined benent schemes but the Council is 
unable to Identify Its shore of the unde~ylng assets and nobi:llles. The most up to date actuarial VOJuollon was corned out os ot 31 
March 2016. This valuoHon Is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current condillons and rolled forward 
to the reporting dote of the OoF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts os at 31 March 2020. 

h Assets and liabilities In relation to retirement benents of the Gas Pension Fund 
Rc~~ndliofion of fJIP.)<?IIf volue of fl1e sc heme llobiiJitcs 

-

Note 2019/?0 2018/19 
E £ 

·--~~ Current service cost . . 
Interest cost 23.000 29,000 
Contributions bY members . . 
Remeosuremanl lgolnsJ and losses: 

Act_vorlol gains/losses arising from chang_es in financial ossumphons . l :l,OOO 
Actuortot gains/losses ar!sl!}g_ trom demographic chollfies . 
Actuor1ol gains/losses anstng on l!oblnlles from exper1ence [4.000) 3.000 
other (it oppllcoble} 

Post service CO$tsf(golnsl . 
Losses/(golnsl on curlolfments 
llobhities exlinoulshed on u~IJiement$ 
Nel benefits paid f200,000j (216.000) 

I . . I • 
Rcconclliotron of prcsc1l VCIIue of !ti<' sc heme ossels; Nolo:- :.!01Y/20 :.?018/1 <} 

£ £ 
one so 1 nl I 061000 1269000 . 

tnferesllncome 23.000 30.000 
Contlfbutlons by members . 
ContrfbuHons by employer . 
Renneosvrement goln/{lossJ 120.000) 122.000) 
Assets diStributed on settlements . 
Net Senetits ~-d (200.0001 1216.000) 

' ; I I I 

Anolysls ol schcrl"'c os sets ontl liabilities Note 2019/20 2018/19 
£ £ 

-=====~~ I~~ 
Fair Value o Nse s In enslon se erne 
Present Va ue o Denned Beneflt Obfl atlon 
Net Assel/(tlobilily) wcognised on the l lnloncc slwct 5,000 21 .OfJO 

funded Pension Scheme Benefits· Gaf Pension Fund SensfllviiY Ana!vs!J 

Discount Rate Anumpllon 

AdJustment to discount rote +0.1%p.a. ·0.1%p.o. 
Present value of tile total obUgollon 835.000 863,000 
%change In 1he present value or lne total obllgatton ·0.~ 0.50,; 

Rate of Increase to Pensions In Payment accounts anumptron 

Adjustment to pension Increase rote +0.1,.. _1).0. -0.1%)).0. 
Present value ollhe total obllgaUon 863.000 855.~ 
~ Chof1g_e In the present value of the total ob_llggUon 0.50~ -0.50"' 

Post lletltemenr MorfaUtv Assumption 

Adjustment to mottality age rating assumption• ·lvr +Tyr 
Present 110/ue of the total obllgoHon 919.000 801.000 
%change In the present value of the tolot obligation 7.~ ·6.80" 

• A rating of+ 1 veer means thot members ore assumed to follow the moria lily poltern oil he bose table above fat on Individual 
tholls I year old81' than lhol. 
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Mortality assumptions: 
Member! aged 8.5 at accounting dare _rears Years 
Men 7.0 6.9 
Women 7.8 7.8 

2.10% 
2.30% 

Gas Pension Fund 

The Council's Gas Pension Fund hod been established undElf on agreement between the Council and the Deportment of 
Economic Development on 31'd July. 1990. The purpose of the Fund was to provide for the continuation of pens!on payments to 
former Gas Deportment employees and their dependants who were members of various slolulory pension schemes. The Gas 
Pension Fund Is maintained to provide for future pension payments to the beneflciOlles, the objective being to maintain a fund 
surudent to provide all future anticipated payments. No conlribuHons ore currently being paid and there ore no service members 
accruing further benelils. Members' benefits ore guaranteed by statute. Shou d the Fund's assets not be sufllclent to provide all 
the benefits. the residual liability for perulon payments would fall on Bellast City Council. 

lhe current mal1cet value of the fund or 31 March 2020 Is assessed by the Coundls actuaries. Aan Hewlll and is disclosed above. 
lhe Fund's Financial Statements outDned below do not to~e account of tloblfilies to pay pensions and other benefits after 31 
March2020. 

At 31 March 2020 there were 23 pensioners left In the Gas Pensions Fund and the balances relating to the Gos Pension Fund ore 
fully consolidated In the Group financial statements. 

INCOME AND EXt'fNOifURE STATEMENr 31/03/2020 31/03/2019 
£ £ 

INCOME: 
lnveslment Income 9.866 9,753 

EXPENDITURE 

Pensions Pold (194,4361 (206.0351 
Administration Expenses (5.361) (10.'230) 

Surplus/(Deflcitl for the Year (189,931J !206,512) 

NET ASSET MOVEMENTS 
Brought forward balance at 01.04.2016 699,929 1.106.441 
Unreallsed gain ol 01.04.2019 165,164 166.625 
Opening Value of Fund 1,065,093 1,273,066 

Add Contribution from Oly CauncU 
Add surplus/(deliclt) for the year (189,931) (206.512) 
CHANGE IN MARKET VALUES OF INVESTMENTS 
Realised gain for year 0 0 
Unrealised goln/(loss} tor year (7.377) (1.461) 

Closing value ollund eii7,785 1,065,0VJ 

FINANCED BY: 
UK Index llnl:ed Investments 424,347 431,725 
Cash deposits and at bank 439,628 629,560 
Debtors 3.810 3,808 

867,785 1.065,093 
Bank Balance 
Creditors 
Clo-sing volue o! !und - 867,785 1.065,093 1 

. . . • . . ' I I I IU'J 

J 
Northern Ireland Local Government Olllcer's Pensloll Fulld (1 79,849.942 f144.114.'142U 
Gas Pem!an Fund 5.000 21.000 
Belfast Waterfront & Ulster Hall Limited (2.463.000 (2.267,000) I 

I . . .. . . . . . . • lA'lii'U 

The Hgures above Include a peruion liability In respect of Belfast Waterfront & Ulster Hall Umiled 1 BWUH Lfd}. BWUH Lfd become a 
porllclpoling employer In the NILGOSC scheme on 1 Aprll2016. Ballad Clly Council has agreed to Include and disclose the net 
labllltv Ullder this scheme up to 31 March 2020 within the net llobtllly total for Selfosl City Council. 
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Allowance for the Mc:Ctoucl Judgement and GMP lndexQ!Ion I EquaPsollon 
The above amounts Include an allowance for additional iabin1tes attstng from the McCioud Judgement and GMP Indexation and 
Equalisation cases ouffined below. 

McCtoud Judgement 
In Oecember 2018 the Court of Appeal ruled In the 'McCioud/Sargeanr judgement that the transitional protection arrangements 
put In place when the Fireftghters' and Judges' pension schemes were reformed were age discriminatory. While the judgement 
was not In relation to membe11 with Local Government Penslon Scheme (NI} beneflts it would be reasonable to assume that the 
Government win seek remedy for all public sector schemes Including local Government Pension Scheme {NI}. 

Allowance has been mode for the Impact of the McCioud judgemen'. Belfast City Council accounted lot a potential McCtoud 
lioblllty as of 3 t March 2019 as a Post Service Cosl, and any change In the allowance over the period has been treated as on 
experience Item through Other comprehensive Income. 

The Current Service Cost Includes a prospective allowance for McCioud iobllilles of 3.~ of Penslonabte Pay over the accounting 
period. 

GMP Indexation and Equollsatlon 
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP)ls a portion of pension that Is payable to membets who were contracted out of the Stale 
Second Pension and accrued benentsln tl'!e scheme betwee!l 6 April 1978 and 5 Aprt11997. The LGPS (NI] was contracted out. 
The GMP was Intended to approximately replace tile State Pension which members were giving up, however the payment terms 
of GMP ore different between men and women. which was a consequence of the state pension itself being unequal at that t:me. 
On 26 October 2018 the Hgh Courl rued In the Uoyds Bank case that equoll1alton for the effect of unequal GMPsls required. 
The estimated liability has been based on a typical local Governmen' pension fund to quantify the value of fully Indexing GMP's 
In line with CPI Inflation for those reaching state Pension Age alter 5 December 2018. This was calcvlcled to be 0.3% of the 
liabilities I defined ben alii obigallon. 

Allowance has been mode for full pension Increases to be paid on GMPs to Individuals reaching SPA after 6 Aprtl 2016. Any 
Increase In tlabil ty at this occovntlng dote has been chorged through Other Comprehensive Income. 

Donufcd />.~sels Ac~ounl Noh' ?Ol?/?0 :1016/19 
£ t 

o~enlngbatance 430.001 10.001 
Add: new donated assets received (condition of we not 
met] . -430,000 
r~ess: omoums rereosea ro me UJSrncr rvna-
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account ,, - 10.000 

-- -

4JU,Clll0 ~30,001 

Analysis of Donated A55els Account 

The balance of the Donated Assets Account represents donations received that hove yet to be recognised os Income, os they 
hove conditions attached to them, which will requ' re the donated assets to be returned. If conditions are not met. The balances 
at the year end ore os follows: 

Dono!ed Assets Atcounl Note 1019/?0 1010/19 
f t 

430.000 

430,000 4:10.00 l 

One donated woo of cri was previously carried at a nominal value of£\ for the purposes of stewardship. This valve has been 
derecogntsed under the Council's accounting policy ror heritage assets. and Ifs related Donated Asset Account amount released 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Accaunt, ln accordance with the "Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting In the United Klngdom"(lhe Code) and the Council's occaunllng policy. The asset Is stilt held by the Council in Its 
collecllon of heritage assets but Is not carried at a monetary value. 

The amount of £250k.ln capitol receipts unapplied relates to the proceeds from a dsposal to the NIHE of wh eh £138k has been 
used to dole to finance a playground. 
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Cupilol Gronls Rccc!vctlln Advuoce No le 
--

2019/L~ 2018!19 
£ f. 

·--~~ 
Add: new capitol grants received In od vance (condition of use not met) 159,404 -
IL&ls: amounrs re1easea ro me comprenemwe mcome ana t:Xpenanure 
Statement other projects 127,5711 (52,829) 

!Le ss: amoums rereasea to tne comprenenswe Income oncr EXpenanure 
Statement /729,1501 (42.4321 

IIJ~ 

Analysis of Capital Grants Receipts In Advance 8olance 
The balo nee of Capital Grants Receipts In Advance represents grants received that hove yet to be recognised os Income, as they 
hove conditions altached to them. which wtll require the grant to be repaid, if conditions ore not met. The balances at the year 
end ()(El as follows: 

-

t Upih11 ( "':znlll:. 1\CC:P.ph II) /~dvoru L 1101<! 20 19/20 201e119 
I" £ 

Wh tercel< Communi Garden Allotment 483 
BSC 7 Alleygates Lenadoon - -
BSC Alleygotes Dlvls . 499 
BSC Bikes lower Oldpart: . 6,700 
BSC Bikes lower Foils . 9.744 
BSC Bikes lower Shoni:IU . 9,859 
BSC 26 Alleygates lenadoon - 769 
Usnoshorragh leisure Centre - 500.000 
Sprlnglleld Dam 304,554 373.817 

Cunliltgcnclcl 

Residential Waste Treatment Project 

The arc21 Jolnl Committee has. with the approval of their Participant Coundls. entered Into a Contingent UobiDiy Undertaking 
with the bidding consorlium In the procurement for the Residential Waste Treatment Projecl. Payments made, If any, In 
accordance with this undertaking wlll be funded by the Porliclpont Counclls. 

londrllt Slltt 
The linonclol provision for the capping and annual moNtoring cost of the landllll site. required fo meet I he Council's 
environmental obUgotrons under the NIEA licence, has been agreed on a Local Authorlly Deed and disclosed In Note 18. The 
remaining area not covered by NIEA licence moy require specific copping depenc.f~ng on the future use of this land. The Impact 
of any future capping of this area on the Uoblfities of Belfast City Covncn Is uncertain and therefore no provtl!on for any such costs 
has been mode. 
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24 Other cash flow disclosures 

a Ar1olysls of Aclju~tmcnls to Surplus/Dcfrcll on the rrovrsron of SciViccs 

Aoj us men o surp us or v c on w prov.slon or services 
for none ash move·nenfs 

Depreciation 
mparrmenr & aownwora rEwaruarrons (!I. non-sore 

derecognltlonsj 
AmorllsottonjLn~uded Wllll deprecroiJon obOve) 
(Increase tuecreosa rn rnvemones 
(Lncreose Decrease In oeot01s 
Increase/ :decrease) ln Impairment provlsron tor bad debts 
11ncreose/ :uecrease) rn crea1rors 
llnCI'eose/ ;oecrease) rn InteresT _c:::~ors 
PaymenTs to NllGOSC 
rcorrvrng amounr or non-currenr assets soJa 
[AIC:/WIP wrmen ort to Net cost or seNJCes 
'"-onlr!Outtons to orner Keserves/Provrslons 
Movement In value of Investment properties-included 
above In Impairment & downward revaluatlom (& non-sale 
derecognltlonsj 
Amounts postea to CIES trom Dono~ Assets Accovm 
... onTroct cos!s 
~.-ontracr AsseJS 
LControcT llaomtles 
[Deterred revenue 

A<ljusl Tor 1fcn'S lnci.Hiccl In Ut<? rlP.I surplus or de>lic it on the 
orovlslon of scrvlco5 that are lnvestlna and flnanclna 

Purchase of short-term (not considered to be cash 
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes 
itlveslments In associoles, j<:>int ventures and subsidiaries) 

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cosh 
equivalents) and long-term Investments (indudes 
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries) 

Proceeds from lhe sole of PP&E, Investment property and 
Intangible assets 
Capitol grants Included In 'Taxation & non-specific grant 
Income·· 

Notes 

11 

11 

20 
60, 119 

21 

Notes 

2019/ 10 2018/19 

£ £ 
19.364,089 18.313.014 

1,605,228 (6,312.9571 . . 
(94.184) 49,874 

(4.704,7111) !,J45.~2 

~294 (170&581 
2,6tiY ,7.48 4.YII.!55/ . . 

14,552.000 24.489.000 
4.1U4.~:.! 350,000 

- . 
:.!.368,947 ;$,512.141 

. . 
(I) 110,000) 

- . 
. 

. . 
- . 

11 .. I. I'll • 

2019/ 20 2010/19 

£ £ 

. 89,928 

. . 

(4,942.650) 1430.080) 

(5,2.57,824) (3,052,865_}_ 

IW{I I I ll' • • 
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Cosh and Co~h Equlvolenls -

For the purposes of the cash flow statement. cosh and cash equivalents lnciude cosh on hand and In bank and short 
term deposits and Investments (considered to be cash equivalents). net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cosh and cosh 
equivalents at the end of the repor11ng period as shown In the statement ot cash flows can be reconciled lo the related 
Items In lhe Balance Sheet os follows: 

20 19/20 20 18!19 

£ £ 

Cash and 8anl:: balances 8,728,224 6,574,416 

Short Term Deposits {considered to be Cosh Equivalents) 8.000,000 17,000,000 

Short Term Investments {considered to be Cash Equivalents) - -
Bank Overdraft - -

16,728,224 23,574.416 

There Is currently a balance of £606.630 held within an escrow bonlc account with the BIG Lottery fund In relation lo the 
funding of the Connswoter Greenwoy project. This balance Is intended for future use within this wider project and 
funding will be drown down accordingly. This balance Is no! Included In lhe above total. 

Cosh llows from Investing Acf vi!ies 2019/20 20 18/19 

£ £ 
Purchase of PP &E, Investment properly_ and Intangible assets 43,209,670 39,773.615 

' 

,purchase or :~non Term Investments 1nor considered to be 
cosh equivalents) - -
Purchase of Long Term Investments - 89.928 
Other Payments for Investing Activities 1.974.259 1,733,342 

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E.lnvestment property and 
intangible assets _(4,942,6501 {430,080) 

Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to be 
cosh equivalents) - -
Proceeds rram long Term Investments . -
Capitol Grants and Contributions Received (5.257.824} 13.052.865) 
Other Receipts from Investing Activities - -
Nel Cosh flows lrom Investing Aclivili<:s 34,983/155 38, 113,940 
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-

• CosiJ flows tram Fi,crncing AcllviiiGs 2019/20 2018/19 
£ £ 

Cash Receipts from Short and Long Term Booowing 30,000.000 65,000,000 
Other Receipts from Financing Activities - -
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a finance lease 
and on-Balance Sheet PFI contracts 

- . 
Repayment of Short and long Term Booowing /20.182,319) /38.874,042) 
Other payments for financing Acllvllles - . 

• • . • !:tl'.t1:. . ' :•· 

Usctble Reserves 

a Capital Rccetpls Reserve 

b 

These ore capitol receipts which have originaled primarily from the sole of assets which hove not yet been used to 
finance capital expenditure. 

The Capital Receipts Resetve Is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sates and other monies defined by statute as 
capital receipts. These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as port of the 
gain/loss on disposal and posted out via the Movement In Reserves Statement to the Capitol Receipts Reserve. The 
reserve is written down when resources ore applied to tlnonce new capital expenditure or set oslde to reduce an 
aulhorlty's caplla financing requirement (or used for other purposes permllled by statute). 

- I • """~.,~. tllr,Itn·~ 

£ £ 
.At lADrll 5,200,457 4,739.457 

Transfers between stalutory & other reserves & the General 
Fund - -
Dlsoosol of Non Current Assets/ Caoitol Sales 8.9e 4,5/2,001 400.000 
::aoltol Recelots used to llnonce caoltal exoenditure - -
Difference between finance and other costs and Income 
calculaled on an accounting basis and finance costs 
calculated In accordance wilh statutory requirements - -
Other Movements - 61.000 

Al31 March 9.772,458 5,200,457 

Dclcrrcd Cap1lal Receipts Accounl --

The Deferred Capitol Receipts Account holds the gains recognised on !he disposal of non-current assets but for which 
cash settlement has yet to lake place. Under slatutory OITangemenls, !he Council does not !real these gains as usable 
for financing new capilal expendiil.Jre until they are backed by cosh receipts. When the deferred cash settlement 
eventually lal<:es place, amounts ore transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

• . .. • . I.IIJAIJ',(I l.llfi'.(IJ .. j 

£ £ 
All Aarll . . 
Movement 
Other movements 342.300 . 

AIJt More!\ 342,300 . 

!06 



c 
~-- - ~- - - - - - -- - - -- - - - -- - - - -- - -- - -- - - - - -

Cop1lal Funtl 

This fund is authorised under Sec lion 9 of Part I of the local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 

I I . • I I I I • 

£ £ 
IAJ I April :Z5,:ZBB,151 :.!5,669,445 

Transfers between slaluiOJy & other reserves & the General 
Fund 4b 2,061.597 [247.6041 

Transfer to Neighbourhood Regenerallon Fund (8,000,000) 

Flnanc~ from CCIF - (43.762} 
Transfers between Capitol Fund & CAA to finance Capitol 
Expendllure 12 - {89,928) 

' ~t: ..... 11. 

£ £ 
Local Investment Fund 1.171,489 1.425,280 
Belfast Investment Fund 723 5.559.723 
Clly Centre Investment Fund 15,154,012 15.154.012 
Social Outcomes Fund 3,043,524 3.149,136 
rota! 19,369,748 25,288,161 

The movement and purpose of these funds Is outlined below: 

Local Investment Fund (LIF) is a key port of the Investment Programme that provides funding for smaller lnrtlatrves 
focusing on physical work on buildings or focilllles wlfhln communities. The balance on this fund os ol31 March 2020 is 
£ 1.17!.489. 

Belfasl Jnvesli11e nl fund 31/03/2020 31/03/2019 
£ £ 

Openln balance 5.559.723 4.()80,715 
Add: new contrlbutlons to fund 4b 3,270,000 3,270,000 I 

Less: financing drown down from fund 4b {829.0001 (1,790,992) . 
Less: transfer to Neighbourhood Rengenerouon 
rund {8.000.000) . . • 

There Is a balance of £723 on the Bellostlnvestment Fund at year end 31 March 2020. Th!s fund was established to 
support partnership projecls across the Cl!y. 
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Clly Centre Investment Fund (CCIF)Is a fund to supporl the Belfast City Centre Regeneration Investment Plans. The 
proposed Investment principles tor the CCIF ore os follows: 

• 1 he project should make a significant Impact on I he City Centre economy In terms of ''gross value added" and job 
creation 
• the project should mal<e positive and net contribution to the business rotes Income received by Belfast City council 

Belfast City Council used this fund to suppOI't ongoing and potential City Centre regenerallon projects. The balance on 
CC IF at year end 31 March 2020 remains at £15,154,012. 

AI 31 March 3,043,524 3.149,136 

Social Outcomes Fund Is set up to support City Centre projects which might not generate a direct financial return but 
which would enhance the overall City Centre offer and support the attraction of Investment Into the City Centre. The 
balance on this fund os at 31 March 2020 is £3,043,524. 

LcisureMoblllsotion Fund 

This fund is authorised under Section 9 of Part 1 of I he Local Govern men I Finance Act (No them Ireland) 20 tl. 

leisure Moblllsol!on fund Note-s 31/03/2020 31/03/2019 
£ £ 

All April 1,441,702 1.704.334 
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General 
Fund 4b (553,902) (262,632) 
Transfers between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to finance 
Capitol Expenditure 12 . A 

Al31 Mulch 887,800 1,441,702 

The Leisure Mobilisation Fund Is a fund to support the Leisure Transformation Programme. This fund wilt cover programme 
level costs including communications, engagements and procurement costs. 

-

Neighbourhood Regcnerol!on fund 

This fund Is authorised under Section 9 of Part I of lhe Local Government Finance Act (Nothern Ireland} 2011. 
- --

Nelgl1bourhood Rcgcncrollon Fund r~otes 31/03/20?0 3 r /03/1019 

£ 

At 1 April . . 
Add: transfer from Belfast Investment Fund 8,000,000 . 
Less: amounts drawn down from fund . . 
At31 March 8,000.000 -
The Neighbourhood Regenera1ion Fund is a fund to suppOI'I neighbourhood regeneration and tourism projects In local 
neighbourhoods. 

£ 
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Other Balances & Reserves -

Olhor noronces &. Reserves Notes 31 /03/'1070 31 / 03/101 9 
£ 

AIl April 1,063,919 867,527 
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General 
Fund 4b (671.307) 160.668 
Transfer to BWUH Subvention fund 1187,168) 153,029 
Transfer to BWUH Slnlclng Fund 92.780 1117.325) 

' IT_.II.'.I"• 

£ £ 
Election Fund 3,300 674,607 
BWUH Subvention Fund 135,499 322,667 
BWUH Sinking Fund 159.425 66,645 
Total 298,224 1,063,919 

The movement and purpose of these funds is outlined below: 

This reserve is used to equalise (smooth) the cost of elections by building up a fund to cover the costs of future elections 
by molclng contribu!Jons, as and when required, to the reserve. 

BWUH Subvention Fund was established to support national and lnlernolionol corporate organisations in bringing their 
conferences to Belfast. 

BWUH Sinking Fund Is a fund to support planned maintenance and future capitol works of the new exhibition centre at 
Waterfront Hall. 



g General Fund 

This reserve shows the accounting cost In the year of providing services In accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices. rather than the amount to be funded from District Rotes. Council$ raise rotes to cover expenditure 
In accordance wllh regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position Is shown In the 
Movement in Reserves statement. 

2019/20 ?018/19 
General fund Noles 

This fund represents the surplus of income over expenditure. lt can be used to supplemenllncome and unexpected 
expenditure in future years. Of the £28.693k, £15,7921: relates to expenditure committed at the year end (18/19 £25,7971r::, 
£12,9571: commitled). 

110 



26 
a 

Unusable Reserves 
Copilul Adjuslmcnl AccouJJI 

The Capitol Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting 
for the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisition. construction or enhancement of those assets under 
statutory provisions. 

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation. Impairment losses 
and amOtlisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement, wllh reconciling poslings 
from the Revalualion Reserve to convert fair value figures to an historic cost basis. 

The account Is credited with the amounts set aside by the Councft os finance for the cosls of acquisition. construction 
and subsequent costs. 

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated assets 
that hove yet to be consumed by the Council. 

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Properly. Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007. the 
dole that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold svch go'ns. 

--

2019/ 20 2018/19 
Capllol Adjuslrnenl Account tloles 

£ £ 
AI 1 April 470.959.253 460.487,377 
Applied Capital Grants 10,12 5,257.824 3,052,865 
Unapplied Cqpital Grants lransferred to CAA In year . . 
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 7,870.253 9,239,567 

Depreciation & lmpairmenl adjustment 1t (20.969.3171 ( 12,000.057} 
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 4,12 7.547,320 5,874,116 
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under 4.12 . . 
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capital Soles 4, I 1 (8.493,528} (350,000) 
Capjtol Receipts used to finance capital expendiiU"e 4. 12 . . 
Other Movements 5.719.253 4,565.457 

11ransrers oetween c..:opnar fUOCI/RenewoJ & Repair fUnCJ & 
CAA to finance capital expenditure 12 . 89,928 

AIJI March 467.891 ,056 470.?59,253 
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b Revaluation Rese1ve -

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from Increases In lhe value ot Its Properly, Plant 
and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve Is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

- revalued downwards or Impaired and lhe gains are lost 
- used In fhe provision of services and lhe gains are consumed through depredation, or 
-disposed of and the gains are realised. 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the dale the reserve was created. 
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolldoted into lhe balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on lhe revaluation (upwards or downwards! of individual 
assets. All such revalualions (exduding Impairment losses lhal have been debited to Surplus/(Deflcil) on the Provision of 
Services are mirrored In Other Comprehensive Income and Expendilure. 11 Is a fundamental principle of this account 
that it never becomes negative. If an asset was held at cooent value when derecognlsed, the balance held on the 
Revaluation Reserve Is written off to the Capllal Adjustment Account. 

Revalualloll Rese1ve Noles 2019/20 20 18/19 

£ £ 
All April 164.611.507 159,528.493 
Revaluation & Impairment 11 27.846.428 9,648.471 
Movements from associates & joint ventures . 
Other Movements (4,882,704) (4,565,457) 

Al3l MUI<:h 187.575.231 164,6 ll,50i' 

Ponslon Re-smve 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from I he different arrangements for accounting for post­
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statuto!)' provisions. The Council accounts for post­
employment benelils In the Comphenslve Income ond Expenditure Statement as benefits are earned by employees 
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect Inflation, changing assumptions and Investment 
returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs 

However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed os the Council makes employer's contributions 
to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which Ills directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions 
Reserve therefore shows a substanllal shortfall in the benefits earned by posl and current employees and the resources 
the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangemenis will ensure that funding will have been set aside by 
the time the benefits come to be paid. 
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Accumulated AbscPccs Account 

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund balance 
from accruing for compensated absences earned but not token In the year e.g. slaff annual leave entitlement carried 
forward at the end of the financial year. Statutory arrangements ore expected to require that the impact on the General 
Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account 

. . . ' • I IJ"jfJII'.ll I 1)1', 

£ £ 
At! April (1.357,825) " ,344,230) 
Ditrerence between finance and other costs and Income 
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs 
calculated In accordance wlfh statutory requirements {5.880) {13.595) 

. I : 

Provtslons Drscounl Rule Reserve - -

The Provisions Discount Role Reserve covers the arrangement. p ut in place by the Deportment under Ifs amendment to 
the 2017/18 accounts direction jsee DIC circular LG 05/2018). to accommodate changes In the current value of the 
annual calculation ot tong term provisions for landllll costs. which arises os a result of changes to the interest roles used 
to discount these provisions and landfiU cash flows being Increased fa inflation. 

At 31 March (!98,153) (263.159) 
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- --- - -

Significant Troding Operations 

The Council considers a trading operation exists where the service lt provides Is competitive l.e the user always has lha 
choice to use an alternalive suppller to the Council and the Council charges the user on a basis other than a 
s!rolghlforward recharge of the Council's costs In supplying the service. the Council uses a variety of charging 
mechanisms such as quoted lump sums. fixed periodical charges or rates. or a combination of these. 

In decldlng whether a trading operation is significant the Council lakes both financial and non-financial criteria into 
accounl. 

Financial criteria token Into account In deciding whether trading operations ore signHfcant to the Council are: 

-the magnitude of each Individual trading operation's turnover when compared with the Council's net revenue budget 

- the risk of financial loss the Council may be exposed la In providing the service to the user. 

Non-financla criteria taken into account In deciding whether trading operations ore significant to the Council are: 

-the Importance of each indMdual trading operation to demonstrating the achievement of Council targets and 
Improving performance. 

- the exposure of the Council to service reputatlonalloss risk by providing the service 

-whether the provision of the service Is likely to be of interest to the Council's key stokeholders and their needs. 

In applying the aforementioned criteria, lhe Council considers the letting of Industrial estates to be a significant trod ng 
operallon. The Income and expenditure associated with these Industrial estates Is disclosed below; 

lndu~hiol E~lole lettlngs 2019/20 2018/19 

These slgnllicant trading operatlons form part of Note 9e to these financial statements. 

A gen cy Se1vlces 

The Council provides odmln'sfralion services to Belfast One BID Lld, Destination CQ BID ltd and Belfast Central Business 
Dlstrlcl. These en lilies pay on administration fee to the Councillor these services. This fee amounted to £12,316 [20 18/19 
£30,059) across the 3 entities. 

JtJ1nf Arro11gcm cnts 

During 2019/20 Be fast Clly Council did not make o flnanclol contribution to Belle! LLP relating to the redevelopment of 
the Belfast Telegraph Building (18/19 £89.928). 

The contribution to LLP is included in the Long term Assets of Belfast City Council. This represents 46% of the net assets of 
the LLP which Is Included In Belfast City Council's consolidated balance sheet. 

On 1 April2016. the operations of Waterfront Hall and Ulster Hall were transferred too company BWUH Umiled. Belfast 
City Council hold the entire shore capital of this company, l ordinary share at £1 each. Belfast City Council entered Into 
on agreement with BWUH limited under which the Council pays I he company o management fee for the operation of 
Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall. Payments to and lrom the company are outlined In Note 30 I. 

114 



30 
- -

Related P01ty Transactions 

A Related Party Transaction Is a transfer of resources or obligations between related ponies, regardless of whether o 
price Is charged. Related Party Transaction exclude transactions wllh any other entity that Is a related party solely 
because of Ifs economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which 11 forms port. A related party Is one 
that has the a bUlly to control the other party or exercise significant Influence over I he other party In maklng ffnonclal and 
operallng decisions. This indudes cases where the related pony entity and another entity ore subject to common control 
but excludes providers of finance In lhe course of their normal business with the Council and Trade Unions In the course 
of their normal dealings with the Council. In addition where the relationship with the Councl and the entity Is solely that 
of an Agency (see note 28) these ore not deemed to be Related Party Transactions. 

As pori of their duties, Councillors are appointed to represent the Council In a range of other organisations and further 
details of these arrangements con be found on the Council's website. 

Transactions with related ponies not diSclosed elsewhere In these financial statements ore set ovt below. 

Councillors have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. In the 20 19/'XJ financial year the 
Council commissioned £3, 175.796 (20 18/19 £3.019 ,697) of works and services from VIsit Belfast in which Councillors have 
on Interest. lhe Council entered Into these contracts In full compliance wllh the Council's standing orders and codes of 
conduct. 
The Council also paid grants of£ 1,928.687 (201 8/19 £ 1.403,026) to a number of organisations in which Councillors and 
Council officers had an Interest. These grants were mode with proper consideration of declaration of interests. 

During 2019/'XJ the Council hod expenditure of £488,842(2018/19 £531,913) lo other Councils and Income received of 
£1.035,750 ('XJ 18/ I 9 £ 1,508,972) from other CouncQs, of which £229.00 I (20 18/19 £58.122) wos outstanding al31 March 
2020. These amounts mainly related to services provided. 

The Council also borrowed £ 15m from other Local Authorities within fhe U K during 2019/20, with £5m outstanding ot 31 
Morch2020. 

a Other Organisations 

Restated 
Covoc lll011 2019/20 2018/19 

£ £ 
Action Cancer 1 420 0 
Association ol Port Health Authorltles 1 124 222 
Blackle River Centre 2 22,604 25.112 
Selfost City Centre ManoQement Board 2 207,185 238,260 
Belfast Harbour Commissioners 4 31.482 36,369 
Belfast Hills Partnership I 0 36.900 
Belfast MetroPOlitan College I 7,878 11.266 
Belvolr Area Residents' Group I 964 23,990 
Board of Ulster o rchestra Society Ltd I 300,973 319,253 
Costlereogh FC 82 I 170 680 

Cathedral Quarter Trust 2 99,920 396,989 
Colln Neighbovrhood Portnershig 2 39.430 40,855 
Colin Safer Neighbourhood Pro{ect 1 800 0 
Concorde Community Centre Committee 0 600 240 
Creaagh Wonderers Club 1 11.600 8.939 
Dee Street Community Centre Committee 6 600 0 
OoneQoll Pass Commvnlty Centre Committee 3 0 600 
Duncalrn Community Centre Committee 4 600 0 
Ouncalrn Community parinership 1 8.251 3,632 
Early Years Company ltd 1 28,541 0 
East Side Arts 1 106.230 133.190 
Falls Cornmvnlly Covndl I 407,491 575,031 
Flnaghy Community Centre Committee 2 0 0 
Grand Opera House Trust I 37.034 35.000 
Greater Shanl:ill Partnership Soard 6 94,622 49.414 
Greater Village Regeneration Trust I 67,327 24.184 
Groundwork NI I 1,842 2.929 
Hammer CommunllyCentre Committee 0 0 0 
Hlghffeld CommunllyCentre Commlltee 0 0 0 
Horn Drive Community Centre Committee 0 0 0 
lmooct Trainlna 2 10,180 1,000 
lnte1comm Ireland ltd I 3.011 84.766 
lnverarv Community Centre Comml1tee 1 600 0 
knocknoooney Community Centre Committee 5 759 1.420 
LaQon Valley Regional Park Advisory Committee 2 0 0 
Lagon Village Youth and CommunllY Group_ I 20,873 23.276 
Llghthovse IJreloi'\Ql I 2.355 0 
LIQQ!'liel Amateur BoxlfJQ Club I 7.528 4.812 
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Llaonlel Communilv Centre Committee I 600 0 
LlnenhallllbrOIV Board I 38.017 35.835 
Locol strateaic Partnershio on Travellers Issues 2 0 1.000 
Lvric Theatre Education Advlsorv Panel 2 100,000 150.978 
Morlon Communltv Centre Committee 4 0 0 
Mount Vemon Communllv Develoomenl Forum 1 27.196 6,500 

National Assoclollon of Councillors 6 3.560 3,560 

NI Amenllv Council I 2.330 4,660 1 

NI local Government Association 9 90.740 90.434 
Northern ReQionol Colleae I 522 0 
Oh Yeah Centre, Belfast I 43,865 0 
Queens Unlversitv Belfast I 21.670 11225.28 . 
Roval Societllof Ulster Architects I 4,408 1,489 
Somme Advisory Council 3 0 1,89<1 
Strataaem Nlllmited I 25.638 86.4 
Ulster-Scols Communflv Network I 400 72,400 . 
Upper Andersonstown Communlfv forum 1 39,860 16,5001 
Upper SPflnoffeld Develooment Trust I 6,884 2,950 
Visll Belfast · 4 3,175.796 3.0t9.648 ' 
Woodvole Communllv Centre Committee 2 1,003 0 

AI 31 Mmch 5,104,483 5.498.266 
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b Paymentl to Community Groups 
Belfast City CouncH made payments to the following Community Groups that have Councillors as port of their 
committee struch.xe; 

- -- -

Councillors 2019/20 2018/19 

£ £ 
East Belfast Partnership Board 8 103,947 20,500 
North Belfast Partnership Board 1 0 0 
South Belfast Partnership Board 4 21,578 20.220 ! 
West Belfast Partnership Board 8 26,131 8.784 

151,656 49,504 

c Joint committees 
Belfast City Councf• made payments to the following Joint Committees; 

i·IIIII311N£ 2Dl9/20 2018/19 

7,517,5J 2 

The origins of arc21 con be traced back to June 1999, When a small number of Council representatives agreed that a 
)olnl approach was the best way to deliver on effective wosle monagemenl strategy for !ha region. By 2000. 11 Counclls 
had joined together from the eastern Region Woste Management Group. which was eventually renamed orc21. 

At presenl orc21 has successfully been awarded and is managing waste managemenl contracts on behalf of Coonclls 
with a value rn the region of £200m. 

d Active Belfaslllmtted 
Belfast City Council with Ac 1ive Belfast Limited entered into an agreement with Gll for the provision of le isure services. 
These financial statements Include expenses of £7,708,057 (2018/19 £7,269 ,390) for the provision of these services In the 
year ended 31 Marc h 2020. 

e Car Loans to Council OHiceu 
The Council makes cor loans available to employees who ore designated assenlial cor users. The total amount 
outstanding In respect of c ar loons to designated employees as at 31 March 2020was £91.147 (2018/19 £116,107). 

Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall limited 
Wilh effec t from 1 Apra 201 6 the Council transferred the operations of Belfast Wo terfront Hall and Ulster Hall to a new 
company BWUH Limited with the Council being the sole shareholder In this new company. During 2019/20 the Council 
invoiced BWUH Lid for £2.542.853 for expenditure incurred on lt's behalf and also rec eived Invoices from the Company 
for£3.344.674 mainly for the manogemenl fee. Al31 March 2020,£424,927 {2018/19 £182.8111 was owed to the 
company by the Council and £796,280 (2018/19 £132,142) receivable from the company. 

g Bette1 LLP 
During 2019/20. 8elfosl Clly Council did not make a financial contribulion to Belle! LLP (2018/19 £89,928), relating to the 
redevelopment of the Belfast Telegraph Building {os ouflined in Note 29) . The Counc il is represented by two offlcers on 
the Management Board of the LLP and limec 1523 Limited ls also represented by two members on the Manogemenl 
Board. 
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Belfcnl City Council 
Grovp Movement In ReJerves Slalemenl lor lh• ya<lllllnded 31 March 20.20 

[ 
I .lld;ui;, ... ":: -.s 
l.fHIQMIIIIMMIN' 
Movomanl ln r•••rv•• 
dvrlnQ I ha vaar 
S~r~plusl (Deflcll) on tha 
provision of services 
Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Total Comprahan•IVIII 
Income and Exoandllura 
Adj\lslmenh between 
accounting bosh 11. 
fund"ll'lQ under reQulalloos 
Net Increase before 
fro nsfars to Statutory and 
Other Reserves 
TramlerJ to I from 
Statutory and Olh&r 
Reserves 

Other mov&menls 

Increase/ Decrease In 
Y8QI 

Movctmanlln reserve• 
dudna the va(J( 
SlKplus/(Oenctt) on th& 
provision of services 
Other Comprahorulve 
Income and Expenditure 
Total Comprehensive 
Income a nd Exoendllura 
Ad)uslmenls between 
ac counting basis & 
fundlnQ under reQulallom 
Net Increase balore 
tronllera to Statutory and 
Other Reserve• 
1ransferJ la I from 
Statutory and Other 
Reserves 
Olhermoverrumls 
lncreos•ln ya111 

(18.~69,&70) 

(18.469,,70) 

10.7~4.640 

274,970 

349,548 

774,052 

1.398.S70 

1 1 3.1~8,384) 

(13,148,384) 

15,168,831 

2,020.447 

[856.3881 

1.731,845 
2.895,904 

(89.9281 

(89,928) 

tJ49.S48J 

(8.()58) 

(447.534} 

3~2.300 

342.300 

856,388 

{94,388) 
1.1~.300 

400,00() 

-400,000 

61.000 

4".000 

4,572,001 

4,572,001 

4,572.001 

( 18.~69,6701 (18.469.670] 

24.971.471 24.971,471 

(18,469,670) 24,971,471 6,501,801 

19.054.712 (18,583,6441 -471.068 

685,042 6,387,827 , ,,2,869 

826.9~4 (30~.704] 522,290 

1.412.036 6,083,123 7,495,159 

(13.148,384) (13, 148,384) 

6,663,428 6,663,428 

(13,149,384) 6,U3,4~8 (6,494,9S6) 

20.083,132 (22,498,871) (2.415,739) 

6,934,748 ( 1 5,835,443) (8,900,69/i) 

1,637.457 1156,9021 1,480,555 
8.572.205 (15.792.345) (7,420, 140) 



blla•l City Council 
Group Comprehemlve Income and Expenditure Slalement for the yecn ended 31 March 2020 

11111'~:~• ·tM~endii.J-.., I 1•1111 NJIIICPt.'ll!m~--, 1 .Gsosi. ~t:torria --,~~ -~-~ .. lnaoi):(O· 
I ~· • • !' ·- .. .1.0 

~~o Ji¥~utn\tiiuto :'No illS i -:t. i- ·t i.' £ f 
Slroleglc Polk:y & 2 65,875,78~ (13.685,316} 52.190,468 78.594,231 (11.644,8781 66,949.353 
Rerources 
City Growth & 2 37,728,035 (lU69.6961 23,058,339 39,095,072 /15.365.940/ 23,729,132 
RIIRtlnOrallon 
People &. Communities 2 120.253,125 (15,57 4,8281 104,678,297 112,535.363 (16.091,0221 96.444.3-41 
PlonnlnQ & Uc:emlng 2 8,145.681 {6,360.6791 1,785,002 8,527,144 (6.208.2261 2.318.918 

- --

Cn-.lolSt>IVht."~l'fl /12 -•.1 '·~, (~.),[I' 'i, 1'11 /l't'lnt' .~~~ :•. 1 ~ Ill i·~· •IOu.:.t; H•7 :~~ ;t:f 
C":or~tlllul:·c: On..-••n11on~ ' 

Olher Oper(lflog 
Expend lure 

8 95-4.852 11. 11'2.6501 (237,7981 30,060 (30.0801 

financing and lnvoslmonl 
lncOITICI and ExPendlhNe 

9 

f(ll(aUon and Non-Spaciflc 10 
Gran! Income 

(1,087,3571 

(169,083,7171 1167,289,5671 

( 13,984.884) (7.862,131} 

1162,988. 1801 (163,079,863} 

{St.rp:l.n)/Oa"cllu()PICl }1·'· ._•1L,~~,; f~'lJil/}:,• l\':t.,-:.1 "'1:/,'?lo t.>:t•I•; I CIJ r,.1('tl'l 
~~~· ... S l (,!_n or Sr'!IVfCfl\ 

(Surplus}/Doflclt on 
rovalvotlol\ of non-current 11 f27,8~6,428f (9.6~8.471 1 
aueb 

Surplus/(DeftctiJ arising on 
revaluation of avo!lable· 11 
for·salellnonclal assets 

Rameosurements o/ lhe 
Nal Donned Benent 20 21,183,000 (15,323.000) 
Uoblnty fkself 

lnlul ComprPIH·n~l\.'1' IrK OPH~ und Expe>ndUurt• 6 484, 95( {6.501 BU I} 
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a.lfari CIIV Council 
Gtoup Balance Sheet as al31 Match 2020 

- - -- - - t.o'<> 3Js1Mclch2020 3)1!Mwch2019 

:.... -
Axod Msols 
long TetiTTIInvestmenls 

lnve.stmentln Associates and Joint Ventures 

long Term Debtors 
Conlrocl Aneb 

Shorllerm lnve.slmen!s 
lnvenlotles 
ShO/t Term Debtors 
Cosh and Cash Equivalents 
As.!ets Held for Sale 
ConftQcl Auefs 

£ 
792,85'1,755 

~24.000 

~39.542 

370.~74 
21,069,791 
20,St6,975 
1.3~0.000 

378.891 

Ro>lufo!f 
:£ 

750,563,883 
431.000 

603.659 

276.291 
16,367,024 
27,866.068 

266,607 
1.947,969 

I 'lJ~h'llll N.;; I lj - u I!{ " " ~I. :; .I')~~ 

Sank Overdraft 
Shori Term Borrowing 
Short lefm CreQ!ors 
Provisions 
ConfJaclllabllilles 

9,739,488 
37,276.256 
3,13\,517 

277,367 

4,000,000 
36,S02.814 
2.894,851 

CURf:l liiiii'IIIIIHII S ::0.1.11 6 '6 ~.' ' '11 ,{,£', 

long lenn Ctedlors 
Provblons 
Long Tetm Boslowlng 
Other Long Term Uab1llles 
Con!toc1llablifi&s 
Donated As.!els Accounl 
Capital Grants Receipts in Advcsnce 

USABLE RESERVES 
Capitol Receipts Reserve 
Deterred capital recelpll 
Capitol Fund 
Leisure MoblllsaliOI'l Fund 
Neighbourhood Reganerallon fund 
Other Balonces and Reserves 
General Fund 

UNUSABlE RESERVES 
Copltal Adluslmenl Account 
llevoluonon ~eserve 
Pensions Reserve 
Accumulaled Absences Account 
Provisions Dhcounl ~ole Reserve 

64.304 
1,822,694 

62.967,173 
182,307.942 

430.000 
416.279 

9,772.458 
342,300 

19.349,7~8 

887,800 
8.000,000 

298,224 
28.699.369 

467,891.058 
187.575.231 

(1 82,307,942) 
(1,363,70.51 

(198,1531 

50.386 
1,769,315 

58.888.981 
146,360,942 

430,001 
1,018,683 

5,200,457 

25,288,151 
1.~41 ,702 

1,063,919 
25,803.465 

470,9.59,253 
164.611.507 

(1~6.360, 9421 
(1,357,8251 

1263.159) 

>lfl WO~fll 538,96 &,306 546,366.528 
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881fad C!ly Council 
Group Cash flow Statement al31 March 2020 

Not Oollcll on tho f)IOYI!Ion ot services 

Adjustment for non-cash movements 

AdJust for Items Included In the net surplus or deftclf on the provision ol 
services that are Investing and llnanclng activities 

Cosh !lows from lnvosllng Actlvlllos 

Hot Cash ltows from Financing Ac!MIIes 

(35.838.978) 

9.8t7,68t 

48.275.099 

(3,393,0t7) 

139,163.299) 

26,125,958 

Not tncroa1o or docrnoso In cosh ond cash c~ulvolonh • - '"'·;; r' .... • · ' "'"!I ~49,09.<) 1'· '· ~ :··, • '13 j/6 071• 

Cash and cosh eq~olents at the beginning of the repo111ng period 27,866.068 14,490.991 

Cosh ond cosh Cf1Uivolonh ollho ond of lh<>roporllrtfl norlod . ~- ·• ~ · •. • I · · 20 51~ 975 : • - 17,f66 Ot6 o 
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Belfast Clly Council 
Notes to the Group Financial Sratements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

Gl Group Account• 

The Group Accounting Policies are the same os the Council poKcles and have not been repealed again In 
these Notes. The exception to this l.s In relation lo Retirement Benefits which have been treated In BWUH Umlted 
os o defined contribution scheme os the lobllilles of the NiLGOSC scheme remain wlth Belfast Clly Council and 
have been disclosed In Belfast City Council's financial slotements. 

Since there are no slgnlllconl changes to the Conso~doted Group Balance Sheet as compared to the Councls 
Balance Sheet. only those notes affected by group transactions have been included. 

G2 Combining Entitles 
Be11a51 Waterfront Ulster Hall limited ( 8WUH Lld) 

Belfast Waterfront Ulster Hall Umlted is a company incorporaled under lhe terms of the Companies Acts to 
operate the Belfast Waterlront and Ulster Hall. The Authority is the principal shareholder In the company holding 
1 ordinary£ 1 shares and representing 100% of the Issued shore caplfal. Under accounting standards. the 
Aulhorlty has a controiUng Interest In !his company. The financial results for I he company hove been Included In 
the group accounts as a subsidiary. 

Net assets of the company were £6.71c. at31 March 2020. The profit on ordinary activities before taxation for the 
peliod to 31 March 2020 was£ 1.21c. No dividend paymenls were due to, or received by, I hEt Aulhorlty in respect 
of its lnvestmetnl. 

As noted In Note 20, the pension liability of BWUH limited Is Included In lhe pension Uobllity of Belfast City 
Counc~. 

The latest set of accounts Is for the year to 31 March 2020 has an unqualified audit certificate. 

BI:LTEL UP 

For the purposes of economic regenerollon os port of the City Centre Regenerolion objectives the Councu 
mode a financial contribution In the form of o loon of now totalling £3.436.859 os at year ended 31 March 
2020, to lleltel LLP relating to the redevelopment of the Belfast leletgraph bulldlng. This contribution represents 
46% of the net assets of Beltel LLP which hove been Included In the Council's group balance sheet and the 
breakdown of lhe net assets Is Included In Note 29 Joint Arrangements. 

Gas Pension Fund 

The asset of £5,000 In respect of the Gas Pension Fund Is disclosed and recognised m Belfast Clly CounCil's 
balance sheet and Note 20 Re11rement Beneflls disclosures. TI1e Group balance sheet has Included the assets 
and ~oblUIIes giving tfse to this asset: 

£ 

Long term assets 424.347 

Current assets 443.436 

Long term liabilities 862.783 

Net osst 5.000 

The Covndl has not consolidated Its Interests In Active Belfast Limited. llelfast Gasworks Management Co Ltd 
and .Vc 21 os the Coundt's share of these balance $heels Is not deemed mate~al lo !he group accounts al this 
po1ntln time. 

Financial Impact of combination 

The effect ol the Inclusion of the subsidlalies and associates In 2019/20 was la Increase roe Council's reserves 
and net assels by £6.7k: representing the net asset In the consolidollng enlltias. 



G3 Adjustments between an Accounting Basis and funding Basis under Regulallons 
Amounts Included In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be 
excluded when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for Jhe yecu: 

I • I 

£ 

Amounts Included In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by slalule to be 
excluded when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year: 
Impairments (IOfses & reveiScl$) 
of non-current ouets 

Derecognltlon (other than 
disposal) of non-<:urrenl assets 
Revaluation 
Increases/decreases token to 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provblon 
of Services 

Depredation charged In the 
year on non-current assets 
Net Revenue expenditure 
funded from capitol under 
Conylng amount of non current 
assets sold 

Proceeds from the sole of PP&E. 
Investment property and 
Intangible nssels 

Dlllerence between llncnce 
costs calculated on on 
accounting basis and nnance 
costs calculated In accordance 
with statutory requirements 

Net chorges mode for 
retirement benents In 
accordance with IAS 19 

Direct revenue nnancing of 
Capital Expenditure 

Capital Grants and Donated 
Assets Receivable and Applied 
In year 

Capital Grants Receivable and 
UnappUedln year 

Rotes Claw-Bock Re,erve 

Adjustments In relation to Short 
term compensated absences 

Adjustments In relation to Lessor 
Arrangements 

Provisions Discount Rote Reserve 
Adjustment 
Amounts not Included In the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement but 
required by statute to be 
Included when determining the 
Movement on the General Fund 
Balance for the year 

statutory Provision for the 
l!nondng of Capital Investment 
Employers comrlbullons 
payable to the NllGOSC and 
retirement benents payable 
direct to pensioners 

1.605,228 

19.396.016 

·4.704,852 

(4,942,650) 

(6.312.957) 

21.001,2.44 18.382.926 12,069,969 

350.000 

(237,798) (430.080) (80,080) 

31,257,000 39,630,000 

(7,870.253) (9 .239,567) 

(5.252.737) (2.919,677) 

(5.087) (133.188) 

5.880 13.595 

(55.098) 57,704 

(7.547,320) (5,87 4,116) 

(16,127,000) (14.780.000) 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the GIOUp flnanc:lal $IQternents 

FOR THE Y!AR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

G4 ~Assets 

IRevcluallon ir>a'eOSesl 
(clec:rea5o$J to ReYOiuollon 
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BelfCISt Clly Council 
Noles to the Group Flnanclai.Stalernenls 
FOR lHE YEAR ENDED 31 MAIICK 2020 

Balance at stc:wt of year. 
Gross c:aty!ng amounts 
Accumulated a1Tl011isaf10n 
Met carying amount at .start of year 
Additions 
Assefs reclcmilied as held for sale 
Revaluation Jncreases or deCTease5 
lmpclltTnent losses recovnlsed or reversed directly In the Revaluation Reserve 
lmpglrment losses recognised or revmed cliredly in the Surplus/ Deftdt on the Provision of Services 
Amotlisc:rtion for the period 
other ChanOes 

£ 

19,.208.176 
l8.790.126 

-'18.050 

(ISO.BSSJ 
4S6Zl 

!; 

19.208.176 
18.651~ 

556.942 

[138.892) 

.... iRim~--miRi ........ ~=m ................................................................ ~~~~ .... ~~·~ 

•• .. ,.-. -' '" (•· • :;,!·; .. ···• ·•. 2019(liJ .::01;:~ 9 --Bolonce at start of 1he year 
Additions 
Dlsposals 
Net goinsJiosses from fait value aC!jV51ments 
TronsfeB to/ from Inventories 
Transfers tot from property, plant and equipment 
Olhet~es 

~ 
91.963.283 

173.146 
[350.0001 
7~/:1¥) 

1.300.000 
'D 2 a:tW4U W.ll~ 

:h · ... ,! .T t- ~t PIO; N~"f 2019/'20 2018/19 

£. 
73..800.000-
26.311-"29 

1.28 



G5 
a 

b 

c 

d 

lhe above staff cos Is Include the costs of voluntary redundancies In 2019/20. These costs total £977.075 ( 18/19 
£2.003,028) and ore disclosed separately In Table 4 of the Remuneration Report. In addition, agency costs 
during the year amounted to £5.626,073 (2018/19 £4.818.572). 

lh& Council's current contribution role to NllGOSC scheme Is 20% plus a 2% Deficit Recovery Contrfbulfon. 

Average Number of Employees -where FTE represents lull lime equivalent employees 

.0:: """ I " I'OilCY & 620 627 
Cll:rGrowth & llr 369 289 

1,162 1.225 
tond 140 145 

--

T·.>•cll • •.• rr•l 1· ·· 2 21)9 2,3h2 

. . . . . ... .,,..~. . ur: 
a a ·a Jl.IA • ..a.v- ..... :: ~~""' .. _e I 

£50,001 to £60.000 62 52 
£60,001 to 270,000 22 15 
£70,001 to £80.000 6 6 
280.001 to £90.0000 6 "' £90.001 to £100.000 5 6 
£100,001 to £110.000 "' .rl 
£110,001 to £120.000 1 I 
£130,00110£140.000 . . 
£140.001 to £150,000 I I 

ToiCll Numbe r 107 (19 
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G6 
CJ 

b 

Dablors 
Lon[J Tcr111 Debtors 201 ?/20 201ll/19 

£ £ 
Government Departments - . 
Other Councils . . 
Public corporations and trading funds . . 
Bodies external to general government . . 
Em_l:)!Qyee cor loans 49,664 59.591 
Revenue Gf'onls . -
Capllal Grants . . 
Interest Receivable - . 
Capital Debtors . -
Loons and advances -
Finance lease debtors . . 
Trade debtors 218.298 285.208 
NIHEloans 171.580 258,860 
Other . . 
lmpofrment of loons and receivables - -
Contract ReceiYables . . 
lotullurl~J·Ierm Dcl.llor~ 439,542 603,6SY 

- - -

~hort Y..mr OeiJiors 2019/20 2018/19 

r [ 

Government Deportmenls 856.648 611.ol91 
Other Councns 229.001 58.122 
Public corpota~ons and lrading funds . . 
Bodies exletnalto general government - -
NIHEioans 87.280 81,950 
Employee cor loons 41.483 56.516 
Revenue Grants 5,856,018 5.933,912 
Capital Grants 2.37-4,703 1.733.211 
Interest Receivable . . 
C~al Debtor! . . 
Value Added Tax 2.52-4,478 1.848,860 
Prepayments 3.999.514 3.527.783 
Finance lease debtors . -
Other 3.298,710 1.726.399 
Trade recelllables 2.607,754 1.072.374 
lmpairmenlloss • Trade receivables f805.888l (283.5941 
Contract Receivables 378,981 1,947.969 

Total Short-Term Debtors 21,440,602 11.!,314.993 

Tolol Debtors 21,880,224 18,911),652 

no 



G7 
a 

Creditor~ 

Short Term CrPdilors 1019/?0 'lOIB/l? 

I £ 
Government Departments 1,585,600 1,818.188 
Other Councils 4,040 13.010 
Public corporatlollS and trading funds . 
Bodies external to general government . . 
Rates clowbock 1,800.000 100.000 
VAT . . 
Remuneration due to employees 403,0..& 583.873 
Accumulated Absences 1,363,705 1.357.825 
Receipts In advance 6,374.183 4.473,249 
Trade aedllors 4.801.202 2.499,735 
loon Interest 346.162 331.903 
Capitol Creditors 2,096,936 1.450,637 
Creditor Accruals 18,501,382 23,874.394 
Conlrocl Payobles 277,387 . 

To!ol Sllorl Term Crcdih)rl 37,553,643 :16,502,814 

long Term CrctJilorl ;?019/20 20itl/lY 
£ £ 

Government Departments . . 
Other Councils . . 
Pubic corporations and trading_ funds . . 
Bodies external tog_eneralgovemmenl . . 
Rotes claWback . . 
Remuneration due to employees . . 
Accumulated Absences . 
Receipts In advance . . 
Trade creditors . . 
Other 64,304 50.386 
Contract Poyobles . . 
l(lft: ll ( r q lt 11 1 !''rt·:: ·, ,., 1;·1.!( .. 1 ·.o.•.l(. 

l o lof Crcdrlor1 3/,61/,Ytl? 3b.!t!tJ, :IOO 

l.U 



G8 Other cosh flow disclosures 
a Analysis of AdJustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 

AdJUSimcnllo wrphH or dcl1cil m1lh~ provision ol 
se1vlccs fo1 non cmiJ movcrncnls 

Nolcs 2019/20 2011!/19 

£ £ 
Oepraclallon 19.396.016 18,362,926 
Impairment & downward revoluatlons {& non-sale 
derecogn!11ons) 1,605,228 16.312.957) 
AmortiSation (lnclvded with deprecrollon above) . . 
lllncreoseJ/Oecreose In Inventory (94.1641 49,874 

rncreaseJ/Oecreose In Debtors (3.491,866) 664.797 
lncreose/(decrease) In lmpannent provision tor bad 
debts 522.294 [170.658) 
rncreose/IDecreose)ln Creditors 1.05~.137 6. 176.708 
lncreose/IDecreose]ln Interest Creditors -
Payrnenls to NILGOSC 15.130,000 24.850,000 
Conyrng amount of non.currenl assets sold 4.704.852 350,00: 
AIC/WIP wtillen off to Net Cost of Services . . 
Contnbulrons to Other Rese~ves/ProVIslons 3.189,586 4,292.409 

Movement In value of lnveslmen t properties-included 
above In Impairment & downward revoluofions I& non 
sale derecognlfionsl . . 
Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account Ill 110.000\ 

Contract Costs . . 
Contract Asseb - -
Contract Uobllllies . . 
Deferred revenue 

42,021,062 ~8.275,099 

AdJUit tor ilcm' ir1cludcd in the nc l surplus 01 dcllr rt on 
!tic prov isron ol services IIlo I m e i11 vc1ling one! 
f111onclng n clrvr!il'l 

Noles 2019/ 2U 20\!l/19 

£ £ 
Purchase ot short-term _(not considered to be cash 
eqUivalents) and long-~9(m Investments (Includes 
Investments in onoclofes. jolnl ventures and 
subsidiaries) . 89,928 
Proceeds from the sole of PP&E,Investment property 
and inlanglble assets (4.942.6501 1430.080) 

Copilot grants lnclvded In '7axotlon ~ non-specific 
!grant Income" (5,257,8241 13.052.8651 

b Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Nol es 2019/20 20 18 /1 9 
£ £ 

Cash and Bank balances 12.516.975 10.866.068 
Short Term Deposils(consldered to be Cosh 8,000,000 17.000.000 
I Short Term Investments {considered to be Cosh . . 
Bank Overdraft -

?0,.'>1 6 . ~ /f"J ) 7 ~M, I)(,H 

lll 



c 

d 

- -

Cnsh flow< ihl111l!l'/C,IIill[l Achvillel 201 Y/20 2013/19 

£ £ 
urcnase or t't'&t, 1nvesrmem propeny ana lnTOnglole 

assets 43,625,193 40.481 ,902 
Purchase of Short Term Investments (not considered to 
be cosh equlvalenls) . . 
Purchase of Long Term Investments 440,000 431,000 
Other Payments tor Investing Activities 1,974.259 1,733.342 
Proceeds from the sole of PP&.E, Investment proper1y 
and Intangible assets (4,942,650) (430,080) 
IProceeas uom ;)non 1erm 1nves1moms (nOT com1aerea 
lo be cash eQulvolenlsl . . 
f'roceeds from long Term Investments . -
Capllal Grants and Con111bullons Recelved (5,257,824) (3.052,665) 
Olher Receipts from Investing Activities . . 
Net Cash f:ows fcom Investing Ac liylf:es JS,63B. 97!l 39,16J.299 

-

Cmh flows holll f lncmclng llclivilles 201 Y/20 2018/19 

£ 
Cash Receipts from Short and Long Term Borrowing 30,000,000 65,000,000 
Other Receipts from Financing Activities . . 
I< ash oovments for the reduction or the outstoncllno . -
Repayment of Short and Long Term Sorrowing _(_20,182,319) !38.874.0421 
Other payments for Ananclng Activities . . 

I I . . ; . • 
Events alter the Balance Sheet Dale 

The coronovlrus pandemic has hod a profound lmpccl on all aspects of life In the Belfast Cify Council area. Through 2020/21 the 
Council will adopt o pro-active approach to ensure that lt responds to the emerging needs of residents and businesses. 

On 17 October 2020. fhe Rrsl-tler Trlbvnollssued Its decision In relation loo cfaspute concerning the VAT lablllly of charges paid by 
members of the public for access to sport and leisure laciHfles provided by Mld-Ulster Dlslllcl Council. HMRC contended that the 
charges should bear VAT at the standard rote, while Mld-Utster District CouncU contended that the chOC'ges in dispute did not cllrcct 
VAT, The appeal by Mld-Uister Olstrtct Council was allowed and now the quantum has to be agreed between both parties. 
However. pursuant to Rule 39 of the Tribunal Procedure (First-tier T~bunal) (Tox Chamber) Rules 2009, any party dissatisfied with the 
decision has a right to apply for permission to appeal nolloler than 56 days alter the dale or-this decision. 
Therefore. at this sto,ge 11 is too early to assess the Impact of this decision on council nnances. 

Date of outhoTisollon for Issue 

2.1. 
The Chief Financial Otncer authorised these nnonclol statements for Issue on December 2020. 
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